
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
________________________________________________ 

 

Tuesday, 15 December 2009 at 7.30 p.m. 
 

__________________________________ 
 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
Meeting Room M71, Seventh Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 

Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG 
 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair: Councillor Fazlul Haque  
Vice-Chair:Councillor Helal Abbas   
  
  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Clair Hawkins 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor David Snowdon 
 

Councillor M. Shahid Ali, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Fazlul 
Haque, Helal Abbas, Clair Hawkins and 
Denise Jones) 
Councillor Lutfa Begum, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Fazlul 
Haque, Helal Abbas, Clair Hawkins and 
Denise Jones) 
Councillor Rupert Eckhardt, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor David 
Snowdon) 
Councillor Harun Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Abdul Munim, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Muhammad Abdullah Salique, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillors Fazlul Haque, Helal Abbas, 
Clair Hawkins and Denise Jones) 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Zoe Folley, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4877, E-mail: Zoe.Folley@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 15 December 2009 
 

7.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Audit 
Committee held on 29th September 2009. 
 
 

3 - 10  

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

4. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 

  

 To receive any deputations or petitions.  
 
 

  

5. UNRESTRICTED AUDIT COMMISSION 
REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  

 

  

 Nil items.  
 

  

6. UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS ITEMS 
FOR CONSDIERATION  

 

  

6 .1 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report  September 
2009 - November 2009 (AC/001/09)   

 
11 - 38  

 To note the contents of the report and to take account of 
the assurance opinion assigned to the systems reviewed 
during the period.  
 

  



 
 
 
 

6 .2 Annual Internal Audit Report for Schools – 2008/09 
(AC/002/09)   

 
39 - 50  

 To note the contents of the report and to take account of 
the matters raised by audit in each of the 12 areas 
examined by audit.  
 

  

6 .3 Annual Governance Statement for the 2008/09 
Accounts Update (AC/003/09)   

 
51 - 66  

 To note the action in dealing with the issues raised on the 
annual governance contents of the report. 
 

  

6 .4 Update on Risk Management (AC/004/09)   
 

67 - 76  
 The Audit Committee is asked to note:  

 
• the contents of the report; and 
• the actions planned over the next year to embed 

risk management in section 8 of this report. 
 

  

6 .5 Revised Internal Audit Plan 2009/10 (AC/005/09)   
 

77 - 114  
 To note the contents of this report and to endorse the 

changes to the 2009/10 internal audit plan. 
 

  

6 .6 Progress on National Fraud Initiative 2008/09 and Anti 
Fraud Update (AC/006/09)   

 
115 - 128  

 To note the contents of the report.  
 

  
6 .7 Treasury Activity for Period Ending 30th November 

2009 (AC/007/09)   
 

129 - 134  

 To note the contents of the report.  
 

  

7. ANY URGENT UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS  
 

  

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING.  
 

  

 The next meeting of the Audit Committee will be held on 
Tuesday 30th March 2010 at 7:30pm.  
 

  

 
 



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\8\AI00020892\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  
 

ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 
not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\8\AI00020892\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 29/09/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 29 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

MEETING ROOM M71, SEVENTH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Fazlul Haque (Chair)  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton (Leader Liberal Democrat Group) 
Councillor Clair Hawkins  
Councillor Denise Jones (Scrutiny Lead Member: A Safe and 

Supportive Community) 
Councillor David Snowdon  
  
Other Councillors Present: 
 
  

 
Officers Present: 
 
Chris Naylor – (Corporate Director, Resources) 
Alan Finch – (Service Head, Corporate Finance, Resources) 
Minesh Jani – (Service Head, Risk Management) 
Jon Hayes – (District Auditor, Audit Commission) 
Sharon Martin – (Senior Audit Manager, Audit Commission) 
Tony Qayum – (Head of Audit Services, Internal Audit) 
Mike Clarkson – (General Manager, Deloitte and Touche) 
David Williams – (Development Manager, Development & 

Renewal) 
Anne-Marie Berni – (Team Leader Development Implementation 

Team Development and Renewal) 
Jamie Blake – (Service Head of Public Realm, Communities 

Localities and Culture) 
Toks Osibogun – (Head of Asset Management, Corporate Property 

Services) 
Kate Bingham – (Acting Service Head (Resources) Children 

Schools and Families) 
Kayren White – (Interim Head of Human Resources Adults Health 

and Wellbeing) 
Claire Symonds – (Service Head, Customer Access, Communities 

Localities Culture) 
Zoe Folley – (Committee Officer, Democratic Services Chief 

Executive's) 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 29/09/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
Please note that the order of business was varied by resolution of the 
Cabinet, however for ease of reference the decisions taken are set out below 
in the order detailed in the agenda. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Abjol Miah.   
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Fazlul Haque (Chair) declared a personal interest in agenda item 
(7.3) Revised Statement of Accounts 2008-09. The declaration was made on 
the basis that the report contained references to Tower Hamlets Homes and 
Councillor Haque was a member of the Tower Hamlets Homes Board.   
 
Councillor Denise Jones declared a personal interest in the agenda item (7.3) 
Revised Statement of Accounts 2008-09. The declaration was made on the 
basis that the report contained references to: 
 

• the Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust (PCT) and  
• Tower Hamlets Homes  

 
And Councillor Jones was a non Executive Delegate for the Council on the 
PCT and a member of the Tower Hamlets Homes Board.  
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that the unrestricted minutes of the meeting held on 29th  June 
2009 be approved. 
 

4. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 
None received.  
 
At this point in the proceedings, Ms Zoe Folley (Committee Officer) read out a 
statement on behalf of the Council’s Monitoring Officer regarding Agenda Item 
6.1 (Tower Hamlets Annual Governance Reports 2008/09) as set out below:   
 
“In respect of the Annual Governance Report of the District Auditor and the 
comments in relation to the departure of the former Chief Executive, I must 
remind Members that this is a public meeting and therefore discussion around 
the use of resources and general handling of the affair must be tempered by 
the obligations of the Code of Conduct and Confidentiality Rules as set out in 
the Constitution.  Officers names must not be mentioned and neither must 
there be discussion about any payments made to officers or any confidential 
issues of a personal nature.  In addition Members are required to keep 
confidential information they may have had at other restricted meetings.  If the 
Committee are not minded to do this then they would have to move a 
resolution to go into a Part 2 meeting and exclude the members of the public 
and allow the District Auditor to remain for questioning but not for the debate”. 

Page 4



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 29/09/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
 

5. MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 
 

5.1 Feedback Presentations -  Nil/Limited Assurance  
 
Mr David Williams (Development Manager, Development and Renewal) 
presented a feedback report on S. 106  Planning Obligations. Mr Williams 
reported that during the past 18 months, all of the outstanding 
recommendations made during the March 2008 Audit of the service had been 
addressed.  The service had been audited again in May 2009 and the findings 
of this were awaited. Mr Williams reported on the sums currently held in the S. 
106 account against a range of headings  and projected spend for this year 
and that officers were working to secure further funding.  
 
In reply to a question from Councillor Eaton regarding the role of the  Planning 
Contributions Overview Panel (PCOP), Mr Williams reported  on the  steps 
being taken to strengthen its governance structure. A new Terms of 
Reference for the Panel had been approved at PCOP. The Panel had also 
started to receive reports as per the Audit recommendations that clearly linked 
mitigation with the development proposals. In relation to the Primary Care 
Trust, the majority of the planning proposals which triggered s106 
contributions for the PCT were from residential development and the Council 
mainly negotiates for capital contributions towards the provision of the 
infrastructure . There was current funding set aside in the S. 106 account for 
health infrastructure that was now being allocated to projects.  
 
In reply to further questions from Councillor Eaton and Snowdon about the 
remit of  local S. 106 agreements, Mr Williams clarified that the S. 106 
process was a legal process and the money is allocated and spent in 
accordance with the requirements in the legal agreements. In relation to the 
Millennium Quarter Agreement, the funding had to be spent in the two local 
wards it related to.  This was a legal obligation. 
 
In relation to agreements specifically on the Isle of Dogs including 
CrossHarbour developments, these were mainly larger s106 agreements and 
the funding was mainly but not exclusively  restricted to the areas around the 
development in accordance with the legal agreement. The terms of 
agreements could be revisited, so long as the principles of mitigation in the 
original agreement were still met and all parties to the agreements agreed to 
the deed of variation. 
 
Mr Toks Osibogun (Head of Corporate Property Services) presented a short 
update on the management of the Commercial Property Portfolio. Mr 
Osibogun reported that since the Audit of the service last year (January 
2009), all the outstanding actions had been addressed and the service had 
been assigned substantial assurance. Councillor Eaton asked about progress 
in addressing rent arrears? In response, Mr Osibogun responded that 
although responsibility for rent areas did not fall under Asset Management, 
they were working with colleagues in Revenues to instigate a proactive 

Page 5



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 29/09/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

response by intervening early. Chris Naylor (Corporate, Director Resources)  
Agreed to make available statistics for rent arrears for circulation to Councillor 
Eaton.   
 
ACTION Chris Naylor (Corporate, Director Resources).  
 
Resolved: That the feedback presentations be noted.  
 
 

6. UNRESTRICTED AUDIT COMMISSION REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

6.1 Tower Hamlets Annual Governance Reports 2008/09 - Council's 
Accounts and Pension Fund  
 
Reasons for special circumstances and urgency Agreed.  
 
Mr Jon Hayes (District Auditor) presented the Annual Governance reports. Mr 
Hayes anticipated that he would be able to give an unqualified opinion on the 
accounts on 30th September 2009.  
 
He stated that in completing the audit work, he had identified two material 
misstatements. The Council undertook an asset verification exercise which 
identified that £120m of assets were incorrectly included in the previous year’s 
balance sheet. This prior year error was incorrectly accounted for as an in-
year adjustment rather than by re-stating the previous year’s balance sheet.  
A long term debtor of £24.4m relating to PFI deferred consideration was 
incorrectly classified as a short term debtor. Management agreed to adjust the 
accounts in relation to these matters. 
 
His work also identified non – trivial misstatements regarding Leaseholder 
Chargers and HMRC creditors that management had decided not to adjust. 
Details of these matters were  set out in the Addendum tabled. Mr Hayes 
reported that the letter of representation included specific representations to 
seek assurance that the Committee was satisfied that the accounts were 
materially correct with regard to these items. A revised version of the letter 
including  the unadjusted misstatements was attached to the Addendum for 
approval.  
 
In relation to the Pension Fund Accounts, Mr Hayes reported that the audit 
had identified a number of misstatements as set out in page 8 of the report. 
He also reported that in considering the Annual Pension Fund Report, he 
identified a number of inconstancies between the Pension Fund Annual 
Report and the accounts. Management had agreed to adjust the accounts and 
annual report in relation to these matters.  
 
Mr  Alan Finch (Service Head, Corporate Finance) reported that in relation to 
the unadjusted misstatements, the intention  was to give further consideration 
to the amendments following the closure of the accounts and following this 
make any adjustments necessary in 2009/10.  
 

Page 6



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 29/09/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

Resolved: That the Governance Reports on the audit undertaken on the 
Pension Fund Accounts and the Council’s Accounts for 2008/09 be noted.  
 
ACTION BY: John Hayes (District Auditor, Audit Commission)  
 
 

7. UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS ITEMS FOR CONSDIERATION  
 
 

7.1 Internal Audit Annual Report 2008/09  
 
Mr  Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management & Audit) presented the 
report, drawing attention to the significant issues. The report was deferred at 
the last meeting of the Committee in June 2009. 
 
The Audit Committee was asked to note the contents of the annual audit 
report and the summary of the audits undertaken.  Overall Mr Jani  reported 
that he was able to award a substantial level of assurance to the systems 
reviewed over the period.  
 
Mr Jani reported that Audit Services had recently participated in a CIPFA 
benchmarking exercise and had also participated in a Peer Group Review 
with the London Borough of Redbridge.     
 
In relation to a question about the Homelessness services audit, Mr Jani 
reported that this area had been assigned a substantial level of assurance as 
it was delivering its key objectives. However the issues around the lack of 
guidance for assessments would be addressed and given further 
consideration in future audits.  
 
In relation to payroll, the Committee noted the need to ensure the systems of 
control in payroll were strengthened and that their records were kept up date. 
 
In relation to the schools assigned nil assurance, the Committee questioned 
whether there were any common problems and whether additional training 
would help.  Mr Jani confirmed that there were a number of generic issues 
and that a fuller report was being prepared by Audit and Children and 
Families Services which would capture the key issues and would be brought 
to the next meeting of the Committee.   
 
Mr Mike Clarkson (Deloitte & Tauche) confirmed that the standards for full 
assurance were very high but the Council’s scores compared favourable to 
those achieved by other Boroughs. 
 
Ms Kayren White (Interim Head of HR Adults Health and Wellbeing) 
presented a progress report on the sickness management follow audit which 
had been assigned a nil assurance rating in January 2009. Ms White reported 
on progress against the recommendations. Following the Audit, the then 
Corporate Director for Adults Health and Wellbeing wrote to all staff setting 
out the policy and monthly sickness absence monitoring reports were 
submitted to the Corporate Management Team. Ms White reported that her 

Page 7



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 29/09/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

service now implemented a range of new measures including data cleansing 
exercises to ensure sickness data was accurately recorded on time.  Mr 
Naylor (Corporate, Director Resources) reported that the recommendations 
were performance managed and were being escalated to the Directors.  
             
Resolved: That the content of the annual audit report, the summary of audits 
undertaken which have not been previously reported and the Head of Audit 
opinion be noted.  
 
 
ACTION BY:  Chris Naylor (Corporate Director Resources) 

Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 
 
 

7.2 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report April 2009 - August 2009  
 
Mr Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management & Audit) presented the 
report which summarised the work of Internal Audit for the period April 2009 to 
August 2009.  The Committee was asked to note the contents of the report 
and to take account of the assurance opinion assigned to the systems 
reviewed during the period.  
 
In relation to the assurances assigned to Children’s Services, Councillor 
Eaton sought assurances on the effectiveness of the measures in place for 
safeguarding children. 
 
In reply Ms Kate Bingham (Acting Service Head, Resources, Children’s and 
Families Services) reported that OFSTED had assessed the Children Looked 
After Service and had judged it as outstanding. She expressed certainty that 
the targets for visits had been met and were communicated to those 
responsible for carrying out the visits.  
 
Resolved: That the contents of the report  and  the assurance opinion 
assigned to the systems reviewed during the period be noted.  
 
ACTION BY:  Chris Naylor (Corporate Director Resources) 

Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 
 
 

7.3 Revised Statement of Accounts 2008-09  
 
Reasons for Special Circumstances and Urgency Agreed.  
 
Mr Alan Finch (Service Head, Corporate Finance)  presented the statement of 
accounts.  He reported that a draft version of the Accounts was approved by 
the Committee in June 2009. Further minor amendments to Statements of 
Accounts had been agreed and these would be incorporated into the Final 
Statement of Accounts. A list of these changes was before the Committee.  
 

Page 8



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 29/09/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

Resolved: That the amendments to the draft statement of accounts 
previously approved, and the revised Statement of Accounts presented be 
noted and signed by the Chair of the Audit Committee. 
 
ACTION BY:  Chris Naylor (Corporate Director Resources) 

Alan Finch (Service Head Corporate Finance) 
 
 

7.4 Pensions Fund Annual Report 2008-09  
 
Reasons for Special Circumstances and Urgency Agreed.  
 
Mr Alan Finch (Service Head, Corporate Finance) presented the Pension 
Fund Annual Report for 2008/09.  
 
Councillor Eaton considered that the figure for the reduction in fund value of 
18% referred to in the introduction should be revised upwards to 19%  given 
the actual figure was 18.9%. Subject to this amendment, it was Resolved that 
the Pension Fund Annual Report for 2008/09 be noted.  
 
 
ACTION BY:  Chris Naylor (Corporate Director Resources) 

Alan Finch (Service Head Corporate Finance) 
 
 

7.5 Annual Anti Fraud Report 2008/09  
 
Mr Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services) presented the report. The report 
provided the Committee with the results of reactive and Anti Fraud Work 
undertaken during 2008/09.  
 
In relation to recent developments, Mr Qayum reported that Audit Services 
had developed an anti money laundering policy and a staff training 
programme which would be rolled out over the course of the year. The policy 
was also available on the Council’s internet. 
 
In response to questions, Mr Jani reported on recent discussions with Parking 
services aimed at improving performance. 
 
Resolved: That the contents of the Annual Fraud Report 2008/09  be noted.  
 
ACTION BY:  Chris Naylor (Corporate Director Resources) 

Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 
Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services)   

 
7.6 Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy Red Book 2  

 
Mr Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services) presented the report highlighting the 
key points.  
 

Page 9



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 29/09/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

Mr Jani reported that the Council was currently working with Housing 
Associations and other London Boroughs with the aim of developing a more 
robust approach to tackling tenancy fraud. An update on this would be 
provided at the next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted.  
 
ACTION BY:  Chris Naylor (Corporate Director Resources) 

Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 
Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services)   

 
8. TREASURY ACTIVITY FOR PERIOD ENDING 31ST MAY 2009  

 
Mr Alan Finch (Service Head, Corporate Finance) presented a report 
regarding Treasury Activity for the period ending 31st May 2009, highlighting 
the salient points within.  
 
In reply to questions, Mr Finch reported that the aim of the strategy was to 
optimise returns whilst taking appropriate account of risks. The majority of the 
Council’s funds were invested in UK institutions. The current position was fully 
compliant with the investment strategy agreed by the Council in March 2009.  
It was also Agreed that the report for Treasury Activity during the latest 
quarter be circulated to the Committee.  
 
ACTION: Alan Finch (Service Head Corporate Finance) 
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted.  
 
ACTION BY:  Chris Naylor (Corporate Director Resources) 

Alan Finch (Service Head Corporate Finance) 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 9.15 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Fazlul Haque 
Audit Committee 

 

Page 10



 
    
    
    
     
  
REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 
15 December 
2009 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 
 

 
REPORT OF: 
 
Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Service Head Risk Management  
 

 
Quarterly Internal Audit 
Assurance Report 

 
 

Ward(s) Affected: N/A 
 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report summarises the work of Internal Audit for the period September to 

November 2009. 
 

1.2. The report sets out the assurance rating of each audit finalised in the period and 
gives an overall assurance rating. The quarterly assurance report feeds into the 
annual internal audit opinion which will be produced at the end of the financial 
year.    

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1. The Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and to take 

account of the assurance opinion assigned to the systems reviewed during the 
period.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 

And address where open to inspection 
   

Minesh Jani – 0207 364 0738 
 

 

Agenda Item 61

Page 11



 
    
    
    
     

 
3. Background 
 
3.1. From April 2005, we have assigned each review one of four ratings, depending 

upon the level of our findings. The ratings we use are: - 
 

Assurance Definition  

Full 
There is a sound system of control designed to achieve 
the system objectives, and the controls are being 
consistently applied; 

Substantial 
While there is a basically sound system there are 
weaknesses which put some of the control objectives at 
risk or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance 
with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk; 

Limited 
Weakness in the system of controls are such as to put the 
system objectives at risk or the level of non-compliance 
puts the system objectives at risk; 

Nil 
Control is generally weak leaving the system open to 
significant error or abuse, or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or 
abuse. 

 
 
3.2. In addition, each review is also considered in terms of its significance to the 

authority in line with the previously agreed methodology. The significance of each 
auditable area is assigned, based on the following factors: -  

 
Significance Definition 

Extensive 
High Risk, High Impact area including Fundamental 
Financial Systems, Major Service activity, Scale of 
Service in excess of £5m.   

Moderate Medium impact, key systems and / or Scale of Service 
£1m- £5m. 

Low Low impact service area, Scale of Service below £1m.   
 
 
4. Overall Audit Opinion  
 
4.1. Overall, based on work performed in the year to date, I am able to give a 

substantial level of assurance over the systems and controls in place within the 
authority.  

 

Page 12



 
    
    
    
     

 
5. Overview of finalised audits  
 
5.1. Since the last Assurance Report that was presented to the Audit Committee in 

September 2009, 14 final reports have been issued. The findings of  these audits 
are presented as follows: 
� The chart below summarises the assurance rating assigned by the level of 

significance of each report.  
� Appendix 1 provides a list of the audits organised by assurance rating and 

significance. 
� Appendix 2 provides a brief summary of each audit.  

 
5.2. Members are invited to consider the following: 

� The overall level of assurance provided (para 5.3-5.5).  
� The findings of individual reports. The Audit Committee may wish to focus on 

those with a higher level of significance and those assigned Nil or Limited 
assurance. These are clearly set out in Appendix 1.  

 
5.3. The chart ranks the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in place. 

This assurance rating will feed into Internal Audit’s overall assessment of the 
adequacy of governance arrangements that is required as part of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2003 and the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in 
Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006. 

 
 

(Please refer to the table on the next page). 

Page 13



 
    
    
    
     

Chart 1  Analysis of Assurance Levels 
 

Assurance 
SUMMARY 

Full Substantial Limited Nil Total 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

7 1  8 

 
M
od
er
ate

  

4 2  6 

Sig
nif

ica
nc
e 

 
 

Lo
w  

    

Total Numbers  11 3  14 

Total %  79% 21%  100% 
 

5.4. From the table above it can be seen that of the eight finalised audits which 
focused on high risk or high value areas; seven audits were assigned Substantial 
Assurance and one received Limited Assurance.  A further six audits were of 
moderate significance and of these, four were assigned Substantial Assurance 
and two received Limited assurance.  

 
5.5. Overall, 79% of audits resulted in an adequate assurance (substantial or full). The 

remaining 21% of audits have an inadequate assurance rating (limited or nil).  
This is broadly in line with previous reports. Work in progress is shown in 
Appendix 3. 

 

Page 14



 
    
    
    
     

 
6. Performance Indicators 
 
6.1. At the start of the year, three performance indicators were formulated to monitor 

the delivery of the Internal Audit service as part of the Chief Executive’s 
Monitoring process. The table below shows the actual and targets for each 
indicator for the period August to October 2009. 

 
Performance measure 

 Target Actual 
Percentage of Audit Plan completed up 
to October 2009 56% 56% 
Percentage of Priority 1 Audit 
Recommendations implemented by 
Auditees at six monthly follow up audit 
stage 

100% 100% 

Percentage of Priority 2 Audit 
Recommendations implemented by 
Auditees at six monthly follow up audit 
stage 

95% 71% 

 
 

6.2. The table above shows that the proportion of internal audit work completed to 
October 2009 which is broadly in line with the plan. The target for the year is to 
complete 100% of the plan. 

 
6.3. The percentage of priority 1 recommendations implemented at the follow up stage 

was around 100%, whereas the percentage of priority 2 recommendations was 
71%.  In view of the unsatisfactory progress in implementing agreed 
recommendations, relevant Corporate Directors were recently sent reports 
highlighting specific performance against the set targets, so that measures can be 
taken at Directorate level to improve performance in this area.  

 
 
7. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
7.1 These are contained within the body of this report. 
 
8. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
8.1 The Council is required to ensure that it has a sound system of internal 

control that facilitates effective exercise of the Council’s functions and 
includes arrangements for the management of risk.  The Council is also 
required to maintain an effective system of internal audit of its system of 
internal control in accordance with proper practices.  One of the functions of 

Page 15



 
    
    
    
     

the Audit Committee under the Council’s Constitution is to review internal 
audit findings.  The consideration by the Audit Committee of this report is 
consistent with the Council’s obligations and is within the Committee’s 
functions.   

 
9. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 
9.1 There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising from this report. 
 
10. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 
10.1  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 
11. Risk Management Implications  
 
11.1 The revised control environment should pick up the areas identified as of 

concern and reduce the residual risk. 
 
12. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
12.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



Su
mm

ar
y o

f A
ud

its
 U
nd

ert
ak

en
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

As
su

ran
ce
 le
ve
l 

Sig
nif

ica
nc

e 
Di
rec

tor
ate

 
Au

dit
 tit

le 
 

 
 

 
LIM

ITE
D 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
Ma

jor
 W

ork
s 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
Co

mm
un
itie

s L
oc
ali
tie
s 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d a

ll o
the

r 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s  

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d C

on
tro

l o
f B

lue
 Ba

dg
es
 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
To

we
r H

am
let
s H

om
es
 

Te
es
da
le 
Es

tat
e –

 C
urr

en
t C

on
tra

ct 
Au

dit
 

SU
BS

TA
NT

IA
L 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc
ali
tie
s 

Cu
ltu
re 

He
alt
h a

nd
 Sa

fet
y a

t W
ork

 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e  
Co

mm
un
itie

s L
oc
ali
tie
s 

Cu
ltu
re 

W
as
te 
Dis

po
sa
l C

on
tra

ct 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
– F

oll
ow

 U
p A

ud
it 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e  
To

we
r H

am
let
s H

om
es
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d C

on
tro

l o
f V

oid
 D
we

llin
gs
 – 
Fo

llo
w 
Up

 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Re
so
urc

es
 

Ca
pit
al 
Ac

co
un
tin
g S

ys
tem

s A
ud
it 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Pa
yro

ll S
ys
tem

s A
ud
it 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ho
us
ing

 R
en
ts 
Sy

ste
ms

 Au
dit
 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ho
us
ing

 Be
ne
fit 
Ov

erp
ay
me

nts
 

 
 

 
 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d R

en
ew

al 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
of 
Co

mm
erc

ial
 Pr

op
ert

y P
ort

fol
io 
– F

oll
ow

 U
p 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d R

en
ew

al 
 
Ho

me
les

sn
es
s A

ss
es
sm

en
t –
 Fo

llo
w 
Up

 
 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Co

mm
un
itie

s L
oc
ali
tie
s 

Cu
ltu
re 

Co
ntr

ol 
an
d M

on
ito
rin
g o

f O
n-S

tre
et 
Pa

rki
ng
 In
co
me

 

 
Mo

de
rat

e 
Ch

ild
ren

’s,
 Sc

ho
ols

 an
d 

Fa
mi
lie
s  

Be
thn

al 
Gr
ee
n T

ec
hn
ica

l C
oll
eg
e –

 R
eg
ula

rity
 Au

dit
 

Page 17



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Su
mm

ar
y o

f A
ud

its
 U
nd

ert
ak
en
  

 
 

 
 

 
Lim

ite
d A

ss
ur
an

ce
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Ma
jor
 W

ork
s 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

Se
pt 

09
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 so

ug
ht 
to 
pro

vid
e a

ss
ura

nc
e o

ve
r th

e s
ou
nd
ne
ss
 an

d a
de
qu
ac
y 

of 
sy
ste

ms
 of
 co

ntr
ol 
for

 ca
lcu

lat
ing

, a
llo
ca
tin
g, 
ap
po
rtio

nin
g, 
an
d 

rec
ov
eri
ng
 co

sts
 of
 m
ajo

r w
ork

s. 
 Ou

r re
vie

w 
sh
ow

ed
 th
at 
for

 th
e p

rev
iou

s 1
8 m

on
ths

, n
o r

em
ind

ers
 or

 ch
as
e 

up
 le

tte
rs 

ha
d 

be
en
 is

su
ed
 to

 le
as
eh
old

ers
 in

 re
sp
ec
t o

f o
uts

tan
din

g 
arr

ea
rs 
for

 m
ajo

r w
ork

s a
cc
ou
nts

. T
his

 w
ou
ld 
ap
pe
ar 

to 
be
 pr

im
ari
ly 
du
e t
o 

ex
ist
ing

 p
rob

lem
s 

wit
h 

the
 N

ort
hg
ate

 (
SX

3) 
sy
ste

m 
an
d 

the
 r
ec
en
t 

am
alg

am
ati
on
 of

 th
e R

ev
en
ue
 an

d C
us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce
s s

ec
tio
n w

ith
in 
TH

H.
 

Th
ere

for
e, 

no
 re

co
ve
ry 

ac
tio
n 
ha
s b

ee
n 
un
de
rta

ke
n 
sin

ce
 Ja

nu
ary

 2
00
7. 
 

Mo
reo

ve
r, 
the

re 
ap
pe
ars

 to
 b
e 
no
 sy

ste
m 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t o

nc
e 
a 
de
bt 

is 
un
like

ly 
to 

be
 re

co
ve
red

, c
on
sid

era
tio
n 
is 

giv
en
 to

 p
ut 

a 
ch
arg

e 
on
 th

e 
pro

pe
rty
.  
Fro

m 
ou
r r
ev
iew

 of
 th

e r
ec
ov
ery

 pr
oc
ed
ure

s, 
we

 ar
e c

on
ce
rne

d 
ab
ou
t th

e s
ou
nd
ne
ss
 of

 th
e s

ys
tem

 fo
r d

eb
t re

co
ve
ry 

wh
ich

 in
cre

as
es
 th

e 
ris
k o

f lo
ss
 of
 in
co
me

 an
d l
arg

e w
rite

 of
fs.
 

 W
e 
fou

nd
 th

at 
du
e 
to 

a 
lac

k o
f r
es
ou
rce

s w
ith
in 

Te
ch
nic

al 
Se

rvi
ce
s, 

the
 

co
ntr

ac
tor

’s 
fin
al 

ac
co
un
ts 

we
re 

no
t b

ein
g 
au
dit
ed
 in

 a
 fr
eq
ue
nt 

ma
nn
er.

 
Fa

ilu
re 

to 
au
dit
 th

e c
on
tra

cto
r’s
 fin

al 
ac
co
un
ts 
in 
a t

im
ely

 m
an
ne
r c

an
 ad

d 
de
lay

s t
o 
the

 is
su
e 
of 

the
 le

as
eh
old

er’
s f

ina
l a

dju
ste

d 
inv

oic
e 
wit

hin
 th

e 
req

uir
ed
 tim

e 
pe
rio
d 
wh

ich
 m

ay
 re

su
lt i

n 
los

s o
f in

co
me

 w
he
re 

rev
isio

ns
 

are
 re

qu
ire
d t
o t
he
 es

tim
ate

d c
os
ts 
pre

vio
us
ly 
no
tifi
ed
 to
 th
e l
ea
se
ho
lde

r. 
  

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Lim
ite
d 

Page 18



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Ma
jor
 W

ork
s 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

Se
pt 

09
 

Ov
era

ll, 
we

 h
av
e 

hig
hli
gh
ted

 a
 ri

sk
 e

xp
os
ure

 th
at 

inc
om

e 
du
e 

to 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

ma
y n

ot 
be
 re

ce
ive

d i
f p
rom

pt 
ac
tio
n i
s n

ot 
tak

en
. 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e T
HH

  D
ire
cto

r o
f 

As
se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 F
ina

l R
ep
ort

 is
su
ed
 to

 th
e 
TH

H 
Ch

ief
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

an
d L

BT
H 
Se

rvi
ce
 H
ea
d –

 H
ou
sin

g S
tra

teg
y. 

 Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on
all
y w

e h
av
e c

om
bin

ed
 th
e m

ajo
r w

ork
s c

on
su
lta
tio
n t
ea
m 
an
d 

the
 m

ajo
r 
wo

rks
 in

vo
icin

g 
tea

m 
int
o 

the
 L

ea
se
ho
lde

r 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

 u
nit
. 

Pr
ev
iou

sly
 t
he
se
 t
ea
ms

 w
ere

 lo
ca
ted

 in
 u

nd
er 

dif
fer

en
t 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s. 
 

Ph
as
e 

1 
of 

the
 L

ea
se
ho
lde

r S
erv

ice
s 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pr
oje

ct 
ha
s 
be
en
 

co
mp

let
ed
. T

he
 e
mp

ha
sis

 o
n 
thi
s 
ph
as
e 
wa

s 
da
ta 

int
eg
rity

 w
hic

h 
ha
s 

en
ab
led

 a
rre

ars
 re

co
ve
ry 

wo
rk 

to 
tak

e 
pla

ce
 a
cro

ss
 th

e 
lea

se
ho
lde

r d
eb
t 

po
rtfo

lio
. C

ert
ain

 ca
teg

ori
es
 o
f le

as
eh
old

er 
de
bt 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
mo

ve
d 
to 

the
 

Re
so
urc

es
 D

ire
cto

rat
e 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc
il a

nd
 th

is 
ad
de
d 
ca
pa
cit
y 
wil

l a
lso

 
as
sis

t c
oll
ec
tio
ns
. 

  

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Lim
ite
d 

  

Page 19



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d C

on
tro

l o
f 

Blu
e B

ad
ge
s 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

  

Oc
t. 

20
09
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 so

ug
ht 
to 
as
su
re 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tha

t th
ere

 w
ere

 so
un
d s

ys
tem

s i
n 

pla
ce
 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 an
d c

on
tro

llin
g t
he
 Bl

ue
 Ba

dg
es
 Sc

he
me

.  
Ou

r r
ev
iew

 fo
un
d t

ha
t th

ere
 w
as
 a 

po
licy

 fo
r s

cre
en
ing

 of
 ap

pli
ca
nts

 w
hic

h 
wa

s i
n 
lin
e 
wit

h 
the

 le
gis

lat
ive

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
.  

Sc
ree

ne
d 
ap
pli
ca
nts

 w
ere

 
ref

err
ed
 to

 a
 c

on
tra

cto
r 
for

 a
ss
es
sm

en
t a

t v
ari
ou
s 

clin
ics

 w
ith
in 

the
 

bo
rou

gh
.  

Ho
we

ve
r, 
thi
s 
co
ntr

ac
t e

xp
ire
d 
in 

Au
gu
st 

20
07
 a
nd
 h
as
 b
ee
n 

ex
ten

de
d o

n a
n a

nn
ua
l b
as
is 
wit

ho
ut 
fur

the
r c
om

pe
titi
on
.  

In 
ord

er 
to 
un
de
rta

ke
 au

dit
 te
sti
ng
 to

 pr
ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 on

 th
e c

orr
ec
tne

ss
 

of 
the

 c
on
tra

cto
r’s
 a

ss
es
sm

en
ts,
 A

ud
it 
req

ue
ste

d 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
rep

ort
s 

fro
m 

wh
ich

 a 
va
lid
 sa

mp
le 
ca
n b

e d
raw

n f
or 

tes
tin
g. 
 H
ow

ev
er,

 th
e C

RM
 IT

 
sy
ste

m 
is 

co
ntr

oll
ed
 b
y a

 co
ns
ult
an
t, 
wh

o 
co
ntr

ols
 w

riti
ng
 o
f r
ep
ort

s a
nd
 

sk
ills

 h
av
e 
no
t b

ee
n 
tra

ns
fer

red
 to

 a
ny
 L
BT

H 
sta

ff 
wh

o 
co
uld

 ac
ce
ss
 th

e 
sy
ste

m 
to 

pro
du
ce
 m

an
ag
em

en
t r
ep
ort

s t
he
y m

igh
t w

ish
 to

 dr
aw

 fr
om

 th
e 

IT 
sy
ste

m.
  
Sim

ila
rly
, a

s 
pa
rt 
of 

the
ir 
rou

tin
e 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
fun

cti
on
, t
he
 

Mo
bil
ity
 T

ea
m 

are
 a
lso

 u
na
ble

 to
 p
rod

uc
e 
rep

ort
s 
the

y 
mi
gh
t w

ish
 to

 
ex
am

ine
 fo

r q
ua
lity

 co
ntr

ol 
an
d m

on
ito
rin
g p

urp
os
es
.  
W
e a

lso
 hi
gh
lig
hte

d 
tha

t th
ere

 w
as
 no

 cl
ea
r s

ys
tem

 fo
r m

on
ito
rin
g c

om
pla

int
s a

nd
 ap

pe
als

, th
e 

res
ult
s o

f w
hic

h 
ca
n 
be
 u
se
d 
by
 th

e 
Te

am
 fo

r s
erv

ice
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
an
d 

lea
rni
ng
.  
Mo

reo
ve
r, t

he
 sy

ste
m 

for
 co

ntr
oll
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g t

he
 st
oc
k o

f 
Blu

e 
Ba

dg
es
 r
eq
uir
ed
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
.  

Th
e 

sy
ste

m 
for

 c
oll
ec
tin
g 

an
d 

ba
nk
ing

 in
co
me

 re
qu
ire
d t
o b

e m
ad
e r

ob
us
t.  
Pr
oc
ed
ure

s f
or 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 th

e 
co
ntr

ac
tor

’s 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 re

qu
ire
d 
to 

be
 st

ren
gth

en
ed
 a
nd
 

the
 M

ob
ility

 T
ea
m’
s o

wn
 p
erf

orm
an
ce
 m

an
ag
em

en
t r
eg
im
e 
ne
ed
ed
 to

 be
 

de
fin
ed
.  

All
 fi
nd
ing

s 
an
d 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 
we

re 
ag
ree

d 
by
 th

e 
Se

rvi
ce
 H

ea
d 
– 

En
vir
on
me

nta
l C

on
tro

l.  

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

Page 20



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d C

on
tro

l o
f 

Blu
e B

ad
ge
s 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

  

 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

 Mo
bil
ity
 A

ss
es
sm

en
t C

on
tra

cto
r -

 T
he
 la

st 
ren

ew
al 

of 
thi
s 
co
ntr

ac
t w

as
 

ma
de
 in
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 b

y t
he
 C
LC

 co
rpo

rat
e d

ire
cto

r u
sin

g d
isc

ret
ion

 as
 pe

r 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg
ula

tio
n B

8. 
 T
he
 C
hie

f L
eg
al 

Of
fic
er 

rai
se
d n

o o
bje

cti
on
s t

o 
the

 e
xte

ns
ion

 b
ut 

no
ted

 th
at 

the
 co

ntr
ac
t m

us
t b

e 
su
bje

ct 
to 

co
mp

eti
tiv
e 

ten
de
rin
g 

ne
xt 

tim
e. 

In 
lin
e 

wit
h 

thi
s 

the
ref

ore
 t
he
re 

is 
cu
rre

ntl
y 

a 
pro

cu
rem

en
t p

roc
es
s u

nd
erw

ay
 w
ith
 an

 es
tim

ate
d s

tar
t d

ate
 no

 la
ter

 th
an
 

mi
d 2

01
0. 
 

 Ma
na
gin

g 
an
d 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 o
f t
he
 se

rvi
ce
 is

 a
 ke

y p
art

 o
f t
he
 te

nd
er.

 T
he
 

me
tho

d s
tat
em

en
t h

as
 20

% 
of 

the
 ov

era
ll m

ark
s a

llo
ca
ted

 to
 th
e t

en
de
rer

s’ 
ap
pro

ac
h 
to 

se
rvi
ce
 a
nd
 1
5%

 a
llo
ca
ted

 to
 s
erv

ice
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n 
an
d 

ma
na
ge
me

nt.
 I
n 

ad
dit
ion

 t
he
 S

erv
ice

 S
pe
cif
ica

tio
n 

co
nta

ins
 d

eta
ile
d 

req
uir
em

en
ts 
re 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 an

d r
ev
iew

. 
 Se

cti
on
 5 

of 
the

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

To
olk

it w
ill 
the

n b
e u

se
d t

o a
ss
ist
 

in 
the

 m
an
ag
em

en
t o

f th
e c

on
tra

ct.
  A

s p
art

 of
 th

e q
ua
rte

rly
 re

vie
w 
oth

er 
ch
ec
ks
 w
ill 
als

o b
e m

ad
e. 

Fo
r e

xa
mp

le,
 th

e t
ea
m 

lea
de
r w

ill 
tak

e a
 sa

mp
le 

of 
ap
pli
ca
nts

 pr
ov
ide

d t
o t

he
 se

rvi
ce
 pr

ov
ide

r a
nd
 ch

ec
k t
he
se
 ag

ain
st 
the

 
sy
ste

m 
inp

uts
. T

he
y w

ill 
als

o 
tak

e 
sa
mp

les
 o
f a

pp
oin

tm
en
ts 

inp
ut 

by
 th

e 
pro

vid
er 

an
d c

he
ck
 th
es
e b

ac
k t
o r

ec
ord

s h
eld

 by
 th
e m

ob
ility

 te
am

.  
 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 21



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d C

on
tro

l o
f 

Blu
e B

ad
ge
s 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

  

 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

(C
on

t) 
 CR

M 
IT 

sy
ste

m 
- 
Th

ere
 is

 c
urr

en
tly
 a

 m
ajo

r 
pro

cu
rem

en
t 
pro

ce
ss
 

un
de
rw
ay
 to

 re
pla

ce
 th

e 
Pa

rki
ng
 S
erv

ice
s 
IT 

sy
ste

ms
. T

he
 n
ew

 s
ys
tem

 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 op

era
tio
na
l in

 m
id 

20
10
. T

he
 m

ob
ility

 as
pe
ct 

of 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 w
ill 

eit
he
r b

e h
an
dle

d b
y t
he
 ne

w 
sy
ste

m 
or,

 gi
ve
n t

he
 ve

ry 
sp
ec
ific

 na
tur

e o
f 

the
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
; th

e s
erv

ice
 m
ay
 us

e t
he
 sy

ste
m 
run

 by
 C
am

de
n. 
 

 Co
ntr

ol 
of 

Blu
e B

ad
ge
 st

oc
k -

 A
 ne

w 
sy
ste

m 
for

 co
ntr

oll
ing

 b
lue

 ba
dg
es
, 

clo
ck
s a

nd
 p
erm

its
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
in 

pla
ce
 si

nc
e 
Ja
nu
ary

 th
is 

ye
ar.

  W
e 
no
w 

ha
ve
 o
nli
ne
 sp

rea
ds
he
ets

 a
cc
ou
nti
ng
 fo

r e
ac
h 
ite
m 

an
d 
giv

ing
 th

e 
se
ria
l 

nu
mb

er,
 th

e 
pro

du
ct 

nu
mb

er,
 th

e 
da
te 

iss
ue
d 
an
d 
the

 a
mo

un
t o

f s
toc

k 
rem

ain
ing

. 
 Mo

nit
ori
ng
 c
om

pla
int
s a

nd
 a
pp
ea
ls 

- I
t i
s 
oft
en
 d
iffi
cu
lt 
in 

the
 s
erv

ice
 to

 
dis

tin
gu
ish

 be
tw
ee
n c

om
pla

int
s a

nd
 ap

pe
als

 as
 th

e m
ajo

rity
 of

 co
mp

lai
nts

 
are

 a
ctu

all
y 
ap
pe
als

 a
ga
ins

t t
he
 p
ers

on
’s 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n 
be
ing

 re
jec

ted
. A

ll 
co
mp

lai
nts

 an
d a

pp
ea
ls 
are

 ta
ke
n v

ery
 se

rio
us
ly.
  

 So
me

 c
om

pla
int
s 

an
d 

ap
pe
als

 c
om

e 
dir
ec
t 
to 

the
 t
ea
m.
 M

em
be
rs’
 

en
qu
irie

s a
nd
 C
orp

ora
te 

Co
mp

lai
nts

 ar
e p

as
se
d t

o t
he
 m

ob
ility

 te
am

 fr
om

 
the

 P
roj
ec
t a

nd
 F

ac
ilita

tio
ns
 O

ffic
er.

 In
 a
ll 
ca
se
s 
the

 te
am

 le
ad
er 

wil
l 

inv
es
tig
ate

. In
 th

os
e c

as
es
 re

lat
ing

 to
 an

 ap
pli
ca
tio
n b

ein
g r

eje
cte

d t
his

 w
ill 

me
an
 ei
the

r re
jec

tin
g t
he
 ap

pli
ca
tio
n o

r th
e a

pp
lica

nt 
wil

l b
e a

sk
ed
 to
 at
ten

d 
a 

se
co
nd
 a

ss
es
sm

en
t. 

Th
is 

wil
l b

e 
do
ne
 b

y 
a 

dif
fer

en
t o

cc
up
ati
on
al 

the
rap

ist
. F

or 
all
 ot

he
r c

om
pla

int
s t
he
 te

am
 le
ad
er 

wil
l in

ve
sti
ga
te 

an
d t

ak
e 

the
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 ac
tio
n. 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 22



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d C

on
tro

l o
f 

Blu
e B

ad
ge
s 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

  

 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

(C
on

t) 
 Th

e 
tea

m 
sh
ou
ld 

ha
ve
 a
 cl
ea
r r
ec
ord

 of
 th

e 
ap
pe
al 

an
d 
the

 re
su
lt o

f t
he
 

se
co
nd
 a

ss
es
sm

en
t. 

In 
the

 c
urr

en
t 
sy
ste

m 
thi
s 

is 
co
ntr

oll
ed
 b

y 
the

 
co
ns
ult
an
t. T

his
 w
ill b

e a
 us

er 
rep

ort
 in
 th
e n

ew
 sy

ste
m.
 

 Co
lle
cti
ng
 an

d B
an
kin

g i
nc
om

e -
 Th

e s
ys
tem

 of
 ba

nk
ing

 is
 ab

ou
t to

 ch
an
ge
 

an
d 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 in

 p
lac

e 
by
 th

e 
en
d 
of 

Ja
nu
ary

 2
01
0. 

As
sis

tan
ce
 w

ill 
be
 

pro
vid

ed
 b
y 
the

 C
LC

 fi
na
nc
e 
tea

m.
 A

s 
pa
rt 
of 

the
 n
ew

 p
roc

es
se
s 
an
d 

ow
ing

 to
 th

e s
ma

ll a
mo

un
t o

f m
on
ey
 ha

nd
led

 by
 th

e t
ea
m,
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s w
ill 

pu
t in

 pl
ac
e f

or 
the

 ch
eq
ue
s t

o g
o t

o t
he
 m

ain
 C
as
hie

r’s
 of

fic
e a

t B
eth

na
l 

Gr
ee
n. 
  

 Mo
bil
ity
 T
ea
m’
s P

erf
orm

an
ce
 m

an
ag
em

en
t r
ou
tin
e 
- T

he
 C

orp
ora

te 
PD

R 
pro

ce
ss
 is
 in
 us

e b
ut 

is 
als

o a
ck
no
wle

dg
ed
 th
at 

SM
AR

T t
arg

ets
 ne

ed
 to
 be

 
de
ve
lop

ed
. 
It 

is 
an
tic
ipa

ted
 t
ha
t 
fol
low

ing
 c

ha
ng
es
 a

ris
ing

 f
rom

 t
he
 

res
tru

ctu
re 

it s
ho
uld

 be
 po

ss
ibl
e t

o d
o t

his
. S

ick
ne
ss
 re

tur
ns
 ar

e p
rov

ide
d 

reg
ula

rly
 to
 th
e P

roj
ec
t a
nd
 Fa

cili
tat
ion

s O
ffic

er.
 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

    

Page 23



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Te
es
da
le 
Es

tat
e 

Co
nc
ret

e W
ork

s 
an
d A

ss
oc
iat
ed
 

Re
pa
irs
 

 Fo
llo
w 
Up

 
Co

ntr
ac
t A

ud
it 

 
 Th

is 
au
dit
 

rev
iew

ed
 

the
 

pro
gre

ss
 

ma
de
 

in 
im
ple

me
nti
ng
 

the
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 
ma

de
 a
t t
he
 c
on
clu

sio
n 
of 

the
 o
rig
ina

l a
ud
it 
in 

Ju
ne
 

20
08
.   

 Ou
r f
oll
ow

-up
 re

vie
w 
fou

nd
 th

at 
ou
t o

f 6
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 a
gre

ed
 a
t t
he
 

co
nc
lus

ion
 o

f t
he
 o

rig
ina

l r
ep
ort

, t
wo

 r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

co
uld

 n
ot 

be
 

im
ple

me
nte

d 
as
 t
he
 C

ou
nc
il’s

 L
eg
al 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

ha
d 

ad
vis

ed
 T

HH
 i
n 

No
ve
mb

er 
20
08
 n
ot 

to 
us
e 
the

 F
ram

ew
ork

 C
on
tra

cts
 d
ue
 to

 o
bje

cti
on
s 

rai
se
d b

y t
he
 Le

as
eh
old

ers
.  
Of
 th

e r
em

ain
ing

 4 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s, 

thr
ee
 

we
re 

ou
tst
an
din

g a
nd
 on

e w
as
 fo

r P
roc

ure
me

nt 
to 

pro
gre

ss
.  W

e r
ep
ort

ed
 

tha
t th

e r
ole

s a
nd
 re

sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 of

 cl
ien

t’s
 Q

S 
in 

res
pe
ct 

of 
co
st 

rep
ort

s 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 cl

ea
rly
 sp

ec
ifie

d, 
tha

t t
he
 fin

an
cia

l e
ffe
ct 

of 
ea
ch
 in

str
uc
tio
n 
is 

sh
ow

n 
on
 th

e 
Ins

tru
cti
on
 D

oc
um

en
t a

nd
 th

at 
om

iss
ion

s 
an
d 

ad
dit
ion

s 
ins

tru
cte

d o
n a

 V
ari
ati
on
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 re

fer
en
ce
d t

o t
he
 co

ntr
ac
t d

oc
um

en
ts.
  

W
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ed
 th

at 
the

 D
ire
cto

r o
f A

ss
et 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
sh
ou
ld 

ins
tru

ct 
the

 L
BT

H 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

Se
rvi
ce
 to

 a
rra

ng
e 
co
mp

eti
tiv
e 
ten

de
rin
g 
to 

be
 

un
de
rta

ke
n 

urg
en
tly
 fo

r 
the

 c
ate

go
ry 

of 
wo

rks
 p

rev
iou

sly
 c

ov
ere

d 
by
 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

an
d 
tha

t a
n 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 m

ad
e 
on
 th

e 
eff
ec
t th

is 
mi
gh
t h
av
e o

n t
he
 20

09
/10

 C
ap
ita
l P

rog
ram

me
. 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e D
ire
cto

r o
f A

ss
et 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d F

ina
l R

ep
ort

 w
as
 se

nt 
to 

the
 T
HH

 C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 

LB
TH

 Se
rvi
ce
 H
ea
d –

 H
ou
sin

g S
tra

teg
y. 
 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

 

Page 24



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Te
es
da
le 
Es

tat
e 

Co
nc
ret

e W
ork

s 
an
d A

ss
oc
iat
ed
 

Re
pa
irs
 

 Fo
llo
w 
Up

 
Co

ntr
ac
t A

ud
it 

 
 Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Co
mm

en
ts 

 In 
No

ve
mb

er 
20
09
 C

ab
ine

t a
pp
rov

ed
 n
ew

 co
ntr

ac
ts 

as
 re

co
mm

en
de
d 
in 

the
 in

ter
na
l a

ud
it r

ep
ort

. T
he
 ca

pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e 
is 
ca
ref

ull
y m

on
ito
red

 to
 

en
su
re 

tha
t d

eli
ve
ry 

is 
ma

xim
ise

d 
fro

m 
av
ail
ab
le 

ca
pit
al 

res
ou
rce

s. 
A  

ca
pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e 
gro

up
 ha

s a
lso

 be
en
 re

ce
ntl
y b

ee
n 
es
tab

lish
ed
 to

 co
-

ord
ina

te 
ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e a
cti
vit
y. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Lim

ite
d 

     

Page 25



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Su
bs

tan
tia

l A
ss
ur
an

ce
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

He
alt
h a

nd
 

Sa
fet
y a

t W
ork

 
 Sy

ste
ms

 Au
dit
 

     

Se
pt.
 

20
09
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of

 th
is 
au
dit
 w
as
 to

 as
su
re 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tha

t th
e s

ys
tem

s i
n 

pla
ce
 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 an
d c

on
tro

llin
g H

ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
in 
the

 w
ork

 pl
ac
e a

re 
so
un
d, 
se
cu
re 

an
d a

de
qu
ate

. 
 Th

e 
Co

un
cil 

ha
s d

ev
elo

pe
d 
a 
cle

ar 
He

alt
h &

 S
afe

ty 
po
licy

 in
 co

mp
lia
nc
e 

wit
h l
eg
al 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
pla

ce
d o

n i
t. T

he
 po

licy
 w
as
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y t
he
 C
hie

f 
Ex

ec
uti
ve
 a
nd
 th

e L
ea
de
r o

f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il o

n 
24

th
 N
ov
em

be
r 2

00
8. 

 C
lea

r 
ter

ms
 o
f r

efe
ren

ce
 a
nd
 c
on
sti
tut
ion

 h
av
e 
be
en
 e
sta

bli
sh
ed
 b
y 
va
rio
us
 

Co
mm

itte
es
 a

nd
 S

afe
ty 

Pa
ne
l c

ha
rge

d 
wit

h 
str
ate

gic
 a

nd
 o

pe
rat

ion
al 

as
pe
cts

 of
 H
ea
lth
 & 

Sa
fet
y. 
  

 Ou
r r
ev
iew

 fo
un
d 
tha

t f
ive

 o
f t
he
 si
x C

ou
nc
il D

ire
cto

rat
es
 h
ad
 d
ev
elo

pe
d 

the
ir 
He

alt
h 
& 

Sa
fet
y 
po
lici

es
 to

-da
te.
  
Fo

r 0
9-1

0 
co
mp

uls
ory

 H
ea
lth
 &

 
Sa

fet
y t
rai
nin

g w
ill 
be
 pr

ov
ide

d f
or 

all
 M

an
ag
ers

.  
Ris

k a
ss
es
sm

en
ts 
we

re 
be
ing

 un
de
rta

ke
n i
n s

om
e i
ns
tan

ce
s, 
bu
t c
om

pli
an
ce
 w
ith
 th

is 
req

uir
em

en
t 

wa
s n

ot 
be
ing

 m
on
ito
red

.  A
cc
ide

nt 
an
d i
nc
ide

nts
 w
ere

 be
ing

 re
co
rde

d o
n 

sit
e 
as
 re

qu
ire
d. 

 H
ow

ev
er,

 it
 w

as
 u
nc
lea

r i
f t
he
 d
eta

ile
d 
Ac

cid
en
t a

nd
 

Inc
ide

nt 
Re

po
rts
 w
ere

 be
ing

 su
bm

itte
d t

o H
ea
lth
 &
 S
afe

ty 
Civ

il P
rot

ec
tio
n 

Un
it 
as
 re

qu
ire
d. 

 F
irs
t A

id 
an
d 
Fir

e 
Dr
ill 
pro

vis
ion

 is
 b
ein

g 
pro

vid
ed
 in

 
ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 po

licy
.  
Th

e r
es
po
ns
ibi
lity

 fo
r r
ep
ort

ing
 an

d m
on
ito
rin
g o

f 
He

alt
h 
& 
Sa

fet
y h

as
 b
ee
n 
cle

arl
y d

ete
rm

ine
d. 

 A
n 
an
nu
al 

rev
iew

 b
y t

he
 

Co
rpo

rat
e J

oin
t H

ea
lth
 & 

Sa
fet
y C

ivil
 Pr

ote
cti
on
 U
nit
 of
 th
e H

ea
lth
 & 

Sa
fet
y 

Po
licy

 w
as
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
as
 re

qu
ire
d. 
  

 All
 fin

din
gs
 a
nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w

ere
 a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
Se

rvi
ce
 H

ea
d 
– 

En
vir
on
me

nta
l C

on
tro

l. 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e  

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 26



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

W
as
te 
Dis

po
sa
l 

Co
ntr

ac
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
 

 Fo
llo
w 
Up

 Au
dit
 

Oc
t. 

20
09
 

Th
e k

ey
 ob

jec
tiv
e o

f th
is 
au
dit
 w
as
 to

 ev
alu

ate
 th

e a
cti
on
 ta

ke
n s

inc
e t

he
 

ori
gin

al 
au
dit
 re

vie
w 
in 
No

ve
mb

er 
20
08
.   

 Ou
r fo

llo
w 
up
 re

vie
w 
sh
ow

ed
 th
at 
eig

ht 
ou
t o
f th

e f
ou
rte

en
 pr

ev
iou

s a
ud
it 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s h

ad
 be

en
 im

ple
me

nte
d a

nd
 tw

o r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 

in 
the

 pr
oc
es
s o

f b
ein

g i
mp

lem
en
ted

. O
f th

e f
ou
r o

uts
tan

din
g 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s, 
on
e w

as
 hi
gh
 pr

ior
ity
.  W

e n
ote

d t
ha
t th

e M
un
icip

al 
W
as
te 
Str

ate
gy
 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y i
n t
he
 pr

oc
es
s o

f b
ein

g f
orm

ula
ted

.  T
he
 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
rev

ise
d K

PI 
tar

ge
ts 
on
 ke

y a
sp
ec
ts 
of 
the

 co
ntr

ac
tor

’s 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 w
as
 be

ing
 m
on
ito
red

 on
 a 
reg

ula
r b

as
is 
an
d t
he
 co

ntr
ac
tor

’s 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 w
as
 sh

ow
n t
o b

e a
bo
ve
 th
e m

ini
mu

m 
ac
ce
pta

ble
 st
an
da
rds

.  
Ho

we
ve
r, t

he
 w
ork

 on
 fin

ali
sin

g t
he
 C
on
tra

ct 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
an
d M

on
ito
rin
g 

ma
nu
al 
wa

s s
till 

ou
tst
an
din

g a
nd
 th
e o

ffic
er 

au
tho

ris
ing

 th
e c

on
tra

cto
rs’
 

inv
oic

es
 fo
r p

ay
me

nt 
ne
ed
ed
 to
 ha

ve
 th
eir
 fin

an
cia

l lim
its
 re

vis
ed
. 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th
e S

erv
ice

 H
ea
d- 

Pu
bli
c R

ea
lm
. 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

    

Page 27



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d C

on
tro

l o
f 

Vo
id 
Dw

ell
ing

s 
 Fo

llo
w 
Up

 Au
dit
 

Oc
t. 

20
09
 

Th
is 

wa
s 

a 
fol
low

 u
p 

au
dit
 w

hic
h 

as
se
ss
ed
 t
he
 p

rog
res

s 
ma

de
 in

 
im
ple

me
nti
ng
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 m

ad
e 
at 

the
 c
on
clu

sio
n 
of 

the
 o
rig
ina

l 
au
dit
 in
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
09
.   

Fro
m 

ou
r f
oll
ow

 u
p 
rev

iew
, w

e 
fou

nd
 th

at 
of 

the
 n
ine

 re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 

ma
de
 in

 th
e o

rig
ina

l re
po
rt, 

eig
ht 

ha
d b

ee
n p

rog
res

se
d a

nd
 im

ple
me

nte
d. 
 

Pr
oc
ed
ure

s 
for

 m
an
ag
ing

 v
oid

s 
ha
d 
be
en
 d
raf

ted
.  

Ho
we

ve
r, 

we
 h
av
e 

no
ted

 no
n-c

om
pli
an
ce
 w
ith
 th

es
e p

roc
ed
ure

s w
hic

h c
an
 w
ea
ke
n t

he
 le

ve
l 

of 
co
ntr

ol.
  
Fo

r e
xa
mp

le,
 w

ork
s 
co
mp

let
ion

 c
ert

ific
ate

s 
we

re 
no
t b

ein
g 

sig
ne
d b

y t
he
 co

ntr
ac
tor

 an
d R

ep
air
s I
ns
pe
cto

r.  
Th

e l
ett
ing

s s
ec
tio
n h

ad
 to
 

im
pro

ve
 th

e 
ma

rke
tin
g 
of 

va
ca
nt 

dw
ell
ing

s 
so
 th

at 
the

 v
oid

 tu
rna

rou
nd
 

tar
ge
t is

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 ac
hie

ve
d a

nd
 th

e r
ea
so
ns
 fo

r d
ela

ys
 in
 th

e t
urn

aro
un
d 

ne
ed
ed
 to

 be
 w
ritt
en
 on

 S
X3

 sy
ste

m.
 Th

e t
erm

 of
 re

fer
en
ce
, m

em
be
rsh

ip,
 

fre
qu
en
cy
 of
 m
ee
tin
gs
 an

d r
ep
ort

ing
 lin

es
 fo
r th

e V
oid

s P
an
el 
ne
ed
ed
 to
 be

 
cle

arl
y 
lai
d 
do
wn

 to
 in

cre
as
e 
its
 le

git
im
ac
y 
an
d 
eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s, 

an
d 
the

 
mi
nu
tes

 o
f 
the

 m
ee
tin
g 

ne
ed
ed
 t
o 

be
 w

ritt
en
 u

p. 
 H

ow
ev
er,

 T
HH

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
wa

s r
eq
ue
ste

d t
o n

ote
 th

at 
alt
ho
ug
h m

os
t r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

im
ple

me
nte

d, 
the

re 
we

re 
sti
ll s

om
e n

on
-co

mp
lia
nc
e i
ss
ue
s w

hic
h c

an
 

pu
t s
om

e o
f th

e c
on
tro

l o
bje

cti
ve
s a

t ri
sk
. 

All
 fi
nd
ing

s 
an
d 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 
we

re 
ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 A
rea

 H
ou
sin

g 
Ma

na
ge
r a

nd
 th
e F

ina
l R

ep
ort

 w
as
 is
su
ed
 to
 th
e T

HH
 C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e. 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 28



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ca
pit
al 

Ac
co
un
tin
g 

                   

Oc
t. 

20
09
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of
 th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
s C

ap
ita
l A

cc
ou
nti
ng
 sy

ste
m 
is 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t 

all
 ca

pit
al 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re,

 ca
pit
al 

rec
eip

ts 
an
d f

ina
nc
ial
 co

mm
itm

en
ts 

rel
ati
ng
 

to 
the

 ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e a
re 

in 
ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th

e a
cc
ep
ted

 ac
co
un
tin
g 

pri
nc
ipl
es
.  T

he
 fo
llo
win

g k
ey
 is
su
es
 w
ere

 re
po
rte

d:-
 

 
• 

Th
e c

on
tro

ls 
aro

un
d t

he
 C
ap
ita
l B

ud
ge
t s
ett
ing

 pr
oc
es
s w

ere
 fo

un
d 

to 
be
 a
de
qu
ate

. T
he
 C

ap
ita
l B

ud
ge
t w

as
 p
rep

are
d 
in 

ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h 
the

 ti
me

tab
le 

pre
sc
rib
ed
 in

 th
e 
Bu

dg
et 

Pr
ac
titi
on
ers

 G
uid

e. 
Re

sp
on
sib

ility
 fo

r b
ud
ge
t s
ett
ing

 w
as
 co

nfi
rm

ed
 to

 be
 la
id 
ou
t in

 th
e 

Co
un
cil’

s F
ina

nc
ial
 R
eg
ula

tio
ns
 an

d F
ina

nc
ial
 Pr

oc
ed
ure

s. 
 

• 
Th

e 
Ca

pit
al 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 R

ep
ort

 fo
r q

ua
rte

r 3
 s
tat
es
 th

at:
 “C

ap
ita
l 

Re
ce
ipt
s c

an
 on

ly 
be
 es

tim
ate

d b
as
ed
 on

 kn
ow

led
ge
 of

 th
e m

ark
et 

pre
va
ilin

g a
t th

e t
im
e, 

an
d r

ea
lisa

tio
n o

f r
ec
eip

ts 
is 
su
sc
ep
tib
le 
to 

a 
ran

ge
 of
 fa
cto

rs 
ou
tsi
de
 th
e c

on
tro

l o
f th

e C
ou
nc
il.”
 S
ub
se
qu
en
tly
,  a

 
mo

re 
pru

de
nt 

vie
w 

is 
no
w 

in 
pla

ce
 w

he
re 

on
ly 

ca
pit
al 

rec
eip

ts 
ac
tua

lly 
rec

eiv
ed
 ar

e r
ec
og
nis

ed
. 

 
• 

Fiv
e 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

ma
de
 
in 

the
 
20
07
/08

 
Ca

pit
al 

Ac
co
un
tin
g 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 o

f w
hic

h 
fou

r 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

ag
ree

d a
nd
 ac

tio
n s

ch
ed
ule

d. 
It w

as
 id

en
tifi
ed
 th

at 
thr

ee
 ou

t o
f th

e 
ag
ree

d 
fou

r r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 
ha
ve
 b

ee
n 

im
ple

me
nte

d 
an
d 

the
 

rem
ain

ing
 is
su
e w

as
 pa

rtly
 im

ple
me

nte
d. 

 
Th

e f
ind

ing
s a

nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w
ere

 ag
ree

d w
ith
 th

e S
erv

ice
 H
ea
d –

 
Co

rpo
rat

e F
ina

nc
e a

nd
 re

po
rte

d t
o t
he
 D
ire
cto

r o
f R

es
ou
rce

s. 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

 

Page 29



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Pa
yro

ll 
Sy

ste
ms

 Au
dit
 

 
Oc

t. 
20
09
 

Th
e 
ob
jec

tiv
e 
of 

the
 P
ay
rol
l s

ys
tem

 is
 to

 e
ns
ure

 th
at 

the
 co

rre
ct 

sa
lar
ies

 
an
d 

oth
er 

mo
nie

s 
pa
ya
ble

 to
 s
taf
f a

re 
pa
id 

to 
the

 c
orr

ec
t e

mp
loy

ee
s 

pro
mp

tly
 in

 a
cc
ord

an
ce
 w

ith
 p

oli
cie

s 
an
d 

pro
ce
du
res

.  
Th

e 
fol
low

ing
 

fin
din

gs
 w
ere

 re
po
rte

d:-
 

 
• 

Th
e c

on
tro

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t w

as
 fo

un
d t

o b
e a

de
qu
ate

 ar
ou
nd
 st

art
ers

 
to 

the
 sy

ste
m,
 ch

an
ge
s m

ad
e t

o s
tan

din
g d

ata
, th

e f
ee
de
r s

ys
tem

s 
an
d r

ec
on
cili

ati
on
s. 
 

 
• 

Mo
re 

sp
ec
ific

all
y, 

the
 co

ntr
ol 

ov
er 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n o

f le
av
ers

 ne
ed
ed
 

to 
be
 im

pro
ve
d. 

  F
rom

 ou
r s
am

ple
 te

sti
ng
, w

e i
de
nti
fie
d t
ha
t 3

0%
 of
 

lea
ve
rs 
in 
ou
r s
am

ple
 w
ere

 no
t b
rou

gh
t to

 th
e a

tte
nti
on
 of
 th
e p

ay
rol
l 

se
cti
on
 in

 a
 ti
me

ly 
ma

nn
er.

  
Th

is 
inc

rea
se
s 
the

 ri
sk
 o

f s
ala

ry 
ov
erp

ay
me

nts
 m

ad
e t

o l
ea
ve
rs 

an
d a

lso
 re

mo
va
l o
f p

riv
ile
ge
s s

uc
h 

as
 IC

T s
ys
tem

s a
cc
es
s e

tc.
 pr

om
ptl
y. 
 

 • 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 in

dic
ato

rs 
wh

ere
 d

es
ign

ed
 a

de
qu
ate

ly 
ca
n 

he
lp 

to 
im
pro

ve
 p

ay
rol
l p

rac
tic
es
 a

nd
 u

ltim
ate

ly 
de
live

r 
be
tte
r 
se
rvi
ce
s. 

Alt
ho
ug
h t

he
 pa

yro
ll s

ec
tio
n c

arr
ies

 ou
t a

 be
nc
hm

ark
ing

 ex
erc

ise
 to

 
co
mp

are
 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 pa

yro
ll a

cti
vit
ies

 to
 th
at 
of 
sim

ila
r C

ou
nc
il's
 on

 
an
 a

nn
ua
l b

as
is,
 a

s 
at 

the
 t
im
e 

of 
the

 a
ud
it, 

the
re 

we
re 

no
 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 in

dic
ato

rs 
in 

res
pe
ct 

of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il's
 p
ay
rol
l s

erv
ice

 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
. 

 
 Th

e f
ind

ing
s a

nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w
ere

 ag
ree

d w
ith
 th

e S
erv

ice
 H
ea
d –

 
Hu

ma
n R

es
ou
rce

s a
nd
 re

po
rte

d t
o t
he
 D
ire
cto

r o
f R

es
ou
rce

s. 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

 

Page 30



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ho
us
ing

 R
en
ts 

Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

  

Se
pt.
 

20
09
 

Th
e 

ob
jec

tiv
e 

of 
the

 H
ou
sin

g 
Re

nts
 s

ys
tem

 i
s 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t 
the

 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 

ren
t is

 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 po

licy
 an

d t
ha
t r
en
t is

 co
lle
cte

d 
ac
cu
rat

ely
 an

d p
rom

ptl
y, 
so
 th

at 
ho
us
ing

 re
nt 

rev
en
ue
 is
 m

ax
im
ise

d. 
Fo

ur 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ra

ise
d a

s a
 re

su
lt o

f th
is 
au
dit
 al
tho

ug
h n

o p
rio
rity

 1 
iss

ue
s w

ere
 ra

ise
d. 
Th

e m
ain

 fin
din

gs
 ar

e s
um

ma
ris
ed
 be

low
:   

 
• 

Th
e  

rep
ort

 hi
gh
lig
hte

d ‘
all
 te

na
nc
ies

 cr
ea
ted

 w
he
re 

the
re 

is 
no
 re

nt 
ac
co
un
t in

 pl
ac
e’ 
wa

s r
ev
iew

ed
 an

d i
t w

as
 id
en
tifi
ed
 th
at 
the

 te
na
nc
y 

ag
ree

me
nt 
for

 4/
11
 ne

w 
ren

t a
cc
ou
nts

 ha
d n

ot 
be
en
 se

nt 
to 
the

 R
en
t 

Ac
co
un
tin
g T

ea
m 

by
 th

e L
oc
al 
Se

rvi
ce
 C
en
tre

 (L
SC

). I
n 2

/11
 ca

se
s 

the
 re

nt 
ac
co
un
t w

as
 op

en
ed
 af
ter

 th
e t
en
an
cy
 st
art

 da
te.
 

 
• 

No
 do

cu
me

nta
ry 
ev
ide

nc
e w

as
 fo
un
d t
ha
t a
ll m

em
be
rs 
of 
sta

ff w
ith
in 

the
 re

nt 
ac
co
un
tin
g a

nd
 ar

rea
rs 

rec
ov
ery

 te
am

s w
ere

 ap
pro

pri
ate

ly 
au
tho

ris
ed
 to

 ac
ce
ss
 th

e r
en
ts 
sy
ste

m 
by
 m

an
ag
em

en
t. I

t w
as
 al
so
 

es
tab

lish
ed
 th

at 
the

re 
is 

no
 p
roc

es
s 
in 

pla
ce
 w

he
re 

sta
ff 
ac
ce
ss
 

rig
hts

 a
re 

rev
iew

ed
 p
eri
od
ica

lly 
to 

co
nfi
rm

 th
at 

ac
ce
ss
 to

 th
e 
ren

ts 
sy
ste

m 
(N
ort

hg
ate

) w
as
 on

ly 
av
ail
ab
le 

to 
rel
ev
an
t m

em
be
rs 

of 
sta

ff 
an
d t
ha
t th

e l
ev
el 
of 
ac
ce
ss
 is
 ap

pro
pri
ate

. 
 • 

6 
Re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w

ere
 m

ad
e 

in 
the

 2
00
7/0

8 
Ho

us
ing

 R
en
ts 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
. F

ive
 o
ut 

of 
the

 S
ix 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

im
ple

me
nte

d. 
Th

e 
rem

ain
ing

 re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 
wa

s 
de
em

ed
 to

 b
e 

pa
rtly

 im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 All
 f
ind

ing
s 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 D
ire
cto

r 
of 

Ho
us
ing

 M
an
ag
em

en
t (T

HH
).  

 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

 

Page 31



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ho
us
ing

 Be
ne
fit 

Ov
erp

ay
me

nts
 

Oc
t. 

20
09
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of
 th
e s

ys
tem

 is
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

ere
 is
 an

 ef
fec

tiv
e p

roc
es
s i
n 

pla
ce
 f
or 

ide
nti
fyi
ng
 a

nd
 r

ec
ov
eri
ng
 H

ou
sin

g 
Be

ne
fit 

ov
erp

ay
me

nts
 

pro
mp

tly
 an

d c
om

ple
tel
y. 
 In
 ge

ne
ral
, th

e c
on
tro

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t w

as
 fo
un
d t
o 

be
 ad

eq
ua
te.
 Th

e m
ain

 ar
ea
s o

f w
ea
kn
es
s w

ere
 hi
gh
lig
hte

d a
s b

ein
g:-

 
 

• 
Pr
ior
 t

o 
De

ce
mb

er 
20
08
, 

rep
ort

s 
we

re 
su
bm

itte
d 

to 
A.J

.S.
 

Re
co
ve
rie
s e

ve
ry 

mo
nth

 fo
r 1

00
 or

 m
ore

 cl
aim

an
ts 
to 

ch
as
e u

p t
he
 

de
bts

. H
ow

ev
er,

 it 
wa

s c
on
firm

ed
 th

at 
no
 re

co
ve
ry 

of 
ov
erp

ay
me

nts
 

ha
ve
 p
rog

res
se
d 
be
yo
nd
 th

e 
Co

un
cil’

s 
fin
al 

rem
ind

er 
sta

ge
 s
inc

e 
De

ce
mb

er 
20
08
. T

he
ref

ore
, o

ve
rpa

ym
en
ts 

wh
ich

 h
av
e 
rea

ch
ed
 a
 

fin
al 
rem

ind
er 

sin
ce
 D
ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 h

av
e n

ot 
be
en
 pu

rsu
ed
 fu
rth

er.
 

• 
Th

e 
co
rpo

rat
e 

de
bto

rs 
sy
ste

m 
is 

inc
om

pa
tib
le 

wit
h 

the
 s

un
dry

 
de
bto

rs 
sy
ste

m 
an
d 
the

ref
ore

 o
nc
e 
a 
de
bt 

is 
ha
nd
ed
 o
ff 
to 

the
 

co
rpo

rat
e 

de
bto

rs 
sy
ste

m,
 a

ny
 s
ub
se
qu
en
t r

ev
isio

ns
 to

 b
en
efi
ts 

en
titl
em

en
t 
are

 n
ot 

de
tec

ted
. 
Co

ns
eq
ue
ntl
y, 

the
 O

ve
rpa

ym
en
ts 

Te
am

 d
o 
no
t h

av
e 
co
ntr

ol 
ov
er 

the
 e
nti
re 

ov
erp

ay
me

nt 
rec

ov
ery

 
pro

ce
ss
 o
r a

cc
es
s 
to 

all
 th

e 
me

an
s 
of 

rec
ov
ery

 w
hic

h 
are

 a
t t
he
 

Co
un
cil’

s d
isp

os
al.
 

 
Th

e f
ind

ing
s a

nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w
ere

 ag
ree

d w
ith
 th

e S
erv

ice
 H
ea
d –

 
Cu

sto
me

r A
cc
es
s. 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l 

 

Page 32



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Co
mm

erc
ial
 

Pr
op
ert

y 
Po

rtfo
lio
 – 

Fo
llo
w 
Up

 Au
dit
 

Se
pt.
 

20
09
 

Th
is 
wa

s a
 fo

llo
w 
up
 au

dit
 to

 as
se
ss
 th

e p
rog

res
s m

ad
e i

n i
mp

lem
en
tin
g 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s m

ad
e a

t th
e c

on
clu

sio
n o

f th
e a

ud
it i
n J

an
ua
ry 
20
09
. 

 Th
e 
fol
low

 u
p 
rev

iew
 h
as
 s
ho
wn

 th
at 

go
od
 p
rog

res
s 
ha
d 
be
en
 m

ad
e 
in 

im
ple

me
nti
ng
 a
ll 
the

 1
7 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 
ma

de
 in

 th
e 
ori
gin

al 
rep

ort
.  

Do
cu
me

nte
d 
pro

ce
du
res

 w
ere

 in
 p
lac

e 
wh

ich
 re

fle
cte

d 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
As

se
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
wo

rk 
pro

ce
ss
es
 s

uc
h 

as
 le

as
e 

ren
ew

als
, 
ren

t 
rev

iew
s, 

va
lua

tio
ns
, a

ss
ign

me
nts

 a
nd
 re

co
nc
ilia

tio
n 
of 

as
se
t d

ata
 m

ain
tai
ne
d 
on
 

CA
P’S

 sy
ste

m 
an
d t

he
 A
uth

ori
ty’
s F

ixe
d A

ss
et 

Re
gis

ter
. T

he
 w
ork

 on
 th

e 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s 

Sc
he
me

 o
f 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
ha
s 

no
w 

be
en
 f
ina

lise
d 

an
d 

ad
eq
ua
tel
y c

ov
ers

 m
att
ers

 su
ch
 as

 th
e s

ale
 or

 ac
qu
isit

ion
 of

 an
y p

rop
ert

y 
an
d t
he
 au

tho
ris
ati
on
 of
 pr

oc
ee
din

gs
 fo
r re

nt 
arr

ea
rs 
or 

an
y o

the
r b

rea
ch
 of
 

lea
se
s. 
 K
PI 

tar
ge
ts 
co
ve
rin
g o

uts
tan

din
g l
ea
se
 re

ne
wa

ls 
an
d r

en
t re

vie
ws

 
ha
ve
 b

ee
n 

es
tab

lish
ed
 a

nd
 fo

rm
 p

art
 o

f t
he
 s
erv

ice
s 
Te

am
 P

lan
 fo

r 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m
on
ito
rin
g p

urp
os
es
. 

 All
 fin

din
gs
 a
nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w
ere

 a
gre

ed
 w
ith
 th

e 
Se

rvi
ce
 H

ea
d 
– 

Ca
pit
al 
De

live
ry 
& P

rop
ert

y S
erv

ice
s. 

 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 33



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ho
me

les
sn
es
s 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
 Fo

llo
w 
Up

 Au
dit
 

   

Oc
t 

20
09
 

Th
is 

fol
low

 u
p 

au
dit
 a

ss
es
se
d 

the
 p

rog
res

s 
ma

de
 i
n 

im
ple

me
nti
ng
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s a

gre
ed
 at

 th
e c

on
clu

sio
n o

f th
e o

rig
ina

l a
ud
it i
ss
ue
d i

n 
Ma

rch
 20

09
. 

Ou
r F

oll
ow

-up
 re

vie
w 
ha
s f

ou
nd
 th

at 
all
 fo

ur 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s h

ad
 b
ee
n 

pro
gre

ss
ed
. 
 W

ritt
en
 p

roc
ed
ure

s 
ha
d 

be
en
 d

ev
elo

pe
d; 

a 
co
mp

ute
r 

int
err

og
ati
on
 f
ac
ility

 n
ow

 a
llo
ws

 a
n 

ea
sy
 P

erf
orm

an
ce
 M

an
ag
em

en
t 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 to

ol 
in 

ad
dit
ion

 to
 T
ea
m 

Le
ad
er 

ca
se
wo

rk 
su
pe
rvi
sio

n a
nd
 th

e 
sig

nin
g o

ff 
of 

ind
ivid

ua
l c
as
es
.  
Au

dit
 te

sti
ng
 fo

un
d t

ha
t a

pp
lica

tio
ns
 w
ere

 
sc
an
ne
d o

nto
 th
e C

om
ino

 ap
pli
ca
tio
n. 
 B
ud
ge
t s
urg

ery
 m

ee
tin
g n

ote
s w

ere
 

typ
ed
 an

d f
ou
nd
 to

 in
clu

de
 ac

tio
n p

oin
ts 

an
d r

es
po
ns
ibi
lity

.  
Ho

we
ve
r, 
we

 
no
ted

 th
at 

be
tw
ee
n A

pri
l a

nd
 A
ug
us
t 2

00
9, 

55
% 

of 
ca
se
s a

ss
es
se
d w

ere
 

de
cid

ed
 up

on
 w
ith
in 
the

 re
co
mm

en
de
d 3

3 d
ay
 ta

rge
t.  

W
e h

av
e t

he
ref

ore
, 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 t
ha
t 
a 

mo
re 

rob
us
t 
ap
pro

ac
h 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 a

do
pte

d 
by
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
to 

ad
dre

ss
 a
ny
 p
erf

orm
an
ce
 is

su
es
 a
nd
 th

at 
the

 M
on
thl
y 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 M

an
ag
em

en
t R

ep
ort

 to
 th

e 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 M

an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m 

sh
ou
ld 
inc

lud
e P

erf
orm

an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
the

 33
 da

y t
arg

et.
   

 All
 f
ind

ing
s 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

we
re 

ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 H
ea
d 

of 
Ho

me
les

sn
es
s a

nd
 H

ou
sin

g 
Ad

vic
e 
Se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 F
ina

l R
ep
ort

 is
su
ed
 to

 
Co

rpo
rat

e D
ire
cto

r D
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 R
en
ew

al.
 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 34



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
an
d 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 

On
-S
tre

et 
Pa

rki
ng
 In
co
me

 
 Sy

ste
ms

 Au
dit
 

 
Th

is 
au
dit
 re

vie
we

d 
the

 sy
ste

ms
 in

 p
lac

e 
for

 th
e 
co
lle
cti
on
, b

an
kin

g, 
an
d 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 on

-st
ree

t p
ark

ing
 in
co
me

.  O
ur 

rev
iew

 fo
un
d t
ha
t o
ve
ral
l, c

as
h 

inc
om

e f
rom

 P
&D

 m
ac
hin

es
 w
as
 be

ing
 co

lle
cte

d, 
co
un
ted

 an
d b

an
ke
d b

y 
the

 c
on
tra

cto
r 
in 

ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h 

co
ntr

ac
t 
req

uir
em

en
ts,
 a

nd
 h

en
ce
 

su
bs
tan

tia
l a

ss
ura

nc
e 
wa

s a
ss
ign

ed
 a
s s

ys
tem

s w
ere

 g
en
era

lly 
in 

pla
ce
.  

Ho
we

ve
r, w

e h
av
e h

igh
lig
hte

d t
he
 fo
llo
win

g f
urt

he
r im

pro
ve
me

nt:
- 

 
• 

Pa
rki
ng
 S
erv

ice
s w

ere
 m

an
ua
lly 

ch
ec
kin

g a
nd
 m

on
ito
rin
g 1

00
% 

of 
inc

om
e c

oll
ec
ted

 fr
om

 in
div

idu
al 
P&

D 
ma

ch
ine

s. 
W
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ed
 

tha
t th

is 
int
en
siv

e m
an
ua
l m

on
ito
rin
g s

ys
tem

 sh
ou
ld 
be
 re

vie
we

d t
o 

en
su
re 

eff
icie

nt 
an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 us

e s
taf
fin
g r

es
ou
rce

s. 
 

• 
Inc

om
e r

ec
eiv

ed
 w
as
 no

t d
isb

urs
ed
 to

 th
e p

ark
ing

 in
co
me

 ac
co
un
t 

pro
mp

tly
, a

nd
 a
n 
ad
eq
ua
te 

sy
ste

m 
ha
s 
ye
t t
o 
be
 d
ev
elo

pe
d 
for

 
rec

on
cili

ng
 cr

ed
it c

ard
 in

co
me

 re
ce
ive

d f
rom

 pi
lot
ed
 m

ac
hin

es
. W

e 
rec

om
me

nd
ed
 th

at 
the

 fu
nc
tio
n 
for

 re
co
nc
ilin

g 
cre

dit
 c
ard

 in
co
me

 
an
d f
or 

dis
bu
rsi
ng
 al
l in

co
me

 to
 th
e G

L s
ys
tem

 sh
ou
ld 
be
 tra

ns
fer

red
 

to 
the

 C
LC

 Fi
na
nc
e S

ec
tio
n. 

 
• 

Ins
tan

ce
s o

f n
on
-co

lle
cti
on
s a

nd
 in
cid

en
ce
s w

he
re 

au
dit
 tic

ke
ts 
we

re 
no
t b

ein
g 
pro

du
ce
d 
by
 P
&D

 m
ac
hin

es
 w

ere
 b
ein

g 
inv

es
tig
ate

d 
by
 

pa
rki
ng
 s

erv
ice

s; 
ho
we

ve
r, 

the
 t
im
eli
ne
ss
 o

f 
the

 s
ub
se
qu
en
t 

ins
pe
cti
on
s c

ou
ld 

be
 im

pro
ve
d u

po
n. 

 T
he
re 

we
re 

a n
um

be
r o

f o
ld 

P&
D 
ma

ch
ine

s c
urr

en
tly
 in

 se
rvi
ce
, s
om

e o
f w

hic
h d

id 
no
t r
ou
tin
ely

 
pro

du
ce
 an

 A
ud
it T

ick
et 

an
d s

om
e m

ac
hin

es
 w
ere

 un
ab
le 
to 
be
 fu

lly 
rep

air
ed
. W

e 
ha
ve
 re

co
mm

en
de
d 
tha

t a
n 
inv

es
tm
en
t b

e 
ma

de
 to

 
rep

lac
e t
he
se
 m
ac
hin

es
.   

 All
 fi
nd
ing

s 
an
d 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 
we

re 
rep

ort
ed
 to

 th
e 

Se
rvi
ce
 H

ea
d 

En
vir
on
me

nta
l C

on
tro

l. 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

Page 35



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Tit
le 

Da
te 

of Re
po

rt 
Co

mm
en

ts 
/ F

ind
ing

s 
Sc

ale
 of

 
Se

rvi
ce
 

As
su

ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Be
thn

al 
Gr
ee
n 

Te
ch
no
log

y 
Co

lle
ge
 

   

Oc
t. 

20
09
 

Th
e 

au
dit
 w

as
 d

es
ign

ed
 to

 e
ns
ure

 t
ha
t t

he
 H

ea
d 

Te
ac
he
r 
an
d 

the
 

Go
ve
rni
ng
 B
od
y h

av
e 
im
ple

me
nte

d 
ad
eq
ua
te 

an
d 
eff
ec
tiv
e 
co
ntr

ols
 o
ve
r 

the
 fin

an
cia

l m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tio
n o

f th
e s

ch
oo
l. 

 7 r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 m

ad
e a

s a
 re

su
lt o

f th
e a

ud
it w

ork
, a

lth
ou
gh
 no

 
Pr
ior
ity
 on

e i
ss
ue
s w

ere
 id
en
tifi
ed
. T

he
 m
ain

 is
su
es
 ar

e s
um

ma
ris
ed
 be

low
: 

 
• 

Th
e B

us
ine

ss
 M

an
ag
er 

pro
ce
ss
es
 st
art

er 
lea

ve
r fo

rm
s a

nd
 th

ey
 ar

e 
au
tho

ris
ed
 by

 th
e H

ea
d T

ea
ch
er.

 H
ow

ev
er 

the
re 

is 
no
 ev

ide
nc
e o

f 
the

 se
pa
rat

ion
 of

 du
tie
s i
n t

his
 pr

oc
es
s a

s t
he
re 

is 
no
 re

qu
ire
me

nt 
for

 th
e p

roc
es
sin

g o
ffic

er’
s s

ign
atu

re.
 

• 
It 
wa

s 
es
tab

lish
ed
 th

at 
bu
dg
et 

ho
lde

rs 
ini
tia
te 

the
 p
roc

ure
me

nt 
of 

go
od
s a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
s b

y r
ais

ing
 a 

ma
nu
al 

ord
er 

wh
ich

 is
 se

nt 
to 

the
 

Fin
an
ce
 O
ffic

e t
o r

ais
e a

 R
M 
ord

er.
 H
ow

ev
er,

 th
e s

taf
f m

em
be
r w

ho
 

rai
se
s 

ord
ers

 o
n 

RM
 d

id 
no
t h

av
e 

a 
list

 o
f o

ffic
ers

 w
ho
 a

re 
au
tho

ris
ed
 to
 or

de
r g

oo
ds
 an

d s
erv

ice
s. 
   

 All
 fin

din
gs
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th
e H

ea
d T

ea
ch
er 

an
d 

rep
ort

ed
 to

 th
e C

ha
ir o

f G
ov
ern

ors
 an

d t
he
 C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor

 – 
Ch

ild
ren

, 
Sc

ho
ols

 an
d F

am
ilie

s. 
 

Mo
de
rat

e 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

  

Page 36



      APPENDIX 3 
 

Audit Plan 2009/10 
 
Work in progress 
 
 
Audit Activity 
 

 
Audit status 

Corporate Systems and Council-wide 
Reviews 

 

BV Performance Indicators Draft Report 
Management of Climate Change Draft Report 
Council Wide Debt Management Draft Report 
Contract Management and Monitoring  Field work 
Scheme of Delegation – Compliance testing Field work 
Sickness Management Field work 
Assistant Chief Executive’s  
Charges on Property Draft report 
Legal Services Planning Meetings 
 

Draft Report 

Mainstream Grants – Strategic Commissioning Field work 
Members Allowances Draft Report 
Children’s, Schools and Families  
Social Care Commissioning  Draft Report 
Management and Control of Surplus Balances Draft Report 
Building Schools for Future – contract audits Field work 
Children’s Centres Draft report 

Page 37



      APPENDIX 3 
 

 

CLC  
Household Recycling Contract Monitoring Draft Report 
Management of Highways Programme Draft Report 
Governance of Local Strategic Partnership Draft Report 
Budgetary Control Filed work 
Development and Renewal  
S 106 planning obligations – FU  Exit meeting 
Tower Hamlets Homes  
Kerry House – Central Heating works, Current 
Contract Audit 

Draft report 

Grounds Maintenance – Contract Monitoring FU 
 

Draft Report 

Installation of Aerials – Contract Audit Draft Report 
Unauthorised Occupants FU Audit Draft Report 
Financial Systems  Field work 
Control and Management of Keys – Void 
Dwellings – Other Housing Areas 

Field work 

Adult, Health and Wellbeing  
Income control and monitoring Draft report 
Resources  
Parking permits Draft report 
Control and Use of Minicabs by Staff Draft Report 
Council Tax Field work 
Pensions Field work 
Management and control of VAT Field work 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 38



 
      

 1 

  
REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 
15 December 
2009 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 
 

 
REPORT OF: 
 
Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Service Head Risk Management  
 

 
Annual Internal Audit Report for 
Schools – 2008/09 
 
Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report (attached) summarises the work of Internal Audit in 

relation to the audit of schools for the financial year 2008/09. 
 

1.2. The purpose of the report is to provide an overview of audit findings 
and facilitate a thematic assessment of the matters raised by audit. It 
is envisaged this assessment will be used by the Local Authority in 
enhancing the governance framework around schools.   

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1. The Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and 

to take account of the matters raised by audit in each of the 12 areas 
examined by audit.  

 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 

And address where open to inspection 
   

Minesh Jani – 0207 364 0738 
 

 

Agenda Item 62

Page 39



 
      

 2 

3. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
3.1 These are contained within the body of this report. 
 
 
4. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
4.1 There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.   
 
 
5. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 
5.1 There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising from this 

report. 
 
 
6. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 
6.1  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 
 
7. Risk Management Implications  
 
7.1 The revised control environment should pick up the areas 

identified as of concern and reduce the residual risk. 
 
8. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
8.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 
TO 

CORPORATE DIRECTOR – CHILDRENS SERVICES  
ON 

STANDARDS OF INTERNAL CONTROL FOR SCHOOLS 
AUDITED DURING 2008/09 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 

         PAGE 
 
INTRODUCTION       1 
 
MOST COMMON FINDINGS      2 
 
FINDINGS BY AUDIT AREA      3-6 
 
CONCLUSIONS       7 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



1 
 

REPORT ON STANDARD OF INTERNAL CONTROL FOR 
SCHOOLS AUDITED DURING 2008/09 

 
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1. This report summarises key audit findings and conclusions made 

during the conduct of school probity audits during the financial year 
2008/09.  

 
1.2. The objective of this report is to provide assurance to the Corporate 

Director as to whether the Head Teachers and Governing Bodies have 
implemented adequate and effective internal controls over the 
administration and financial monitoring affairs of the Borough’s schools. 
 

1.3. During the 2008/09 financial year, Internal Audit carried out probity 
audit visits to 22 primary schools.  An audit programme which 
incorporates the guidance issued by the Audit Commission in 'Keeping 
your Balance' is followed in undertaking schools audits.  A probity audit 
based methodology is used which involves assessing the school 
against the identified controls documented within the audit test 
programme devised for the London Borough of Tower Hamlets. The 
audit process involves audit testing, evaluating and reporting upon key 
financial and management controls.   

 
1.4. The 12 control areas examined during the audit are :- 
 

• Operation of Governance Processes; 
• Financial Planning and Budgetary Control; 
• Control and Monitoring of Schools Bank Account; 
• Procurement, including large single purchases, tendering and Value 

for Money; 
• Accounting of Income and Expenditure; 
• Charging Policy, Income Collection and Banking; 
• Personnel and Payroll Management; 
• School Meals; 
• Voluntary Fund and School Journey; 
• Asset Controls and Security of Assets; 
• Security of the IT Infrastructure, Disaster Recovery and Data 

Protection; 
• Risk Management and Insurance. 

 
 
1.5. Eight schools were assigned a Substantial assurance, and 14 schools 

assigned a Limited assurance after the 22 probity visits conducted 
during 2008/09. Two of the Limited assurance schools were followed 
up within three months and their assurance level improved to 
substantial assurance. 

 

Page 43



2 
 

2. Most Common Findings 
 
2.1. All schools visited during the year had governing bodies collectively 

responsible for the overall direction and strategic management. There 
is a general improvement in Governance as required by the Financial 
Management Standards in Schools, and this was observed during the 
probity audits this year.  
 

2.2. However, the effectiveness of school governance could be improved to 
ensure that the Governing Body have properly set appropriate sub-
committees and that clear terms of references have been compiled for 
these sub-committees.  
 

2.3. Schools have not always produced and approved a School 
Improvement Plan which clearly documents the period to which the 
Plan relates. The update of the School Improvement Plan is not always 
timetabled to ensure that the Plan remains a live and current 
document. 
 

2.4. Bank accounts were not always administered in accordance with the 
requirements of the approved bank account mandates as bank 
mandates have been found to be out of date in several cases. 
 

2.5. Formal tendering processes were not undertaken as required in some 
cases and there was no evidence of best value being achieved for 
some high value purchases. Official orders were not raised by all 
schools as required to support purchases and there was a lack of 
documentary evidence that the goods received are checked for 
accuracy and that delivery documentation was appropriately annotated 
as such.  
 

2.6. Governors have not always approved a documented charging policy. 
Where in place, the policy was not always up to date. Records were not 
always maintained in relation to transfer of income between staff. There 
was an inadequate trail to confirm the person from whom income has 
been received, the date of receipt, the amount received and the date 
the income was banked. 
 

2.7. The Governing Body has not always approved a pay policy and where 
these were in place they were often not maintained up to date.  
 

2.8. Evidence of pre-recruitment checks were not always maintained, such 
as CRB checks, identity checks, references, medical checks, 
qualifications checks etc.  

 
2.9. Inventory records were not consistently maintained and where such 

processes where in place the format and level of information recorded 
was often inadequate. Stock checks are not performed consistently 
across all schools, and where performed, the results of these stock 
checks are not always reported to the Governing Body. Equipment loan 

Page 44



3 
 

registers were generally not maintained to track movement of school 
assets off the premises. 

 
 
3. Key Findings by Audit Area 
 
3.1. Operation of Governance Processes 
 
3.1.1 All schools had in place a Scheme of Delegation and this was generally 

up to date with evidence of regular review. The full Governing Body 
meetings are generally termly and the minutes have usually been 
approved and signed off by the Chair of the Committee. 

 
3.1.2 Decisions made and papers laid in the full Governing Body meetings 

are clearly documented within the minutes and the minutes usually 
made reference to budget monitoring. 
 

3.1.3 Where the Governing Body has set up sub committees the Terms of 
Reference have not been compiled for these sub-committees in all 
cases. 
 

3.1.4 Minutes are not always being produced to support all sub-committee 
meetings and the adequacy of the frequency of the meetings could not 
be evaluated due to the lack of Terms of Reference in some cases.    
 

3.1.5 The Governing Body have put in place a Register of Business Interests 
of Governors. The control over this process has improved significantly 
since the inception of the Financial Management Standards in Schools 
process.  The opportunity to declare interests is a standing item on 
most agendas of the Governing Body meetings. Instances were found 
where the Register was not up-to-date at the time of the audit with 
missing declarations, but schools were prompt to implement this 
recommendation when highlighted. 
 

 
3.2.       Financial Planning, Budget Setting, Monitoring and Forecasting 

 
 
3.2.1 The Chair of Governors and the full Governing Body approved the 

budget plans and are kept informed of budget monitoring outcomes.  
 
3.2.2 Income is profiled as part of budget planning and the results of budget 

monitoring are reported to the Finance Sub Committee. Budget 
monitoring is usually undertaken monthly or as a minimum on a 
quarterly basis and generally material variances are usually 
investigated and corrective action identified. 

 
3.2.3 Any virements are generally agreed and approved within the schools 

framework for delegated authority and are approved or reported to the 
Governing Body. Approved virements are mostly updated on the 

Page 45



4 
 

schools financial accounting system and notified to the LEA. Virements 
are not always recorded in a sequential manner however. 

 
3.2.4 Schools have not always produced and approved a School 

Improvement Plan documenting the period to which it relates. This 
developing and updating of the School Improvement Plan is not always 
timetabled to ensure it remains a live document. Where produced, the 
School Improvement Plan did not always properly include estimated 
resource requirements where applicable (Staffing and Financial) and 
target and success criteria. 

 
 
3.3. Control and Monitoring over School Bank Accounts 
 
3.3.1 Bank accounts were not always administered in accordance with the 

requirements of the approved bank account mandates as bank 
mandates have been found to be out of date in a significant number of 
cases. 
 

3.3.2 Adequate arrangements have been established to support separation 
of duties over cheque production and cashing cheques. Safe security 
and printed cheque security procedures were adequate in most cases. 
 

3.3.3 Bank reconciliations were generally complete and performed in a timely 
manner, and these reconciliations were mostly independently checked 
to confirm completeness and accuracy. 

 
 
3.4. Procurement (including large single purchases, tendering & VFM) 
 
3.4.1. Schools in general have procedures for obtaining competitive prices 

and quotations for the purchase of goods and services.  Pre-defined 
limits are identified above which prior approval from the Governing 
Body is required.  In practice however, formal tendering processes 
were not undertaken as required in some cases. There was no 
evidence of best value being achieved for some high value purchases. 

 
3.4.2 Official orders were not raised by all schools as required to support 

purchases therefore it was unclear that the availability of budget was 
checked prior to purchasing.  There was a lack of documentary 
evidence that the goods received are checked for accuracy and that 
delivery documentation was appropriately annotated as such. 
 

3.4.3 In the majority of cases, invoices sampled were arithmetically correct 
and had been certified as approved for payment by an officer with 
delegated financial authority. The level of segregation of duties for 
procurement was generally adequate. 

 
 
 

Page 46



5 
 

 
3.5.  Accounting of Income and Expenditure 
 

3.5.1 In the majority of cases, direct credits and debits are posted in a timely 
manner and journal entries on the financial accounting system were 
reasonable.  
 

3.5.2 There were several instances where weaknesses in the petty cash 
process were identified. These related to the cash in hand each month 
not being regularly reconciled to the cash book and vouchers not being 
completed fully or being supported by valid receipts. 

 
 
 

3.6.  Charging Policy and Income Collection and Banking 
 
3.6.1 Governors have not always approved a documented charging policy. 

Where in place, the policy was not always up to date.  
 
3.6.2 Official receipts were used where appropriate and where receipts were 

not being issued, compensatory records were generally adequate and 
reliable.  

 
3.6.3 Most schools had a documented lettings policy, which includes the 

terms and conditions for hiring the premises. Agreements were signed 
between the school and persons / groups hiring the use of the 
premises and lettings were authorised by the Head Teacher; charges 
are made in compliance with an approved rate. 

 
3.6.4 In the majority of cases income was regularly and fully banked and 

bankings are periodically reconciled to the cash-book within the 
schools financial accounting system. 

 
3.6.5 Records were not always maintained in relation to transfer of income 

between staff. There was an inadequate trail to confirm the person from 
whom income has been received, the date of receipt, the amount 
received and the date the income was banked. 

 
3.7. Personnel and Payroll Management 

 
 
3.7.1 Where the Governing Body has approved a pay policy, these were not 

maintained up-to-date in several schools.  
 

3.7.2 Evidence of pre-recruitment checks are not always maintained, such as 
CRB checks, identity checks, references, medical checks, and 
qualifications checks.  
 

3.7.3 Payroll reconciliations are undertaken and authorised for most schools. 
Independent Assurance regarding payroll provision for external 

Page 47



6 
 

providers was not obtained for two schools. Adequate remuneration 
authorisation evidence was not maintained in two schools. 
 

3.7.4 Timesheet and supply claim forms were not always appropriately 
authorised and checked against corresponding invoices.  

 
 
3.8.  School Meals 
 

3.8.1 Systems were in place for the majority of schools to ensure that only 
pupils entitled to free meals receive them, and to the appropriate value. 
Income due from pupils for school meals is generally properly recorded 
and accounted for and records identify arrears and credits. 

 
 

3.9.  Voluntary Fund and School Journey 
 

3.9.1 The Governing Body has not always approved the Objectives of the 
Voluntary Fund account. Adequate records are not always maintained 
to document income and expenditure through the unofficial fund. The 
accounts for the school fund were not independently audited for six 
schools by a person who is not involved in the day to day 
administration of the account.  

 
3.9.2 Schools do not always maintain adequate records of income due and 

collected, in a format which allows outstanding amounts to be identified 
for school trips. Not all schools produced certified summary accounts 
for each school journey. 

 
3.9.3 The Governors have approved a documented Grants Policy in the 

majority of cases and these usually defined the criteria under which 
subsidies may be approved. 

 
 
3.10.  Asset Controls and Security of Assets 
 
3.10.1 This area remains an area of weakness and represents one of the most 

consistent finding in audit reports. Inventory records are not always 
maintained and where in place the format and level of information 
recorded was inadequate in several cases. 
 

3.10.2 Stock checks are not always performed and the results of the stock 
check are not always reported to the Governing Body. An adequate 
equipment loan register is not maintained for a number of schools. 

 
3.11.    Security of the IT Infrastructure, Disaster Recovery, Data  
  Protection 
 
3.11.1 Most schools had proper registration under the Data Protection Act.  

Anti-virus software had been installed on financial and administration 

Page 48



7 
 

systems and most schools had adequate computer back up 
procedures.   

 
3.12.  Risk Management and Insurance 
 
3.12.1 The Governing Body's approach to risk management in the 

development of the School Improvement Plan (where in place), School 
Journey, and Health and Safety was appropriate. School's generally 
have adequate arrangements for insurance in place.  

 
 
4 Conclusions 
 
4.1. Most schools audited during the financial year, in general, met the 

minimum standard of financial control and management.  Financial 
management standards have improved since the inception of the 
FMSiS assessments. However, improvements were required in the 
areas of operation of governance processes; financial planning; 
accounting for income and expenditure; procurement; personnel and 
payroll management; and asset control including security of assets. 
Addressing of the issues within the first two of these areas will minimise 
the number of issues flagged up within the FMSIS visits.  

 

 
 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



  
REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 
15 December 
2009 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 

 

REPORT OF: 
 
Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Service Head Risk Management  
 

 
Annual Governance Statement for 
the 2008/09 Accounts Update 
 

 
Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 
 

1. Summary 
1.1 This report updates the Audit Committee of the progress made 

in dealing with the significant issues identified within the annual 
governance statement. 

 
  
2. Recommendation 

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note the action in dealing with 
the issues raised on the annual governance contents of the 
report. 

 
3. Background 

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 and its subsequent 
amendment by regulation 4(2) in 2006 require the Council to 
conduct an review, at least annually of the effectiveness of its 
governance arrangements and to publish an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) with the annual financial 
statements. The Statement of Recommended Practice 2008 
required that the AGS be approved by the committee approving 
the accounts, which at Tower Hamlets is the Audit Committee.  

 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 

Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

  Minesh Jani – 0207 364 0738 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 63

Page 51



3.2 The statement for the year ending 30 June 2009 was presented 
at the CMT on 16 June 2009 and subsequently to the Audit 
Committee on 29 June 2009. The statement was signed by the 
Chief Executive and the Leader following completion of the 
external audit of the annual financial statement.  

 
3.3 The table appended to this report outlines the governance issue 

raised on the AGS, the agreed action and progress to date. The 
table also refers to directorate or corporate plans to link the 
actions with the Council’s performance management framework.  

 
 
4. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

4.1 These are contained within the body of this report. 
 
5. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive 

(Legal Services) 
 

5.1  There are no immediate legal implications arising from this 
report.   

 
6. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 

6.1 There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising 
from this report. 

 
7. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 

7.1  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this 
report. 

 
8. Risk Management Implications  
 

8.1 The revised control environment should pick up the areas 
identified as of concern and reduce the residual risk. 

 
9. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 

9.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 
 
 
 

Page 52



10
. 

Pr
og

res
s U

pd
ate

 on
 Si

gn
ific

an
t Is

su
es
 fr
om

 th
e A

nn
ua

l G
ov
ern

an
ce
 St

ate
me

nt 
20
08
/09

 
 Go

ve
rn
an

ce
 Is
su

e 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s

tep
s 

Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

Op
tim

ise
 

as
se
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ac
ros

s 
pu
bli
c 

se
rvi
ce
s 

to 
en
ab
le 
Co

un
cil 

as
se
ts 

to 
be
 u

tilis
ed
 in

 t
he
 

mo
st 
eff
ec
tiv
e w

ay
. 

In 
Fe

bru
ary

 2
00
9 
Ca

bin
et 

ap
pro

ve
d 
an
 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o t
he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a c

ros
s-

pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 as
se
t s
tra

teg
y a

nd
 ph

as
e 1

 
wil
l c

om
me

nc
e 
on
 S

um
me

r 2
00
9. 

Th
is 

wil
l in

vo
lve

 a
 g
ap
 a
na
lys

is 
of 

all
 p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r 
pro

pe
rty
 r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 

an
d 

the
 

ge
ne
rat

ion
 o
f o

pti
on
s 
to 

ad
dre

ss
 th

es
e 

req
uir
em

en
ts.
 

Th
is 

wo
rk 

wil
l 

be
 

un
de
rta

ke
n 

in 
pa
ral
lel
 

wit
h 

the
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
De

live
ry 
Pla

n f
or 

the
 C
ore

 S
tra

teg
y a

nd
 it 

is 
ex
pe
cte

d 
the

 A
ss
et 

Str
ate

gy
 w
ill 
be
 a
 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
pa
rt o

f th
e D

eli
ve
ry 
Pla

n. 
 Th

e 
Co

un
cil 

ha
s 

bro
ad
en
ed
 

me
mb

ers
hip

 o
f 
its
 C

ap
ita
l a

nd
 A

ss
et 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Bo

ard
 
to 

inc
lud

e 
the

 
Me

tro
po
lita

n P
oli
ce
 an

d N
HS

 T
rus

ts 
an
d 

rep
res

en
tat
ive

s 
att
en
d 

me
eti
ng
s 

qu
art

erl
y 
to 

foc
us
 o

n 
lon

g 
ter

m 
as
se
t 

str
ate

gy
 a

nd
 o

the
r 

iss
ue
s 

of 
mu

tua
l 

int
ere

st 
{P
rio
rity

 1.
2 (

6) 
– S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n}.
 

Sta
ff 

an
d 

co
ns
ult
an
t 
res

ou
rce

s 
ha
ve
 b

ee
n 

ap
pli
ed
 t
o 

the
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 
of 

the
 A

ss
et 

Str
ate

gy
. W

ork
 h
as
 c
om

me
nc
ed
 o
n 
ga
the

rin
g 

da
ta 
in 
the

 pi
lot
 ar

ea
. 

Th
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f

rom
 th

e p
ilo
t s

tud
y a

re 
ex
pe
cte

d i
n J

un
e 2

01
0. 

Pa
rtn

ers
 a
re 

att
en
din

g 
me

eti
ng
s w

hic
h 
ha
s t

o 
lea

d 
to 

an
 im

pro
ve
d 

un
de
rst
an
din

g 
of 

bo
th 

str
ate

gic
 

an
d 

op
era

tio
na
l 

pro
pe
rty
 

req
uir
em

en
ts.
 P
art

ne
rs 

wil
l a

lso
 be

 in
vo
lve

d 
in 

the
 

pil
ot 

stu
dy
 

for
 

the
 

as
se
t 

str
ate

gy
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

s, 
Re

so
urc

es
 

an
d 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne
wa

l 

 

Page 53



 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 Is
su

e 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s
tep

s 
Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

To
 
fur

the
r 

en
ha
nc
e 

the
 

au
tho

rity
’s 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Co
nti
nu
ity
 

Pla
ns
, 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 i
n 

rel
ati
on
 

to 
dis

as
ter
 

rec
ov
ery

. 

Th
e 

au
tho

rity
 h

as
 a

 f
ram

ew
ork

 f
or 

bu
sin

es
s 

co
nti
nu
ity
 

pla
nn
ing

 
an
d 

ma
na
ge
me

nt.
 

Ho
we

ve
r, 

fur
the

r 
en
ha
nc
em

en
ts 

wil
l b

e 
ma

de
 to

 e
ns
ure

 
the

 au
tho

rity
 ca

n r
es
po
nd
 to

 an
y d

isa
ste

r 
aro

un
d 

tes
tin
g 

res
ilie

nc
e 

at 
dir
ec
tor

ate
 

lev
el 

an
d 
sc
en
ari
o 
tes

tin
g 
in 

ca
se
 o
f a

 
pa
nd
em

ic 
{P
rio
rity

 1
.2 

- 
Co

mm
un
itie

s 
Lo
ca
litie

s 
an
d 

Cu
ltu
re’
s 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 

Pla
n}.

 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 ha

d a
 B
C 
pla

n i
n p

lac
e s

inc
e 

20
06
, 

the
 
pla

n 
is 

rev
iew

ed
, 

tes
ted

 
an
d 

ex
erc

ise
d 
an
nu
all
y. 

Th
e 
Pla

n 
is 

pu
bli
sh
ed
 in

 
tw
o 
se
pa
rat

e 
bu
t i
nte

r-r
ela

tin
g 
pa
rts
: P

art
 A

: 
Im
pa
ct 

ris
k 

as
se
ss
me

nts
 a

nd
 C

on
tin
ge
nc
y 

Ac
tio
n 
Pla

ns
 (u

pd
ate

d 
an
nu
all
y 
in 

Ju
ne
 e
ac
h 

ye
ar)

 an
d P

art
 B
: C

riti
ca
l In

cid
en
t M

an
ag
em

en
t 

Ac
tio
n P

lan
 w
hic

h i
s u

pd
ate

d a
nd
 re

fre
sh
ed
 on

 
a 
6-m

on
thl
y b

as
is 
(Ju

ne
 a
nd
 D
ec
em

be
r). 

Pa
rt 

B o
f th

e p
lan

 co
nta

ins
 D
ire
cto

rat
e s

pe
cif
ic 
pla

ns
 

wh
ich

 i
de
nti
fy 

the
ir 

ke
y 

es
se
nti
al 

se
rvi
ce
s, 

mi
nim

um
 s
taf
fin
g 
nu
mb

ers
 a
nd
 k
ey
 c
on
tac

ts.
  

Bo
th 

pa
rts
 of

 th
e p

lan
 ar

e e
xe
rci
se
d a

s p
art

 of
 

the
 C

ou
nc
il’s
 a

nn
ua
l 
Civ

il 
Pr
ote

cti
on
 a

nd
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Co
nti
nu
ity
 e

xe
rci
se
. W

ith
 th

e 
ne
xt 

ex
erc

ise
 (E

xe
rci
se
 S

en
tin
el)
 p
lan

ne
d 
to 

tak
e 

pla
ce
 in
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
10
. It

 sh
ou
ld 
be
 no

ted
 th

at 
the

 p
lan

s 
we

re 
ind

ep
en
de
ntl
y 
au
dit
ed
 in

 J
uly

 
20
09
 (
De

loi
tte
 a

nd
 T

ou
ch
e 

au
dit
) 
an
d 

we
re 

rat
ed
 a

s 
of 

‘su
bs
tan

tia
l 
as
su
ran

ce
’ 
– 

the
 

se
co
nd
 hi
gh
es
t ra

tin
g. 
  

Sin
ce
 A

pri
l 2

00
9, 

the
 C

orp
ora

te 
He

alt
h 

an
d 

Sa
fet
y 

an
d 

Civ
il 
Pr
ote

cti
on
 U

nit
 h

av
e 

be
en
 

ac
tiv
ely

 in
vo
lve

d i
n t

he
 M

ult
i-A

ge
nc
y P

an
de
mi
c 

Flu
 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts.
 T
he
 te

am
 a
tte
nd
 m

ee
tin
gs
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

, 
Co

mm
un
itie

s 
Lo
ca
litie

s a
nd
 C
ult
ure

 

Page 54



Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 Is
su

e 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s
tep

s 
Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

of 
the

 M
ult
i 
– 

ag
en
cy
 I
nfl
ue
nz
a 

Pla
nn
ing

 
Co

mm
itte

e M
ee
tin
gs
 he

ld 
ea
ch
 w
ee
k a

nd
 ha

ve
 

als
o 
be
en
 in

str
um

en
tal
 in

 d
raf

tin
g 

a 
Co

un
cil 

sp
ec
ific

 pr
oc
ed
ure

 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 th
e i
mp

ac
ts 
on
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 se

rvi
ce
s (
du
rin
g t
he
 pa

nd
em

ic)
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of
 su

bs
tan

tia
l s
taf
f a
bs
en
ce
. 

Page 55



 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 Is
su

e 
Ac

tio
n 

tak
en

 a
nd

 n
ex
t 

ste
ps

 
Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

Ma
int
ain

 a
n 

on
go
ing

 
dri
ve
 to

 de
live

r d
ec
en
t 

ho
me

s 
sta

nd
ard

 
by
 

en
su
rin
g t

he
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 

AL
MO

 a
ch
iev

es
 t
wo

 
sta

rs.
 

A 
mo

ck
 in

sp
ec
tio
n 

of 
the

 
Co

un
cil’
s 

Ar
ms

 
Le
ng
th 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on
 

(To
we

r H
am

let
s 
Ho

me
s) 

is 
pla

nn
ed
 fo

r m
id 

Ju
ne
 20

09
. 

Th
is 
wil
l a

llo
w 
the

 A
LM

O 
to 

foc
us
 ke

y a
rea

s. 
Fro

m 
dis

cu
ss
ion

s t
ha
t h

av
e 

tak
en
 pl
ac
e w

ith
 th

e H
om

es
 

an
d C

om
mu

nit
y A

ge
nc
y a

nd
 

the
 

De
pa
rtm

en
t 

of 
Co

mm
un
itie

s 
an
d 

Lo
ca
l 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t, 

fun
din

g 
for

 
thi
s s

ch
em

e i
s p

rog
ram

me
d 

wit
hin

 
the

ir 
fin
an
cia

l 
pro

jec
tio
ns
 

alt
ho
ug
h 

the
 

fun
din

g 
is 

no
t 

ful
ly 

co
mm

itte
d a

t th
is 
sta

ge
. T

he
 

au
tho

rity
 is
 al
so
 pr

og
res

sin
g 

oth
er 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 a
rou

nd
 

reg
en
era

tio
n 

{P
rio
rity

 
2.1

 
(15

) –
 St

rat
eg
ic 
Pla

n}.
  

Fo
llo
win

g 
the

 in
dic

ati
ve
 in

sp
ec
tio
n 
a 
ful
l r
ep
ort

 o
f t
he
 s
erv

ice
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

n h
as
 be

en
 un

de
rta

ke
n b

y T
HH

.  T
his

 ha
s b

ee
n 

rev
iew

ed
 by

 D
 & 

R 
clie

nt 
an
d d

isc
us
sio

ns
 ab

ou
t it
s e

ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 

are
 on

go
ing

.  I
n a

dd
itio

n p
rog

res
s h

as
 be

en
 m
ad
e o

n i
de
nti
fyi
ng
 

an
d 
im
ple

me
nti
ng
 s
erv

ice
s 
pro

vid
ed
 to

 T
HH

 b
y 
the

 C
ou
nc
il 

un
de
r S

LA
’s 

wh
ich

 w
ill 
bo
th 

im
pro

ve
 p
erf

orm
an
ce
 a
nd
 re

du
ce
 

co
sts

; th
is 
wo

rk 
is 
on
go
ing

 un
de
r th

e d
ire
cti
on
 of
 D
 &
 R
 cl
ien

t a
t 

the
 Q
ua
rte

rly
 S
tra

teg
ic 
Me

eti
ng
s w

ith
 T
HH

.  
Th

e a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

for
 pr

ep
ari
ng
 th

e 2
01
0/1

1 d
eli
ve
ry 

pla
n u

nd
er 

the
 te

rm
s o

f t
he
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ag
ree

me
nt 

are
 al
so
 be

ing
 re

vie
we

d s
uc
h t

ha
t th

e 
an
nu
al 

ag
ree

me
nt 

wil
l b

e 
fit 

for
 p
urp

os
e 
an
d 
ca
pa
ble

 o
f b

ein
g 

mo
nit
ore

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 b
y 

the
 C

ou
nc
il. 

 T
he
 H

RA
 s

toc
kta

ke
 

un
de
rta

ke
n a

s p
art

 of
 th
e 2

01
0/1

1 b
ud
ge
t p
roc

es
s h

as
 id
en
tifi
ed
 

are
as
 fo

r c
os
t r
ed
uc
tio
n 
an
d 
ad
dit
ion

al 
fin
an
cia

l im
pro

ve
me

nt 
wh

ich
 w
ill a

lso
 be

 dr
ive

n f
orw

ard
 vi
a t
he
 Q
SM

.  T
he
 G
ov
ern

me
nt 

ha
s r
ec
en
tly
 de

cid
ed
 to
 de

fer
 de

ce
nt 
ho
me

s f
un
din

g f
or 

all
 th
os
e 

AL
MO

’s 
wh

ich
 ha

ve
 no

t y
et 
rea

ch
ed
 2*

 w
hic

h i
nc
lud

e T
HH

.   
Th

e C
ou
nc
il is

 pa
rt o

f a
 Lo

nd
on
 w
ide

 D
ec
en
t H

om
es
 Ta

sk
 Fo

rce
 

ch
arg

ed
 w
ith
 fin

din
g w

ay
s t

o f
un
d t

he
 pr

og
ram

me
 in
 th

e f
utu

re 
alt
ho
ug
h 

thi
s 

is 
cu
rre

ntl
y 
su
sp
en
de
d 

by
 g

ov
ern

me
nt.
  

Th
e 

Co
un
cil 

ha
s a

gre
ed
 fu

nd
ing

 fo
r d

ec
en
t h

om
es
 pi
lot
s i
n 2

00
9/1

0 
an
d 
20
10
/11

 fr
om

 its
 o
wn

 ca
pit
al 

res
ou
rce

s. 
 T
he
se
 p
ilo
ts 

wil
l 

als
o 

pro
vid

e 
im
po
rta

nt 
da
ta 

for
 
pla

nn
ing

 
the

 
on
go
ing

 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

, 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne
wa

l 

Page 56



Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 Is
su

e 
Ac

tio
n 

tak
en

 a
nd

 n
ex
t 

ste
ps

 
Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

pro
gra

mm
e. 

 A
 C
ap
ita
l B

oa
rd 

ha
s b

ee
n 
es
tab

lish
ed
 w
hic

h 
wil
l 

mo
nit
or 

pro
gre

ss
 o

n 
the

 d
ec
en
t 
ho
me

s 
an
d 

reg
en
era

tio
n 

pro
gra

mm
es
 to
 en

su
re 

the
y a

re 
pro

pe
rly
 m
an
ag
ed
. 

Page 57



 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

Iss
ue

 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s

tep
s 

Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

To
 

im
pro

ve
 

the
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
for

 
sic

kn
es
s a

bs
en
ce
. 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t 

ma
na
ge
rs 

are
 

tak
ing

 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity

 
for

 
ma

na
gin

g 
sic

kn
es
s 

ca
se
s, 

red
uc
ing

 
ab
se
nc
e 
an
d 
eff
ec
tiv
e 
rep

ort
ing

 
an
d 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 is

 in
 p

lac
e 

at 
co
rpo

rat
e, 

dir
ec
tor

ate
 

an
d 

se
rvi
ce
 le
ve
ls 
to 
red

uc
e s

ick
ne
ss
 

ab
se
nc
e 

(bo
th 

lon
g-t

erm
 a

nd
 

sh
ort

-te
rm

) is
 ta
kin

g p
lac

e. 
 O
ve
r 

20
08
/09

, 
fur

the
r 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 

are
 p
lan

ne
d 
to 

red
uc
e 
sic

kn
es
s 

by
 en

su
rin
g c

om
pli
an
ce
.  

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
als

o p
lan

s t
o a

do
pt 

a h
ea
lth
 an

d w
ell
be
ing

 st
rat

eg
y, 

in 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith
 N

HS
 T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
to 

pro
mo

te 
po
sit
ive

 
he
alt
h 

an
d 

se
lf-a

wa
ren

es
s 

of 
ind

ivid
ua
l l
ev
els

 o
f h

ea
lth
 a

nd
 

ris
ks
 at

trib
ute

d t
o t

he
 w
ork

pla
ce
, 

ho
me

 a
nd
 li
fes

tyl
e 
{P
rio
rity

 1
.2 

(3)
 – 
Str

ate
gic

 Pl
an
}. 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 H

um
an
 R

es
ou
rce

 T
ea
ms

 ro
uti
ne
ly 

as
k 
ma

na
ge
rs 

to 
co
nfi
rm

 
the

y 
ha
ve
 
he
ld 

me
eti
ng
s 

un
de
r 

the
 
Sic

kn
es
s 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Pr
oc
ed
ure

 o
nc
e 

rec
ord

s 
sh
ow

 o
ne
 o

f 
the

ir 
em

plo
ye
es
 ha

s r
ea
ch
ed
 a 
trig

ge
r p

oin
t. 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Hu
ma

n 
Re

so
urc

es
 c

arr
ied

 a
n 

au
dit
 o

f 
a 

ran
do
m 

sa
mp

le 
of 

the
 m

an
ag
em

en
t o

f 1
0 
em

plo
ye
es
 a
bs
en
ce
 d
uri
ng
 

20
08
/9.
  T

his
 co

nfi
rm

ed
 th
at 
in 
all
 ca

se
s e

xa
mi
ne
d m

an
ag
ers

 ha
d 

ap
pli
ed
 th

e 
Sic

kn
es
s 
Pr
oc
ed
ure

 a
nd
 w

ere
 k
ee
pin

g 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 
rec

ord
s. 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 re

po
rts
 ar

e p
rod

uc
ed
 fo
r P

RG
 an

d C
MT

 on
 a 

qu
art

erl
y 

ba
sis

 w
ith
 P
RG

 id
en
tify

ing
 S
erv

ice
 H
ea
ds
 w
ith
 th

e h
igh

es
t le

ve
ls 

of 
sic

kn
es
s i
n t

he
irs
 te

am
 an

d r
eq
uir
ing

 th
em

 to
 at

ten
d t

o e
xp
lai
n 

ho
w 

the
y 
are

 m
an
ag
ing

 a
bs
en
ce
 in

 th
eir
 s
erv

ice
.  

Na
me

s 
of 

ma
na
ge
rs 

wh
o 

fai
l 
to 

co
mp

let
e 

the
ir 

ab
se
nc
e 

ret
urn

s 
are

 
cir
cu
lat
ed
 to

 C
MT

 to
 in

str
uc
t m

an
ag
ers

 in
 th

eir
 D

ire
cto

rat
e 
to 

co
mp

let
e 

it. 
 T

he
 C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e 

rai
se
s 

an
y 
co
nc
ern

s 
wit

h 
me

mb
ers

 of
 C
MT

 du
rin
g t
he
ir 1

-1s
. 

Oc
cu
pa
tio
n H

ea
lth
 ha

s a
lso

 be
en
 re

str
uc
tur

ed
 to

 en
su
re 

a g
oo
d 

lev
el 

of 
se
rvi
ce
, s

taf
fed

 by
 pe

rm
an
en
t e

mp
loy

ee
s, 

is 
av
ail
ab
le 

to 
su
pp
ort

 m
an
ag
ers

.  
A 

He
alt
hy
 W

ork
pla

ce
 M

an
ag
er 

ha
s 
be
en
 

rec
rui
ted

 to
 w
ork

 ac
ros

s t
he
 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 N
HS

 to
we

r H
am

let
s. 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 

Page 58



 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

Iss
ue

 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s

tep
s 

Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

En
ha
nc
e 

the
 

be
ne
fits

 
de
riv
ed
 

fro
m 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

of 
SX

3 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Ma
jor
 
W
ork

s 
for

 
Le
as
eh
old

ers
. 

A 
nu
mb

er 
of 

sy
ste

ms
 r
ela

ted
 

iss
ue
s 

ari
sin

g 
fro
m 

the
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

of 
SX

3 
to 

ac
co
un
t fo

r le
as
eh
old

er 
ch
arg

es
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
ide

nti
fie
d. 

A 
pro

jec
t 

tea
m 

cre
ate

d 
to 

de
al 

wit
h 

the
 

iss
ue
 h
as
 d
ev
elo

pe
d 
an
 a
cti
on
 

pla
n 
an
d 
is 

wo
rki
ng
 to

 c
lea

ns
e 

da
ta,
 p
rov

ide
 u
se
r t
rai
nin

g, 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
 s

ys
tem

s 
an
d 

co
ntr

ol 
aro

un
d 

the
 s

oft
wa

re 
{P
rio
rity

 
2.1

.4.
1 

– 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne
wa

l’s 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 Pl

an
}. 

Mo
re 

tha
n 

99
% 

of 
ac
co
un
ts 

ha
ve
 n

ow
 a

ch
iev

ed
 L

ev
el 

1. 
 

Cle
an
lin
es
s i
.e.
 th
e t
ran

sa
cti
on
s w

ith
in 
the

 ac
co
un
ts 
are

 ba
lan

ce
d. 
 

Ho
we

ve
r, t

he
re 

are
 st
ill c

as
h m

isa
llo
ca
tio
ns
 w
ith
in 
so
me

 ac
co
un
ts.
  

Th
e I
T s

olu
tio
ns
 to
 th
is 
pro

ble
m 
are

 be
ing

 sc
op
ed
 an

d t
he
 so

lut
ion

 
mo

nit
ore

d 
by
 th

e 
Jo
int
 IT

 B
oa
rd 

wh
ich

 is
 o

ve
rse

ein
g 

the
 IT

 
de
ve
lop

me
nts

, a
gre

ein
g t
he
 pr

ior
itis

ati
on
 of
 th
e w

ork
 an

d e
ns
uri
ng
 

tha
t b
oth

 C
orp

ora
te 
IT 

an
d T

HH
 IT

 cl
ien

t w
ork

 to
ge
the

r e
ffe
cti
ve
ly.
  

Th
ere

 is
 al
so
 cr

os
s a

cc
ou
nta

bil
ity
 to

 th
e J

oin
t L

ea
se
ho
ld 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Ch
arg

e 
De

bt 
Bo

ard
 e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 to

 p
rov

ide
 a

 m
ore

 fo
cu
ss
ed
 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o r

ed
uc
ing

 le
as
eh
old

er 
de
bt.
  B

oth
 w
ork

 st
rea

ms
 re

po
rt 

int
o t

he
 ov

era
ll D

 &
 R
 cl
ien

t m
on
ito
rin
g p

roc
es
s t
o e

ns
ure

 ac
tio
ns
 

are
 ca

ptu
red

, p
rio
riti
se
d a

nd
 re

vie
we

d a
nd
 ag

ree
d o

utc
om

es
 ar

e 
ac
hie

ve
d t
o t
im
e. 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

, 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d R

en
ew

al 

Page 59



 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

Iss
ue

 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s

tep
s 

Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

To
 

rev
iew

 
an
d 

en
su
re 

the
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

for
 

sa
feg

ua
rdi
ng
 

ch
ild
ren

. 

Fo
llo
win

g 
na
tio
na
l 
sc
rut

iny
 o

f 
sa
feg

ua
rdi
ng
 i
ss
ue
s, 

an
d 

the
 

pu
bli
ca
tio
n o

f L
am

ing
 re

po
rt, 

the
 

Co
un
cil 

is 
rev

iew
ing

 re
fer

ral
 an

d 
sa
feg

ua
rdi
ng
 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

wit
h 

so
cia

l c
are

 an
d w

he
re 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 
str
en
gth

en
ing

 
cu
rre

nt 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 a

nd
 a

do
pt 

the
 

DC
FS

 
/ 

La
mi
ng
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s. 

So
me

 
ke
y 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

ha
ve
 al
rea

dy
 be

en
 im

ple
me

nte
d, 

for
 e
xa
mp

le 
the

 a
pp
oin

tm
en
t o

f 
an
 i
nd
ep
en
de
nt 

ch
air
 f
or 

the
 

Sa
feg

ua
rdi
ng
 
Bo

ard
, 

ca
rry

ing
 

ou
t 

au
dit
 a

nd
 a

ss
ura

nc
e 

on
 

ca
se
s w

ith
in 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

an
d 

en
ha
nc
ing

 
the

 
us
e 

of 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
I, t

he
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 ca

se
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
sy
ste

m 
{P
rio
rity

 1
, 

Sta
y S

afe
, C

YP
P}
. 

Ch
ild
ren

 s
ch
oo
ls 

an
d 

fam
ilie

s 
se
rvi
ce
 c
on
tin
ue
 to

 fo
cu
s 
an
d 

res
po
nd
 to
 th
e e

me
rgi
ng
 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 of
 th
e L

am
ing

 re
vie

w.
  

Th
ere

 a
re 

ve
ry 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
fin
an
cia

l i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 fo

r t
he
 c
ou
nc
il 

em
erg

ing
, a
s f
or 

all
 lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
tie
s i
nit
ial
ly 
 

Fo
cu
s o

f o
ur 

ea
rly
 w
ork

 re
ma

ins
 o
n 
go
ing

, t
he
 in

itia
l a

ud
it w

ork
 

ha
s 

be
en
 c

om
ple

ted
 a

nd
 a

pp
rop

ria
te 

ac
tio
n 

tak
en
. 
W
e 

are
 

de
ve
lop

ing
 a 

To
we

r H
am

let
s w

ell
 be

ing
 m

od
el 

to 
ca
ptu

re 
in 

on
e 

pla
ce
 o
ur 

mu
lti-
ag
en
cy
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t, 
thr

es
ho
ld,
 a
nd
 in

ter
ve
nti
on
 

reg
im
e. 

Bo
th 

the
 L
SC

B 
an
d 
the

 C
hil
dre

n’s
 T
rus

t a
re 

wo
rki
ng
 o
n 

sp
ec
ific

 co
mp

on
en
ts 
in 
lig
ht 
of 
gu
ida

nc
e w

hic
h i
s i
n t
he
 pr

oc
es
s o

f 
be
ing

 pr
od
uc
ed
 by

 ce
ntr
al 
go
ve
rnm

en
t. 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

, 
Ch

ild
ren

, 
Sc

ho
ols

 
an
d 

Fa
mi
lie
s 

Page 60



 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

Iss
ue

 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s

tep
s 

Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

Im
pro

ve
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

ac
ros

s 
the

 au
tho

rity
. 

Fo
llo
win

g 
los

s 
of 

pe
rso

na
l d

ata
 

by
 a
n 
em

plo
ye
e, 

a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

ste
ps
 ar

e b
ein

g t
ak
en
 to

 m
ilita

te 
ag
ain

st 
fut
ure

 l
os
se
s 

an
d 

to 
pro

tec
t t
he
 in

for
ma

tio
n 
he
ld 

by
 

the
 

Co
un
cil.

 
So

me
 

of 
the

 
ini
tia
tes

 a
lre
ad
y 

tak
en
 i
nc
lud

e 
the

 us
e o

f B
IO
S 
pa
ss
wo

rds
 an

d 
the

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
pro

jec
ts 
tha

t 
loo

k 
to 

en
cry

pt 
da
ta 

an
d 

inf
orm

ati
on
 {P

rio
rity

 1
.7,
 p
oin

t 7
 

– 
Ch

ief
 E

xe
cu
tiv
e’s

 D
ire
cto

rat
e 

Pla
n}.

 

Th
e 
Co

un
cil,

 fo
llo
win

g 
ex
ten

siv
e 
an
aly

sis
 a
nd
 d
isc

us
sio

n 
wit

h 
ind

us
try
 ex

pe
rts
, h
as
 pr

ep
are

d a
 so

lut
ion

 w
hic

h w
ill e

ns
ure

 th
at 
all
 

po
rta

ble
 m

ed
ia 

su
ch
 a
s l
ap
top

s a
nd
 d
ata

 st
ick

s, 
are

 e
nc
ryp

ted
.  

Th
e p

roc
ure

me
nt 

of 
the

 pr
od
uc
t h

as
 ju
st 
be
en
 co

mp
let
ed
 an

d t
he
 

so
lut
ion

 is
 be

ing
 ro

lle
d o

ut.
 

As
sis

tan
t 

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
 

Page 61



 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

Iss
ue

 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s

tep
s 

Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

To
 

mo
de
l 

an
 

eff
icie

nc
y 

pro
gra

mm
e 
to 

tak
e 

ac
co
un
t o
f th

e l
ike

ly 
red

uc
tio
n 

in 
rev

en
ue
 

fun
din

g 
ac
ros

s 
the

 p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r. 

Th
e 

au
tho

rity
’s 

me
diu

m 
ter

m 
fin
an
cia

l 
str
ate

gy
 

ha
s 

be
en
 

ref
res

he
d 

an
d 

se
ts 

ou
t 

the
 

fun
din

g 
ne
ed
s 

to 
de
live

r 
the

 
Co

un
cil’
s 

pri
ori
tie
s 

for
 
thr

ee
 

ye
ars

 fr
om

 2
00
9/1

0 
to 

20
11
/12

. 
Th

e 
str
ate

gy
 
rec

og
nis

es
 
the

 
ne
ed
 to

 m
ak
e e

ffic
ien

cy
 sa

vin
gs
 

in 
co
mi
ng
 ye

ars
 an

d s
ets

 ou
t th

e 
lev

el 
of 

sa
vin

gs
 fo

r e
ac
h 
of 

the
 

thr
ee
 y

ea
rs.
 T

he
 a

uth
ori
ty 

is 
tak

ing
 ac

tiv
e s

tep
s t
o c

on
tin
ue
 to
 

pro
vid

e i
ts 
se
rvi
ce
s w

ith
 re

du
ce
d 

fun
din

g {
Pr
ior
ity
 1.
2 (

5) 
Str

ate
gic

 
Pla

n a
nd
 pr

ior
ity
 8 

– R
es
ou
rce

’s 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 Pl

an
}. 

Eff
icie

nc
y 
me

as
ure

s 
for

 2
01
1/1

2 
wh

ich
 n

ee
d 

to 
be
 d

eli
ve
red

 
thr

ou
gh
 pr

oje
ct 

or 
pro

gra
mm

e m
an
ag
em

en
t h

av
e b

ee
n i
de
nti
fie
d 

an
d i
nc
orp

ora
ted

 in
 th
e e

ffic
ien

cy
 pr

og
ram

me
. T

he
 cu

rre
nt 
bu
dg
et 

pro
ce
ss
 is

 id
en
tify

ing
 s
im
ila
r p

rop
os
als

 fo
r 2

01
2/1

3. 
 In

div
idu

al 
pro

jec
ts 

an
d 

pro
gra

mm
es
 a

re 
be
ing

 m
on
ito
red

 t
hro

ug
h 

the
 

rel
ev
an
t B

oa
rd 

an
d a

n o
ve
ral
l d
as
hb
oa
rd 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o m
on
ito
rin
g 

the
 ef
fic
ien

cy
 pr

og
ram

me
 is
 al
so
 be

ing
 de

ve
lop

ed
, w

hic
h w

ill 
als

o 
en
su
re 

tha
t p
rog

res
s t
ow

ard
s t
he
 fin

an
cia

l d
eli
ve
rab

les
 of
 pr

oje
cts

 
are

 m
on
ito
red

. 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 

Page 62



 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

Iss
ue

 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s

tep
s 

Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

En
ha
nc
e 

the
 

be
ne
fits

 
de
riv
ed
 

fro
m 

eff
ec
tiv
e 

co
ntr

ac
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
ke
y 

co
ntr

ac
ts 

wit
h 

the
 

pri
va
te 
se
cto

r.  

Th
e c

ou
nc
il d

eli
ve
rs 
a n

um
be
r o

f 
its
 s
erv

ice
s 
in 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith
 

the
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

r.  
Th

e a
uth

ori
ty 

ha
s 

rec
og
nis

ed
 t
he
 s

co
pe
 t
o 

en
ha
nc
e 

cu
rre

nt 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 

to 
im
pro

ve
 th

e 
va
lue

 it
 a
tta
ins

 
fro

m 
its
 le
ga
l a
gre

em
en
ts 
an
d a

s 
su
ch
, i
s 
de
ve
lop

ing
 a

 c
on
tra

ct 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
too

lkit
 to

 a
ch
iev

e 
en
ha
nc
ed
 ou

tco
me

s {
Pr
ior
ity
 9 

– 
Re

so
urc

e’s
 D
ire
cto

rat
e P

lan
}.  

Th
e 
Co

ntr
ac
tin
g 
To

olk
it 
is 

no
w 

av
ail
ab
le 

on
 th

e 
int
ran

et.
 

Ad
dit
ion

all
y, 

co
ntr

ac
t m

an
ag
em

en
t i
s 
inc

lud
ed
 a
s 
a 
co
re 

mo
du
le 
of 
the

 in
ter

na
l p
roc

ure
me

nt 
tra

ini
ng
 pr

og
ram

me
, a
nd
 

the
 to

llg
ate

 pr
oje

ct 
as
su
ran

ce
 pr

oc
es
s p

rov
ide

s a
 sc

rut
iny

 of
 

co
ntr

ac
t m

an
ag
em

en
t p
rop

os
als

. 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 

Page 63



 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

Iss
ue

 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s

tep
s 

Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

To
 

rev
iew

 
an
d 

en
su
re 

the
 d
eli
ve
ry 

of 
ad
dit
ion

al 
ho
us
ing

 t
o 

red
uc
e 

ov
erc

row
din

g. 

Th
e 

co
un
cil 

is 
co
mm

itte
d 

to 
pro

vid
ing

 hi
gh
 qu

ali
ty 
ho
us
ing

 in
 

lin
e 

wit
h 

the
 
ne
ed
s 

of 
the

 
co
mm

un
ity
. T

o 
ac
hie

ve
 th

is,
 a
 

pro
gra

mm
e 
is 

be
ing

 d
ev
elo

pe
d 

to 
ac
qu
ire
 

an
d 

ne
w 

bu
ild
 

pro
pe
rtie

s 
to 

red
uc
e 

ov
erc

row
din

g 
{P
rio
rity

 2
.1 

(1)
 –
 

Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
}. 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il a

im
s t
o r

ed
uc
e o

ve
rcr

ow
din

g t
hro

ug
h a

 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 

ne
w 
bu
ild
 an

d a
cq
uis

itio
ns
. T

his
 is
 be

ing
 do

ne
 pr

inc
ipa

lly 
thr

ou
gh
 

5 
rou

tes
. 1

) N
ew

 b
uil
d 
ne
go
tia
ted

 fr
om

 p
riv
ate

 d
ev
elo

pe
rs,
 2
) 

Bu
ild
ing

 C
ou
nc
il H

ou
sin

g i
tse

lf, 
3) 

Bu
ild
ing

 fa
mi
ly 
ho
us
ing

 on
 in
fill 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 w
ith
 a 

pre
fer

red
 pa

rtn
er,

 4)
 B
uy
ing

 ba
ck
 ex

-co
un
cil 

RT
B 

3 
be
d 

plu
s 

pro
pe
rtie

s 
5) 

Re
vie

win
g 

the
 s

ub
-re

gio
na
l 

no
mi
na
tio
ns
 ag

ree
me

nt.
 

Pr
og

res
s: 

1) 
In 

20
08
/9 

2,8
39
 n
et 

ad
dit
ion

al 
un
its
 w
ere

 b
uil
t o

f w
hic

h 
1,0

76
 

we
re 

aff
ord

ab
le 

an
d 1

59
 w
ere

 so
cia

lly 
ren

ted
 fa

mi
ly 
ho
us
ing

. I
n 

20
09
/10

 so
 fa

r w
e 
ha
ve
 b
uil
t 6

61
 n
ew

 u
nit
s o

f w
hic

h 
47
6 
we

re 
aff
ord

ab
le 

of 
wh

ich
 1
76
 w

ere
 la

rge
 fa

mi
ly 

siz
ed
 so

cia
lly 

ren
ted

 
ho
us
ing

.  
 2) 

Th
e 
co
un
cil 

ha
s 
se
cu
red

 fu
nd
ing

 to
 s
tar

t b
uil
din

g 
co
un
cil 

ho
us
ing

 its
elf
 fr
om

 th
e 
HC

A. 
W
e 
wil
l b

uil
d 
17
 u
nit
s, 

ho
us
ing

 8
6 

pe
rso

ns
 ov

er 
5 s

ite
s. 
Th

e C
ou
nc
il h

av
e p

ut 
in 
a b

id 
for

 a 
se
co
nd
 

wa
ve
 of

 fu
nd
ing

 fo
r 8

8 u
nit
s h

ou
sin

g 4
64
 pe

op
le.
 O
utc

om
e o

f th
e 

se
co
nd
 w
av
e f
un
din

g b
id 
wil
l b
e a

nn
ou
nc
ed
 in
 D
ec
em

be
r 2

01
0. 
 

 3) 
Th

e C
ou
nc
il w

ish
 to

 ca
rry
 ou

t a
n i
nit
ial
 pi
lot
 to

 bu
ild
 31

 un
its
 of

 
fam

ily 
siz

ed
 h
ou
sin

g 
wit

h 
a 
pre

fer
red

 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p

art
ne
r o

n 
sm

all
 pl
ots

 of
 co

un
cil 

lan
d. 

Th
ey
 w
ill 
be
 a 

mi
xtu

re 
of 

3 b
ed
, 4

 be
d 

an
d 5

 be
ds
.  S

ite
s h

av
e b

ee
n i
de
nti
fie
d, 
a p

ref
err

ed
 pi
lot
 pa

rtn
er 

is 
on
 bo

ard
 an

d t
he
 si
tes

 ar
e n

ow
 go

ing
 th
rou

gh
 pl
an
nin

g. 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

, 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d R

en
ew

al 

Page 64



Go
ve
rn
an

ce
 

Iss
ue

 
Ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 an
d n

ex
t s

tep
s 

Pr
og

res
s M

ad
e T

o D
ate

 
CM

T L
ea
d  

 4) 
Bu

yin
g 

ba
ck
 e

x-c
ou
nc
il 

3 
be
d 

plu
s 

Rig
ht 

to 
Bu

ys
 

pro
pe
rtie

s. 
So

 fa
r t
his

 ye
ar 

we
 h
av
e 
co
mp

let
ed
 2
5 
sa
les

 w
hic

h 
wil
l b

en
efi
t 5

0 
ov
erc

row
de
d 
ho
us
eh
old

s. 
W
e 
ha
ve
 a
no
the

r 5
2 

off
ers

 a
cc
ep
ted

. T
his

 w
ill 

be
ne
fit 

a 
fur

the
r 
10
4 

ov
erc

row
de
d 

ho
us
eh
old

s. 
 W
e 

are
 a

cti
ve
ly 

pu
sh
ing

 f
or 

a 
rev

iew
 o

f 
the

 s
ub
-re

gio
na
l 

no
mi
na
tio
ns
 ag

ree
me

nt 
to 
ma

xim
ise

 ho
us
ing

 fo
r lo

ca
l re

sid
en
ts.
 

 
  

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



   

 1 

  
REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 
15 December 
2009 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 

 

REPORT OF: 
 
Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Service Head Risk Management  
 

 
Update on Risk Management 
 
 
 
Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 
 
 

1. Summary 
1.1 This report gives an update on the Council’s risk management 

arrangements. The purpose of this report is to give members of the 
committee an oversight of the authority’s processes to facilitate the 
identification and management of significant business risks. The report 
also captures the risks reported to the CMT as part of risk management 
update on 3 November 2009. 
 

  
2. Recommendation 
2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note:  
 

• the contents of this report; and 
• the actions planned over the next year to embed risk management 

in section 8 of this report. 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 

Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

  Minesh Jani – 0207 364 0738 
 

 

Agenda Item 64

Page 67



   

 2 

 
3. Background 
3.1 Risk management is an integral part of good corporate governance. 

There are many definitions of corporate governance but the one used 
by CIPFA is “….. the procedures associated with the decision making, 
performance and control of organisations, with providing structures to 
give overall direction to the organisation and to satisfy expectations of 
accountability to those outside it”.  

 
3.2 All organisations face risks in everything that they do but by the proper 

management of its risks, organisations can benefit reducing their 
significance; either by reducing the level of impact, or making the risk 
less likely to happen. Over the last few years, the use of risk 
management as a tool in the public sector has gained strength as the 
appreciation of how risk management can be used as a technique for 
delivering an efficient and effective service to all its stakeholders. This 
is demonstrated in guidance issued by CIPFA / SOLACE, “Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government”, which makes reference to the 
need for effective management of risks and suggest how authorities 
can use audit committees to support a framework for effective systems 
of internal control.  The Use of Resources assessments have also 
focused on risk management as an integral part of sound systems of 
internal control. 

 
3.3 At its inception, risk management came into being from failures in the 

private sector where seemingly sound organisations failed 
spectacularly. The focus was initially on the financial viability of such 
organisations and how financial risk was being managed.  Increasingly 
however, the proactive approach to dealing with issues afforded by the 
risk management technique is acknowledged. Risk management is 
thus applied not just the financial consideration, but equally if not more 
so to non financial considerations including  the management of all 
resources, reputational management, promoting innovation, supporting 
decision making and developing effective performance management. 

 
 
4. Corporate Risk Register 
4.1 The review of risk at an operational and strategic level continues on a 

quarterly basis at directorate and corporate levels. A timetable is in 
place to aid all directorates capture key risks and assess their 
significance. The methodology adopted by the authority to assess and 
prioritise key risks is used to focus attention on those risks that require 
attending to. Significant risks are examined at directorate level and any 
risk that remains significant after existing control  are taken into 
account (residual risk) are reported to the Corporate Management 
Team (CMT) so that they can be considered further. This process 
allows all risks to be captured, including project and programme risks, 
contract, financial, reputational risks etc. 

Page 68



   

 3 

5. Risk Champions Meeting 
5.1 Each directorate has nominated a key individual to be the risk 

champion for their directorate. Their role includes to:- 
 

• Update and maintain directorate risks on JCAD Risk every 
quarter; 

• Facilitate the embedding of risk management within the 
directorate; 

• Maintain close liaison on risk and risk dynamics with 
individual service heads and DMT collectively  

• Challenge officers in their directorate in their assessment of 
risk and seek explanations over the proposed actions to 
manage the risk; 

• Build a risk-aware culture within their directorate and 
disseminate good risk management practices; 

• Provide advice and assistance as required; 
• Obtain an update on planned actions from appropriate 

service heads for reporting to CMT; and 
• Bring significant risks to the attention of the CMT.   

 
5.2 The risk champions continue to meet every quarter and this forum 

provides a channel by which significant operational, project, contract, 
emergent or partnership risk can be included in the corporate risk 
process.  

 
5.3 The CMT last received an update on current risks on 3 November 

2009.  The main changes to risks and new and emerging risks 
identified in the report are summarised below.  

 
  Two emergent risks were identified and reported to at the last CMT, 

these being:   
 
 
 The “Southwark Judgement”  
 

  Identified at the last quarter, the status of this risk continues to be 
monitored. Its main aspects are that the recent “Southwark Judgement”, 
placing statutory responsibility on to local authorities to house homeless 
children (particularly 16-17 year olds), is identified as an emergent and 
significant financial risk and one which could become both corporate and 
directorate in its nature.  

Page 69



   

 4 

 
 The Working Neighbourhood Fund  
 

  Also identified in the previous quarter and likewise continues to be 
monitored. The key aspect of this risk from the Working Neighbourhood Fund 
(WNF) is whether it can fund as intended up to 4,000 sustainable jobs in the 
borough and also whether its programmes and projects can be effectively 
administrated and managed to evidence performance against agreed funding 
outcomes.  

 
The main corporate changes to risks identified in the CMT report are 
summarised below. :-   

 
 DRD0002 - Financial penalties for not achieving the CRC Energy 
Efficiency Scheme. This risk was emergent in the previous quarter and has 
now crystallized. It threatens financial levies for authorities that do not meet 
the desired target, fail to maintain the evidence pack or miss statutory 
deadlines. 
 
 CEBD0001 – Failure to deliver a credible public awareness campaign 
and also within budget for Tower Hamlets Together. It is foreseen that 
questions in the media, Whitehall about the Council, its probity and integrity as 
an authority able to properly manage public funds in an accountable and open 
manner could arise. Ultimately there could be damage to reputation impacting 
upon the ability to apply for and receive government aid/funding. 
 
 Swine Flu – A number of directorates have identified the risks arising 
from swine flu, in particular, services with social care. This is also a prominent 
risk for the Communications team. In this report, the nature of risk affecting 
each directorate has been shown to allow members to form a holistic view of 
the interdependencies of the risks. 
 
 
 Strategic Risk Register 
 

  The strategic risk register captures significant risks within directorates 
and is a key part of the corporate planning process. Over the last quarter, the 
main changes in risks deemed to be significant and/or to be newly-reported to 
the Audit Committee are as follows:- 
 
 
 At Development and Renewal 
 
 DRA0001 – Failure to deliver Decent Homes by 2016. The 
consequences of this risk impacting are seen as an adverse impact on the 
Council's CAA, loss of some £200M in funding, failure to improve stock and 
also damaged and downgraded reputation. 
 
 DRC0002 - Resources required by the Directorate to deliver its 
priorities are not available or not sustainable. The impacts of this risk are 

Page 70



   

 5 

identified as the requirement to make compensatory savings to balance 
budget, low staff morale, failure to deliver community, strategic and directorate 
priorities. Additionally, a failure to recruit/retain key staff, to develop and 
maintain systems as well as a negative impact on wider performance 
frameworks (CAA) is also foreseen. 
 
 At Resources 
 
 RSB0010 – Future settlement will be much lower than the current level. 
The current level of funding (in real terms) is seen as unsustainable requiring 
planning to meet the expected shortfalls. Consequences of this risk include 
inability to fund key priorities and service plans, revision of existing growth and 
savings plans and also revision of the MTFP.  
 
 RSC0001 - ICT service model for the ALMO not achieved. The impacts 
of this risk are envisaged to be reputation loss, loss of future budget and 
business and loss of economies of scale. 
 
 RSE0002 - The cost of administrative buildings may increase 
substantially from 2010/11 with any shortfall having to be made up from other 
sources of funding.  
 
 RSB0014 - Failure to deliver Financial Management Review 
Programme. The main consequence of this risk is seen as an inability to 
develop a financial management response to public sector spending cuts 
 
 Communities, Localities and Culture 
 
 CL002 – The Procurement Project for the Waste Strategy does not 
deliver a solution that is within budget. This is a financial risk wherein 
significant growth is required in future waste disposal budgets to cover the 
rising cost of waste disposal services. 
 
 CL0013 – Council IT infrastructure and externally provided IT services. 
The key aspect of this risk is seen as an inability of the Council to meet 
performance targets on public internet access and resultant/causal low 
customer satisfaction ratings. 
 
 At Adult Health & Wellbeing  
 
 AHC0001 – Insufficient capacity to manage sickness levels and other 
HR tasks is seen as potentially creating an adverse impact on the ability to 
deliver services. 
 
 AH0009 – Personalisation – Targets are not met in giving clients 
choice and control. The main consequences of this risk are seen as criticism 
from external inspectors, reputational downgrading, potential implications for 
attracting government funding and depressed staff moral 
 

Page 71



   

 6 

 AH0010 – Personalisation – New resource allocation system leads to 
AHWB budget being overspent. Enforced financial cutbacks, possible 
redundancies and depressed staff morale are seen as potential 
consequences of this risk. 
 
 AH0012 – The expected swine flu pandemic impacts on AHWB 
capacity to maintain essential services. 
 
 At Children Families and Schools  
 
 CSD0006 –Implementation of actions arising from the Laming report 
into Baby P may require additional financial resource. Identified as an 
emergent risk in the previous quarter, this risk has now formed. Children 
Schools and Families, like all other local authority children’s services 
departments, are waiting for the detailed response to the Laming 
recommendations to be made by the DCFF, which has yet to come, and 
which may require/necessitate further increases in resource levels in order for 
the recommendations to be implemented. 
 
 CSF0003 - There may be a failure to maintain the performance rating 
under the new Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA). Consequences 
believed to impact in relation to this risk are loss of reputation, depressed staff 
morale, loss of funding and loss of flexibilities.  
 
 CSG0005 - The financial risk around the BSF programme and the 
existing PFI scheme with a linked and consequential delay in implementing 
capital investment works into schools. The primary potential impact of this risk 
is seen as the cost of coming out of the PFI scheme or amending the existing 
scheme having to be met from council funds. Additionally there could be a 
delay in funding being delivered into BSF schools (5 schools @ £70m). 
 

 
5.4 For all significant risks, action plans are in place to reduce the Council’s 
overall exposure from the risks. 
 

Page 72



   

 7 

 

6. Embedding Risk Management 
6.1 Over recent months, a number activities have been initiated to further 

embed risk management, including: 
 

• Half day training courses for risk management as part of the 
corporate Learning and Development programme; 

• Induction to risk management for new starters; 
• Risk management workshops for services to develop their risk 

management practices; 
• Implementation and roll-out council-wide of the JCAD Risk 

Management database ; 
• Migration of all risk data previously held on ad hoc spreadsheets to 

the JCAD database; 
• JCAD Risk presentations to all DMTS; 
• JCAD Risk training to all risk champions and also to date to over 

90% of all service-heads council-wide; 
• On-going discussions with officers to extend the JCAD Risk system 

to capture major project risks; 
• Improved functionality and reporting capability (speed, accuracy, 

efficiency and quality) in risk management via the JCAD database  ; 
• On going assistance and advice to senior officers across the 

authority; 
• A review and update of the risk management guidance used  by 

staff and managers; 
• Development of an e-learning tool capturing risk management, 

money laundering,  and anti fraud; 
• A simplification of the corporate and strategic risks  and the 

accompanying procedures; 
• A review of a number of electronic solutions to assist in the 

management and reporting of risks with a view to procuring a 
practical software;  

• Creation of a Terms of Reference for the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership Risk Management Group which has been proposed to 
the Group, this arising from two meeting of the Group that took 
place over recent months with a third meeting to take in December 
2009; 

• Creation of a web portal to share best practice around partnership 
risks with key stakeholders within Tower Hamlets, such as the 
police, pct etc; and 

• On-going discussions around the development of a risk 
management policy protocol with the Interim Director of Tower 
Hamlets Partnerships for Tower Hamlets Partnerships to link in with 
a review of the governance arrangements at the Partnership.  

Page 73



   

 8 

 
7. Use of Resources 
7.1 Under the Use of Resources assessment, the Audit Commission 

assessed risk management as an element of Internal Control. For 
2008/09, their assessment scored risk management 3 out of 4, which 
means that this area is performing well. To try and improve on this 
score under the Comprehensive Area Agreement, a number of actions 
are proposed, as detailed below. 

 
 
8. Next Steps 
8.1 The following key actions are in hand to further enhance the risk 

management process by: 
 

• Further developing and consolidating use of the JCAD Risk 
Management database at the Council, specifically, extending use of 
JCAD to capture and report key project risks; 

• Enhancing key performance indicators for monitoring the 
effectiveness of the risk management process; 

• Undertaking further risk awareness and influencing briefings 
focused at member-level; 

• Enhance risk management processes around project management; 
• Continuing to lead, develop and embed the role of the Partnership 

Risk Management Group as a means of increasing the 
effectiveness of the risk management process; 

• Continuing to strengthen the Council’s operational and professional 
links with community and national risk register processes as 
established by the Civil Contingencies Act (2004), and to utilise 
these to inform and constructively challenge the Council’s existing 
risk management arrangements and assumptions; 

• Producing a Risk Management policy protocol for the Tower 
Hamlets Partnership (THP) that is owned and complies with best 
practice in the public sector whilst recognising the unique role of the 
Partnership in this arena; 

• Capturing sustainability impact appraisals to support strategic policy 
decisions; 

• Developing an effective e-learning tool further, which will facilitate a 
more flexible learning and provide a robust arrangement for training, 
particularly new starters; and 

• Continuing to provide a relationship of effective training and support 
to the Council and its key partners, including third sector 
organisations where appropriate. 

 

Page 74



   

 9 

 
9. National Risk Register 
9.1 The Audit Committee may be aware that the Cabinet Office published 

the National Risk Register in November 2008, which was reported to 
CMT on 16 December 2008 and subsequently to the Audit Committee 
in January 2009. The register was intended to capture the range of 
emergencies that might have a major impact on all, or significant parts 
of the UK. The register provides an assessment that the UK and its 
citizens could face over the next five years and is categories into three 
parts; accidents, natural events (collectively known as hazards) and 
malicious attacks (threats). 

 
9.2 The Cabinet Office is updating the national risk register and plans to 

publish updates in the new year.  
 
10. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
10.1 These are contained within the body of this report. 
 
11. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive 

(Legal Services) 
 
11.1 There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.   
 
12. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 
12.1 There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising from this 

report. 
 
13. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 
13.1  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 
14. Risk Management Implications  
 
14.1 The revised control environment should pick up the areas 

identified as of concern and reduce the residual risk. 
 
15. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
15.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



 
    
    
    
     

 1

 
 
 

  
REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 
15 December 
2009 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 
 

 
REPORT OF: 
 
Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Service Head Risk Management  
 

 
 Revised Internal Audit Plan 

2009/10 
 

 
 Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 
 
 
 

1. SUMMARY 
 
This report provides an update of audit activity planned for this financial year and reflects 
changes made to the original internal audit plan as a result of changing priorities of the 
authority and the resources available to perform audit work.   
 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1  The Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and to endorse 

the changes to the 2009/10 internal audit plan. 
 
 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 

And address where open to inspection 
  Minesh Jani – 0207 364 0738 

 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 65

Page 77



 
    
    
    
     

 2

 
3. Background 

 
3.1 The original internal audit plan was prepared at the start of the current financial 

year and was presented to the Audit Committee for endorsement in March 2009. 
The internal audit plan was formulated using the governance model whereby four 
key areas were assessed for all operations of the Council and prioritised. Details 
of the governance based Audit Assessment methodology and the Audit Strategy 
are attached at Appendix 3. The audit plan also made provision for review of key 
financial systems, proactive fraud work and reactive fraud work.  

 
3.2 In line with the internal audit strategy, the plan has been refreshed and some 

changes made to the original annual audit plan. The reasons for this are as 
follows:  

 
� Requests from officers to perform audits that were not originally 

planned; 
 
� Changes made to existing systems and the need to allow a period of 

bedding in; 
 

� Make use of days provided in the original plan that had not been 
allocated to specific audits; 

 
� To avoid duplication of work with either the external auditor or other 

assurance provider; and 
 

� Additional commitment to unplanned work. 
 

� Provide a vacancy allowance for a post which is currently vacant and 
to be filled in by April 2010. 

 

Page 78



 
    
    
    
     

 3

 
4. Updated Internal Audit Plan for 2009/10 
 
4.1 Appendix 1 summarises audits that have been added to or deferred from the 

original internal audit plan.  Appendix 2 shows the updated internal audit plan 
following the changes and provides for provision of unallocated days which could 
be used for specific audits at the request of Directorates, thus retaining some 
flexibility in the plan.  The summary below shows how the plan has changed. 

 
Number of days originally planned    1,882 
 
Plus: Additional audits added to the plan       120 
(Please refer to Appendix 1) 
 
Less: Allocation of days to specific audits        75 
 
 
Number of days per the amended plan    1,927 
 

  
5. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1 These are contained within the body of this report. 
 
6. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
6.1 There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.   
 
7. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 
7.1 There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising from this report. 
 
8. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 
8.1  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 
9. Risk Management Implications  
 
9.1 The revised control environment should pick up the areas identified as of 

concern and reduce the residual risk. 
 
10. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
10.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 
 

Page 79



Page 80



   
    

 5 

 
Appendix 1 

A Summary of Changes to the Internal Audit Plan – 2009/10 
 
 
Auditable Area Directorate No. of days 
   
Audits Added / Amendments  to the 
Original Plan 

  

Legal Planning Meetings for Child 
Protection Cases 

Assistant Chief Executive 15 

Control and Monitoring of Void 
Dwellings – Stepney/Wapping 

THH 10 

Control and Monitoring of Void 
Dwelling Keys – Other Housing Areas 

THH 15 

Management and control over garages, 
sheds etc. 

THH 15 

Service Charges - Recovery Resources 10 
Directorate Based Budgetary Control  CLC, D&R and CSF 30 
Pension Fund Investment  
 

Resources 10 
Translation Service 
 

CSF 15 
Sub Total 
 

 120 
Management and Monitoring of Local 
Public Service Agreements 

Chief Executive’s 20 
Caretaking Services 
 

THH 15 

Use of Unallocated days CLC 20 
Use of Unallocated days CSF 5 
Use of Unallocated days AHW 15 
Sub Total  75 
 

Page 81



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Pa
ge
 1 

Re
vi
se
d 
Au

di
t P

la
n 
fo
r 2

00
9/
10
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
2 

 
 

Or
igi

na
l 

Au
dit

 D
ay
s 

Re
vis

ed
 

Au
dit

 D
ay
s 

Pa
ge

s 
Co

rpo
rat

e S
ys
tem

s a
nd
 C
ou
nc
il–
wid

e r
ev
iew

s 
15
0 

13
0 

2-4
 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e’s

 
30
 

10
5 

5-6
 

Ch
ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

38
7 

40
7 

6-9
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Lo
ca
litie

s &
 C
ult
ure

 
12
0 

90
 

10
-11

 
To

we
r H

am
let
s H

om
es
 

15
0 

17
0 

12
-15

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
& R

en
ew

al 
90
 

70
 

15
-16

 
Ad

ult
, H

ea
lth
 an

d W
ell
be
ing

 
75
 

40
 

17
 

Re
so
urc

es
 & 

co
re 

fin
an
cia

l s
ys
tem

s 
26
0 

29
5 

18
-20

 
Co

ntr
ac
t a
ud
it  

50
 

50
 

21
 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 Te

ch
no
log

y a
ud
its
  

13
0 

13
0 

21
 

VF
M 
an
d P

ro-
ac
tiv
e f
rau

d 
70
 

70
 

22
 

Fo
llo
w 
up
, m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 re

ac
tiv
e f
rau

d p
rov

isio
n 

37
0 

37
0 

22
 

To
tal

 Pr
ov

isi
on

 
1,8

82
 

19
27
 

- 
 

  
  

Page 82



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

2 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 
3 

 

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e P

rio
rit
ies

 

Co
rp
or
ate

 Sy
ste

ms
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Cli
ma

te 
Ch

an
ge
  

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge
 an

d c
arb

on
 

red
uc
tio
n i
nit
iat
ive

s. 

M 
20
 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 an

d R
isk

 
Re

gis
ter

 
A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Im
pro

ve
 th
e e

nv
iro
nm

en
t 

an
d t
ac
kle

 cl
im
ate

 
ch
an
ge
. 

 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Sa

fet
y 

Fo
llo
win

g r
ec
en
t c
ha
ng
es
 in
 th
e 

leg
isla

tiv
e r

eq
uir
em

en
ts,
 th
is 
au
dit
 

wil
l s
ee
k t
o p

rov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

ov
er 

the
 so

un
dn
es
s a

nd
 ad

eq
ua
cy
 

of 
He

alt
h a

nd
 Sa

fet
y i
ss
ue
s a

t 
wo

rk 
pla

ce
. 

 

H 
20
 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 an

d R
isk

 
Re

gis
ter

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 

Es
tab

lish
me

nt 
Co

ntr
ols

 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 th
e 

sy
ste

ms
 fo
r c
on
tro

llin
g a

nd
 

ma
na
gin

g e
sta

bli
sh
me

nt 
lev

els
 

wit
hin

 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s. 

H 
20
 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Page 83



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

3 

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e P

rio
rit
ies

 

Co
rp
or
ate

 Sy
ste

ms
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

De
bt 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
(C
ou
nc
il W

ide
) 

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 th
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 

the
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
de
bt 
ho
list

ica
lly 

ac
ros

s t
he
 au

tho
rity

. 

H 
20
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
req

ue
st 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
Co

re 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Pr
oc
es
se
s 

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill l

oo
k t
o a

ss
es
s 

ho
w 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 co
re 

pro
ce
ss
es
 

rel
ati
ng
 to
 pe

op
le 
are

 ap
pli
ed
 in
 

pra
cti
ce
 su

ch
 as

 in
du
cti
on
, P

DR
s, 

tra
ini
ng
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t. 

H 
15
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
req

ue
st 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 

Page 84



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

4 

 
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e P

rio
rit
ies

 

Co
rp
or
ate

 Sy
ste

ms
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Ris
k M

an
ag
em

en
t 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar

e a
n i
mp

ort
an
t 

pa
rt o

f it
s A

ss
ura

nc
e F

ram
ew

ork
.  

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 an
d r

ep
ort

 
up
on
 th
e s

ou
nd
ne
ss
 of
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 

ide
nti
fyi
ng
, a
ss
es
sin

g a
nd
 

ma
na
gin

g k
ey
 ris

ks
 to
 th
e C

ou
nc
il 

at 
Str

ate
gic

, D
ire
cto

rat
e a

nd
 al
so
 

at 
Se

rvi
ce
 le
ve
l. 

 

H 
20
 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 

Co
ntr

ac
t m

an
ag
em

en
t 

an
d m

on
ito
rin
g 

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 th
e 

Co
un
cil’

s a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
for

 
en
su
rin
g s

ou
nd
 co

ntr
ac
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d m

on
ito
rin
g 

ac
ros

s a
ll D

ire
cto

rat
es
. 

H 
15
 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 

Page 85



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

5 

 
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e P

rio
rit
ies

 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f 

Ex
ec
uti

ve
’s 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Me
mb

ers
 Al

low
an
ce
s 

 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 fo
r 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 co

ntr
oll
ing

 
all
ow

an
ce
s t
o t
he
 m
em

be
rs 
of 
the

 
Co

un
cil.

 
 

M 
15
 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 

Le
ga
l P

lan
nin

g 
Me

eti
ng
s 

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 
an
d c

on
tro

ls 
in 
pla

ce
 fo
r le

ga
l 

pla
nn
ing

 m
ee
tin
gs
 fo
r c
hil
d 

pro
tec

tio
n c

as
es
 

  

M 
15
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Re

qu
es
t 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 

Ch
arg

es
 on

 Pr
op
ert

y  
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r p

utt
ing

 ch
arg

es
 

on
 pr

op
ert

y t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
wh

ere
 

de
bt 
rec

ov
ery

 or
 ot
he
r 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 ha

ve
 fa
ile
d, 

the
 in
co
me

 du
e t
o t
he
 C
ou
nc
il is

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

ly 
se
cu
red

. 

M 
15
 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

Ap
pro

ac
h t
o 

Ma
ins

tre
am

 G
ran

ts 

W
e w

ill r
ev
iew

 th
e s

ys
tem

s a
nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 fo
r c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 

se
rvi
ce
s f
rom

 th
e t
hir
d s

ec
tor

 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 us

ing
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 

M 
20
 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 

Page 86



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

6 

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e P

rio
rit
ies

 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

W
ork

ing
 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d F

un
d 

Th
e s

co
pe
 of
 th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill b

e t
o 

rev
iew

 sy
ste

ms
 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 m
on
ito
rin
g t
he
 W

N 
fun

din
g. 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 an

d 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
req

ue
st 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Lo
ca
l A

rea
 

Ag
ree

me
nts

 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r e

ns
uri
ng
 th
at 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r d

eli
ve
rin
g t
he
 

ke
y t
arg

ets
 an

d o
utc

om
es
 of
 LA

A 
.ar

e s
ou
nd
 an

d s
ec
ure

. 
 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 6-

An
aly

sis
  

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d F
am

ily
 

 
 

 
 

 

Bu
ild
ing

 Sc
ho
ols

 fo
r 

the
 Fu

tur
e 

Th
e s

co
pe
 of
 th
is 
au
dit
 w
ou
ld 
be
 to
 

rev
iew

 th
e p

roc
ure

me
nt 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r th

e w
av
e 5

 of
 

se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

 BS
F i
nit
iat
ive

 
an
d p

rim
ary

 Sc
ho
ols

 C
ap
ita
l 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

A c
urr

en
t c
on
tra

ct 
au
dit
 w
ill b

e 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 
on
 th
e b

uil
din

g w
ork

s a
t 

the
 tw

o s
am

ple
 sc

ho
ols

 in
 th
e B

SF
 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

  

H 
25
 

Ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

 C
S1

7 
an
d C

S1
8 a

nd
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
. 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il. 

 A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Su
pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 

Page 87



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

7 

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e P

rio
rit
ies

 

 
Co

mm
on
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of
 th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill b

e t
o 

ex
am

ine
 sy

ste
ms

 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 
an
d c

on
tro

llin
g t
he
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n 

of 
the

 C
AF

. 

H 
20
 

Ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

 C
S2

0 
an
d A

ud
it N

ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
. 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

. 
Em

po
we

r v
uln

era
ble

 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt 

fam
ilie

s. 
 

Co
nta

ctP
oin

t 
Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n a

nd
 

Ac
cre

dit
ati
on
  

 

Th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 an
d u

se
 of
 th
e 

Co
nta

ctP
oin

t s
ys
tem

 re
qu
ire
s 

ac
cre

dit
ati
on
 ch

ec
ks
 by

 In
ter

na
l 

Au
dit
.  T

his
 au

dit
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 to
 th
e n

ati
on
al 
CP

 te
am

 
an
d t
he
 D
CF

S t
ha
t a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

ma
de
 by

 LB
TH

 ar
e s

ou
nd
 an

d 
se
cu
re.

 
  

H 
15
 

Ris
k r
eg
ist
er 

an
d 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
. 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

. 
 Em

po
we

r 
vu
lne

rab
le 

pe
op
le 

an
d 

su
pp
ort

 
fam

ilie
s. 

 

So
cia

l C
are

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 an
d 

Cli
en
t M

on
ito
rin
g 

 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e s

ys
tem

s 
in 
pla

ce
 fo
r c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 an

d 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 so

cia
l c
are

 se
rvi
ce
s f
or 

ch
ild
ren

 m
an
ag
ed
 by

 th
e S

tra
teg

y, 
Po

licy
 an

d P
art

ne
rsh

ips
 se

rvi
ce
 of
 

the
 D
ire
cto

rat
e. 

H 
20
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
req

ue
st 
an
d A

ud
it 

Ne
ed
s a

na
lys

is.
 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

. 
Em

po
we

r 
vu
lne

rab
le 

pe
op
lea

nd
 su

pp
ort

 fa
mi
lie
s. 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Page 88



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

8 

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e P

rio
rit
ies

 

 
. 

Sc
ho
ols

' R
eg
ula

rity
 

Au
dit
  

Sc
ho
ol 
vis

its
 ar

e u
nd
ert

ak
en
 us

ing
 

a r
isk

 ba
se
d a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 re

vie
w 

ma
inl
y t
he
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 fo
r 

sc
ho
ol 
go
ve
rna

nc
e, 
bu
dg
et 

pla
nn
ing

 an
d c

on
tro

l, a
cc
ou
nti
ng
 

an
d f
ina

nc
ial
 co

ntr
ol,
 pu

rch
as
ing

, 
pe
rso

nn
el/
pa
yro

ll a
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 

an
d c

on
tro

l, I
T S

ec
uri
ty 
an
d a

ss
et 

ma
na
ge
me

nt.
 

H 
22
4 

Fro
m 
Au

dit
 N
ee
ds
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
 

A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Su
pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil 

 
Fin

an
cia

l M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Sta
nd
ard

s f
or 

Pr
im
ary

 
an
d S

ec
on
da
ry 

Sc
ho
ols

 

Th
e D

CF
S’s

 gu
ida

nc
e r

eq
uir
es
 

big
ge
r p

rim
ary

 sc
ho
ols

 to
 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
go
od
 fin

an
cia

l 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 by

 
31
/03

/20
10
.  T

he
 S1

51
 of
fic
er 

wil
l 

ne
ed
 to
 sh

ow
 th
at 
the

 st
an
da
rds

 
se
t b
y t
he
 D
CF

S h
av
e b

ee
n m

et,
 

or 
an
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 is
 in
 pl
ac
e t
o 

me
et 
the

 st
an
da
rds

. W
e p

lan
 to
 

vis
it t
he
 re

sp
ec
tiv
e n

um
be
r o

f 
pri
ma

ry 
sc
ho
ols

 du
rin
g t
he
 ye

ar 
an
d i
nte

gra
te 
the

 D
CF

S’s
 fin

an
cia

l 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
sta

nd
ard

s i
nto

 ou
r 

au
dit
 pr

og
ram

me
 fo
r s
ch
oo
ls.
 

H 
68
 

DC
FS

 re
gu
lat
ion

 on
 

fin
an
cia

l 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
sta

nd
ard

s a
t 

sc
ho
ols

 in
 lin

e w
ith
 

the
 D
CF

S t
oo
lkit

.  

A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Su
pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 
 On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Page 89



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

9 

 
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

ab
le 
Sy

ste
m 

Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e P

rio
rit
ies

 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d 

co
ntr

ol 
of 
su
rpl
us
 

ba
lan

ce
s 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill s

ee
k t
o p

rov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 on

 th
e s

ys
tem

s a
nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

, 
co
ntr

oll
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g s

ch
oo
ls 

su
rpl
us
 ba

lan
ce
s. 

 

H 
10
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
req

ue
st 
an
d a

ud
it 

ne
ed
s a

na
lys

is 
A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Su
pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Tra
ns
lat
ion

 se
rvi
ce
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 th
e 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
tra

ns
lat
ion

 se
rvi
ce
 

M 
15
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Re

qu
es
t 

A 
Pr
os

pe
ro
us

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Su
pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll. 
 

Bu
dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol 
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 sy
ste

ms
 fo
r 

bu
dg
et 
se
ttin

g a
nd
 bu

dg
eta

ry 
co
ntr

ol 
 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 an

d 
Ex

ter
na
l A

ud
it 

req
uir
em

en
t a
s k

ey
 

fin
an
cia

l s
ys
tem

  

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Page 90



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

10
 

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Lo

ca
liti

es
 an

d C
ult

ur
e 

 
 

 
 

 

Re
cy
clin

g o
f h
ou
se
ho
ld 

wa
ste

 co
ntr

ac
t 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

Ou
r s
co
pe
 fo
r th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill 

inc
lud

e C
ou
nc
il’s

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

for
 m
an
ag
ing

 an
d m

on
ito
rin
g t
he
 

rec
yc
lin
g c

on
tra

cts
. 

H 
20
 

Ris
k r
eg
ist
er 

an
d 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 

A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
Im
pro

ve
 th
e 

en
vir
on
me

nt 
an
d t
ac
kle

 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge
. 

 
AS

BO
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

an
d e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

 

Th
e s

co
pe
 of
 th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill 

inc
lud

e t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 sy
ste

ms
 fo
r 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 en

for
cin

g A
nti
-

So
cia

l B
eh
av
iou

r O
rde

rs.
 

 

M 
20
 

Ris
k r
eg
ist
er 

an
d 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
. 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d 
Su

pp
or
tiv

e 
Co

mm
un

ity
. 

 Em
po
we

r 
vu
lne

rab
le 

pe
op
le 

an
d 

su
pp
ort

 
fam

ilie
s. 

 Ta
ck
le 

an
d 

Pr
ev
en
t 

Cr
im
e. 

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 th
e s

ys
tem

 
of 
go
ve
rna

nc
e t
o r

eg
ula

te 
the

 
bu
sin

es
s o

f th
e L

BT
H 
str
ate

gic
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

. 
 

H 
20
 

Ris
k r
eg
ist
er 

H1
 / 

H2
 an

d A
ud
it 

Ne
ed
s a

na
lys

is.
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 91



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

11
 

 
Au

dit
 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Hig
hw

ay
s w

ork
s 

 

Th
e s

ys
tem

s a
nd
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s f
or 

ma
na
gin

g a
nd
 co

ntr
oll
ing

 re
pa
irs
 

an
d m

ain
ten

an
ce
 w
ork

s t
o 

hig
hw

ay
s a

nd
 fo
otw

ay
s w

ill b
e 

ex
am

ine
d d

uri
ng
 th
is 
au
dit
. 

 

M 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Bu
dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 sy
ste

ms
 fo
r 

bu
dg
et 
se
ttin

g a
nd
 bu

dg
eta

ry 
co
ntr

ol 
 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 an

d 
Ex

ter
na
l A

ud
it 

req
uir
em

en
t a
s 

ke
y f
ina

nc
ial
 

sy
ste

m 
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Page 92



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

12
 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 

 

 
Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Fin
an
cia

l S
ys
tem

s 
Th

is 
rev

iew
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 
as
su
ran

ce
 on

 th
e s

ou
nd
ne
ss
 an

d 
ad
eq
ua
cy
 of
 th
e c

om
pa
ny
’s 

fin
an
cia

l s
ys
tem

s a
nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

.  T
his

 w
ill i

nc
lud

e 
sy
ste

ms
 fo
r tr

ea
su
ry 

ma
na
ge
me

nt,
 VA

T, 
ac
co
un
tin
g, 

Ba
nk
 R
ec
on
cili

ati
on
, C

red
ito
rs,
 

Pa
yro

ll e
tc.
 

 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
 

Th
is 

au
dit
 w

ill 
se
ek
 t
o 

pro
vid

e 
as
su
ran

ce
 

tha
t 

sy
ste

ms
 

an
d 

pro
ce
du
res

 
in 

pla
ce
 

for
 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
are

 
so
un
d, 

se
cu
re 

an
d 
are

 c
om

pli
ed
 

wit
h. 

 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 

Ne
ed
s 

an
aly

sis
 

ris
k 

reg
ist
er 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Bu
dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol 

 
Sy

ste
ms

 fo
r p

lan
nin

g c
on
tro

llin
g 

an
d m

on
ito
rin
g b

ud
ge
ts 
wil

l b
e 

ex
am

ine
d i
n t
his

 au
dit
. 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Page 93



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

13
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 

 

 
Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d c

on
tro

l 
of 
Ke

ys
 to
 vo

id 
dw

ell
ing

s 
– S

tep
ne
y W

ap
pin

g 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

  
for

 m
an
ag
ing

 de
ca
nts

 an
d k

ey
s 

co
ntr

ol 
for

 vo
id 
dw

ell
ing

s i
n 

Oc
ea
n E

sta
te.
 

H 
10
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Re

qu
es
t 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d c

on
tro

l 
of 
Ke

ys
 to
 vo

id 
dw

ell
ing

s 
– o

the
r H

ou
sin

g A
rea

s 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

  
for

 ke
ys
 co

ntr
ol 
for

 vo
id 
dw

ell
ing

s 
in 
oth

er 
ho
us
ing

 ar
ea
s. 

H 
15
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Re

qu
es
t 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
ga
rag

es
, 

sh
ed
s e

tc.
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 
an
d c

on
tro

ls 
for

 m
an
ag
ing

 an
d 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 ga

rag
es
 an

d s
he
ds
 in
 

all
 H
ou
sin

g a
rea

s 

H 
15
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
req

ue
st 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Str
ate

gic
 M
an
ag
em

en
t o
f 

SL
As

 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 th
e 

so
un
dn
es
s a

nd
 ad

eq
ua
cy
 of
 

sy
ste

ms
 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 an
d 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 SL

As
 fo
r v
ari
ou
s 

se
rvi
ce
s. 

M 
 

10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
  

Page 94



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

14
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 

 

 
Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Sy
ste

ms
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

wo
rk 
 

 

Th
e o

bje
cti
ve
 of
 th
is 
wo

rk 
wil

l b
e 

to 
ad
vis

e m
an
ag
em

en
t o
n 

pro
ce
du
res

 an
d c

on
tro

ls 
du
rin
g 

the
 sy

ste
ms

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 
sta

ge
s. 

H 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Co
ntr

ac
t A

ud
its
 

A s
am

ple
 of
 bu

ild
ing

 co
ntr

ac
ts 

wil
l b
e s

ele
cte

d t
o t
es
t th

e 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r a

dm
ini
ste

rin
g 

an
d m

an
ag
ing

 th
es
e c

on
tra

cts
 to
 

pro
vid

e a
ss
ura

nc
e o

n c
os
t a
nd
 

pro
gra

mm
e c

on
tro

l. 
 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
  

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Ho
us
ing

 R
ep
air
s 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 
for

 m
an
ag
ing

 an
d c

on
tro

llin
g 

rep
air
s t
o h

ou
sin

g d
we

llin
gs
 

ma
na
ge
d b

y T
HH

.  A
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

for
 m
on
ito
rin
g t
he
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 of
 

the
 re

pa
irs
 co

ntr
ac
tor

s w
ill a

lso
 

be
 re

vie
we

d. 
 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er.

 
A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

. 
 Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 
ho
us
ing

 an
d s

tro
ng
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
. 

 

Page 95



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

15
 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 

 
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Fo
llo
w 
Up

 Au
dit
s 

 
W
e w

ill c
arr

y o
ut 
fol
low

 up
 au

dit
s 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 

ma
de
 ar

e p
rog

res
se
d a

nd
 

im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 

H 
20
 

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

 
 

 
 

 

As
se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t 

 
Th

is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 
for

 m
an
ag
ing

 th
e a

ss
ets

 of
 th
e 

Co
un
cil 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t it
s s

tra
teg

ic 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d p
rio
riti
es
 ar

e 
ac
hie

ve
d. 

 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

DR
9. 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d 

co
ntr

ol 
of 
Pla

nn
ing

 
Pe

rm
iss

ion
s 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 
for

 m
an
ag
ing

 an
d c

on
tro

llin
g 

pla
nn
ing

 pe
rm

iss
ion

s. 
 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
  

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Ho
me

les
sn
es
s a

nd
 

Te
mp

ora
ry 

Ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 sy

ste
ms

 in
 

pla
ce
 fo
r c
ap
tur

ing
 ho

me
les

sn
es
s 

ca
se
s a

nd
 th
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 

pla
cin

g t
he
m 
in 
tem

po
rar

y 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
. 

M 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

. 
Em

po
we

r v
uln

era
ble

 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt 

fam
ilie

s. 

Page 96



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

16
 

   
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
 

Da
ys
 

 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Bu
dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol 
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 sy
ste

ms
 fo
r 

bu
dg
et 
se
ttin

g a
nd
 bu

dg
eta

ry 
co
ntr

ol 
 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 an

d 
Ex

ter
na
l A

ud
it 

req
uir
em

en
t a
s 

ke
y f
ina

nc
ial
 

sy
ste

m 
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
 

Co
un
cil.

 
 

Page 97



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

17
 

 
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Ad
ult

s, 
He

alt
h a

nd
 

We
llb

ein
g 

 
 

 
 

 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e o

f P
oo
led

 
Ag

ree
me

nts
 an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s 

 

Th
is 
rev

iew
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 

go
ve
rna

nc
e s

ys
tem

s a
nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 fo
r p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 ot
he
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s 

to 
pro

vid
e a

du
lt s

erv
ice

s. 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

AS
5 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

. 
 Em

po
we

r 
vu
lne

rab
le 

pe
op
le 

an
d 

su
pp
ort

 
fam

ilie
s. 

 
Int
eg
rat

ed
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 of
 

Me
nta

l H
ea
lth
 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill r

ev
iew

 th
e s

ys
tem

s 
an
d c

on
tro

ls 
for

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

me
nta

l h
ea
th 
se
rvi
ce
s f
or 

ad
ult
s 

us
ing

 th
e i
nte

gra
ted

 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 ap

pro
ac
h. 

M 
20
 

Ris
k r
eg
ist
er 

AS
11
 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

. 
 Em

po
we

r v
uln

era
ble

 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt 

fam
ilie

s. 
          

Page 98



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

18
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Re
so

ur
ce
s 

 
 

 
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

 W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
. 

Ho
us
ing

 an
d C

ou
nc
il 

Ta
x B

en
efi
t 

 
H 

20
 

 
 

Ge
ne
ral
 Le

dg
er 

inc
l. 

Bu
dg
eta

ry 
Co

ntr
ol 

 
H 

20
 

 
 

Ca
sh
ier
s /
 C
as
h 

inc
om

e 
 

H 
10
 

 
 

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x 

 
H 

15
 

 
 

Su
nd
ry 
De

bto
rs 

inc
lud

ing
 R
ec
ov
ery

 an
d 

W
rite

 of
fs 

Re
vie

ws
 of
 ke

y f
ina

nc
ial
 

sy
ste

ms
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 

to 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
in 
pre

pa
rin
g i
n 

the
 an

nu
al 
sta

tem
en
t o
f 

ac
co
un
ts 
an
d t
o s

up
po
rt t

he
 

au
tho

rity
’s 
“m

an
ag
ed
” a

ud
it 

ap
pro

ac
h. 
 

H 
15
 

 
Au

dit
 ne

ed
s 

an
aly

sis
 

 

Cr
ed
ito
rs 

 
H 

20
 

  
 

Ca
pit
al 
Ac

co
un
tin
g 

 
H 

10
 

 
 

Pe
ns
ion

s 
 

H 
    
  1
0 

 
 

N.
N.
D.
R.
 

 
H 

10
 

 
 

Pe
rso

nn
el/
Pa

yro
ll 

 
H 

20
 

 
 

Page 99



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

19
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ho
us
ing

 R
en
ts 

 
H 

10
 

 
 

Inv
es
tm
en
ts 

/Lo
an
s/P

rud
en
tia
l 

Bo
rro

win
g 

 
H 

10
 

 
 

Su
pp
ort

 th
e w

ork
 of
 

Ex
ter

na
l A

ud
it b

y 
Ma

pp
ing

 Ke
y F

ina
nc
ial
 

Sy
ste

ms
 

Fo
llo
win

g t
he
 re

qu
ire
me

nt 
of 
the

 
Int
ern

ati
on
al 
Au

dit
ing

 St
an
da
rds

 
to 
ma

p a
ll m

ate
ria
l fi
na
nc
ial
 

sy
ste

ms
, w

e h
av
e a

gre
ed
 w
ith
 

Ex
ter

na
l A

ud
it t
o c

om
ple

te 
thi
s 

pro
ce
ss
 ov

er 
thr

ee
 ye

ars
.  

 

H 
35
 

To
 id
en
tify

 ke
y 

co
ntr

ols
 th
at 

fac
ilita

tes
 go

od
 

fin
an
cia

l 
go
ve
rna

nc
e. 
 

 

Co
mp

eti
tiv
e t
en
de
rin
g  

 
Th

is 
rev

iew
 w

ill 
se
ek
 to

 p
rov

ide
 

as
su
ran

ce
 o

ve
r 
the

 s
ou
nd
ne
ss
 

an
d 

ad
eq
ua
cy
 o

f 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 
co
mp

eti
tiv
e 

ten
de
rin
g 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

for
 

pro
cu
rin
g 

wo
rks

, g
oo
ds
 an

d s
erv

ice
s. 
 

 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
  

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
. 

Pa
rki
ng
 Pe

rm
its
 

  

Sy
ste

ms
 

an
d 

pro
ce
du
res

 
for

 
iss

uin
g v

ari
ou
s p

ark
ing

 pe
rm

its
 by

 
the

 
Co

un
cil’

s 
Ch

ief
 
Ca

sh
ier
s 

Of
fic
e 

an
d 

by
 O

ne
 S

top
 S

ho
ps
 

wil
l b
e r

ev
iew

ed
. 

  

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
. 

Page 100



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

20
 

IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Se
rvi
ce
 C
ha
rge

s -
 

Re
co
ve
ry 

Th
is 

rev
iew

 w
ill 

ex
am

ine
 t

he
 

sy
ste

m 
in 

pla
ce
 fo

r e
ns
uri
ng
 th

at 
se
rvi
ce
 

ch
arg

es
 

de
bts

 
are

 
rec

ov
ere

d 
in 

ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h 

pro
ce
du
res

 

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s 

an
aly

sis
 an

d 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
req

ue
st 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 

On
e. 

VA
T M

an
ag
em

en
t 

Th
is 

au
dit
 

wil
l 

rev
iew

 
the

 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 fo

r m
an
ag
ing

 a
nd
 

ad
mi
nis

ter
ing

 
VA

T 
ac
ros

s 
the

 
Co

un
cil.

 

H 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s 

an
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 

On
e. 

Pe
ns
ion

 
Fu

nd
 

– 
Inv

es
tm
en
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Th

is 
au
dit
 

wil
l 

rev
iew

 
the

 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 fo

r 
ma

na
gin

g 
the

 
inv

es
tm
en
t o

f it
s P

en
sio

n F
un
d t

o 
en
su
re 

tha
t 
ke
y 

reg
ula

tor
y 

an
d 

leg
isla

tiv
e 

req
uir
em

en
ts 

are
 

co
mp

lie
d w

ith
. 

M 
10
 

Au
dit
 ne

ed
s 

an
aly

sis
 an

d A
ud
it 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 
req

uir
em

en
t 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 

On
e. 

Gr
an
t C

lai
m 

-  T
ea
ch
ers

  
Pe

ns
ion

s R
etu

rn 
Th

is 
is 

an
 a

nn
ua
l a

ud
it 

wh
ich

 
ex
am

ine
d 

the
 

de
du
cti
on
, 

pro
ce
ss
ing

 
an
d 

pa
ym

en
t 

of 
tea

ch
ers

’ p
en
sio

ns
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

o 
pro

vid
e 

as
su
ran

ce
 to

 t
he
 A

ud
it 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 c
ert

ify
ing

 th
e 
Gr
an
t 

Cla
im
. 

  

H 
15
 

Au
dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

 
req

uir
em

en
t  

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 as
 O
ne
. 

Page 101



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

21
 

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Co
ntr

ac
t A

ud
it 

 
 

 
 

 

Co
ntr

ac
t A

ud
it R

ev
iew

s 
Th

es
e a

ud
its
 w
ill e

xa
mi
ne
 

sa
mp

le 
ca
pit
al 
an
d r

ev
en
ue
 

co
ntr

ac
ts 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t re

qu
ire
d 

wo
rks

/se
rvi
ce
s a

re 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 

an
d p

rov
ide

d a
nd
 th
at 
pa
ym

en
ts 

ma
de
 w
ere

 in
 lin

e w
ith
 th
e 

co
ntr

ac
t o
bli
ga
tio
ns
. 

H 
50
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

An
aly

sis
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 

On
e. 

 Inf
or
ma

tio
n 

Te
ch

no
log

y A
ud

its
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

To
 be

 de
ter

mi
ne
d f
rom

 
op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
 

an
aly

sis
 / m

an
ag
em

en
t 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

A s
ep
ara

te 
Co

mp
ute

r A
ud
it P

lan
 

wil
l b
e d

ev
ise

d f
oll
ow

ing
 th
e 

rev
iew

 of
 th
e c

om
pu
ter

 au
dit
 

str
ate

gic
 pl
an
. T

he
 pl
an
 w
ill 

inc
lud

e a
pp
lica

tio
n r

ev
iew

s 
en
co
mp

as
sin

g t
he
 ke

y f
ina

nc
ial
 

sy
ste

ms
. 

- 
13
0 

Ris
k R

eg
ist
ers

 C
O5

 
an
d m

an
ag
em

en
t 

req
ue
st 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 

On
e. 

Page 102



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

22
 

 
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PL

AN
 – 
20
09
/10

 
 

Au
dit

 N
am

e 
Br
oa

d S
co

pe
 

Ri
sk
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Au

dit
  

Da
ys
 

So
ur
ce
 of

 A
ud

it 
Lin

k w
ith

 C
or
po

rat
e 

Pr
ior

itie
s 

Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey
 

Au
dit

s 
 

 
 

 
 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
of 

Te
mp

ora
ry 

Ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
  

 

Th
is 
au
dit
 w
ill p

rov
ide

s 
as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
the

 so
un
dn
es
s 

an
d a

de
qu
ac
y o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r p

roc
uri
ng
 

tem
po
rar

y a
cc
om

mo
da
tio
n f
or 

ho
me

les
s f
am

ilie
s. 
  

 

H 
20
 

Au
dit
 N
ee
ds
 

an
aly

sis
  a
nd
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

AS
10
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 

On
e. 

Pr
oa
cti
ve
 Fr

au
d W

ork
 

A 
pro

vis
ion

 o
f f
rau

d 
aw

are
ne
ss
 

an
d 

an
ti-f
rau

d 
ac
tiv
itie

s. 
A 

se
pa
rat

e 
an
ti-f
rau

d 
pla

n 
ha
s 

be
en
 de

vis
ed
. 

H 
50
 

Pa
rt o

f th
e c

on
tra

ct 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 

On
e. 

Fo
llo

w 
Up

s 
Fo

llo
w-
up
 of

 re
vie

ws
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
in 

08
/09

 
to 

en
su
re 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

of 
au
dit
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s. 

H 
11
0 

 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
W
ork

ing
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 

On
e. 

 

Page 103



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

23
 

 Go
ve
rn
an

ce
-ba

se
d A

ud
it A

ss
es
sm

en
t M

eth
od

olo
gy

  

 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
Ca

teg
ori
es

 
 

Th
e R

isk
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
mo

de
l ta

ke
s a

cc
ou
nt 
fou

r a
ss
es
sm

en
t c
ate

go
rie
s t
o p

rod
uc
e a

 ris
k i
nd
ex
 fo
r e

ac
h a

ud
ita
ble

 ar
ea
. T

he
 au

dit
ab
le 

are
a i
s s

co
red

 in
 ea

ch
 ca

teg
ory

 us
ing

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
cri
ter

ia 
to 
ga
ug
e t
he
 de

gre
e o

f ri
sk
 or

 m
ate

ria
lity

 as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th
e p

art
icu

lar
 ar

ea
. 

Th
e t
ab
le 
be
low

 su
mm

ari
se
s t
he
 pr

op
os
ed
 fo
ur 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
ca
teg

ori
es
 an

d w
ha
t e
ac
h i
s i
nte

nd
ed
 to
 m
ea
su
re.

 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
Ca

teg
or
y 

Me
as
ur
e 

A 
Co

rpo
rat

e I
mp

ort
an
ce
 – 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
/Pr

ior
itie

s 
Co

rpo
rat

e m
ate

ria
lity

 
B 

Co
rpo

rat
e S

en
sit
ivit

y –
 Im

pa
ct 

Re
pu
tat
ion

al 
ma

ter
ial
ity
 

C 
Inh

ere
nt 
Ris

k 
Inh

ere
nt 
vu
lne

rab
ility

 
D 

Co
ntr

ol 
Ris

k 
Co

ntr
ol 
eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s 

  
Th

e f
ull
 de

fin
itio

n f
or 

ea
ch
 ca

teg
ory

 an
d t
he
 sc

ori
ng
 cr
ite
ria
 ar

e d
es
cri
be
d b

elo
w.
 

 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
Pr
oc
es
s 

 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
wa

s b
as
ed
 on

 pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
jud

ge
me

nt 
aft
er 

ca
ref

ul 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 th
e k

ey
 ris

ks
 to
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
wit

h t
he
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 

Dir
ec
tor

s a
nd
 ot
he
r k
ey
 of
fic
ers

, a
 re

vie
w 
of 
cu
rre

nt 
an
d p

rev
iou

s a
ud
it p

lan
s a

nd
 st
rat

eg
ic 
iss

ue
s f
ac
ing

 th
e a

uth
ori
ty.
 Th

e f
oll
ow

ing
 

ste
ps
 w
ere

 fo
llo
we

d i
n p

erf
orm

ing
 th
e r

isk
 as

se
ss
me

nt:
 

St
ep

 
Ac

tio
n 

1 
Se

lec
t t
he
 S
ys
tem

 an
d C

orp
ora

te 
Co

ntr
ols

 to
 be

 ris
k a

ss
es
se
d, 

to 
en
su
re 

a c
lea

r a
nd
 un

am
big

uo
us
 un

de
rst
an
din

g o
f th

e 
are

a u
nd
er 
rev

iew
. T

his
 is
 no

rm
all
y c

all
ed
 th
e A

ud
ita
ble

 Ar
ea
 

2 
Se

lec
t th

e m
os
t a
pp
rop

ria
te 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
cri
ter

ion
 an

d t
he
ref

ore
 th
e s

co
re 

in 
ea
ch
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
ca
teg

ory
 

3 
Re

co
rd 

the
 sc

ore
s. 

4 
Co

mp
ute

 th
e r

isk
 in
de
x b

y r
efe

ren
ce
 to
 th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 se

cti
on
 

 Ca
lcu

lat
ion

 of
 th
e A

ud
it R

isk
 In
de
x 

  
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 ris

k i
s t
he
 pr

od
uc
t o
f ri
sk
 an

d m
ate

ria
lity

. In
 va

lui
ng
 m
ate

ria
lity

 it 
is 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 to
 ad

d t
he
 co

ns
titu

en
t a
ss
es
sm

en
ts 
of 

Co
rpo

rat
e I
mp

ort
an
ce
 an

d C
orp

ora
te 
Se

ns
itiv

ity
 to
 ge

ne
rat

e a
 M
ate

ria
lity

 Fa
cto

r o
n a

 sc
ale

 of
 10

0. 
  

To
tal
 R
isk

 is
 th
e p

rod
uc
t o
f in

he
ren

t a
nd
 co

ntr
ol 
ris
k. 
Fo
r th

e p
urp

os
es
 of
 si
mp

lici
ty 
in 
thi
s m

od
el 
Inh

ere
nt 
Ris

k i
s a

ss
es
se
d o

n a
 sc

ale
 of
 

5-1
0 a

nd
 C
on
tro

l R
isk

 on
 a 
sc
ale

 of
 2-

10
. T

he
 m
ini
mu

m 
Ris

k F
ac
tor

 is
 pr

od
uc
ed
 by

 m
ult
ipl
yin

g t
he
se
 co

mp
on
en
ts 
is 
the

ref
ore

 10
% 

(2 
x 

5).
 

Page 104



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

24
 

  
Th

e A
ud
it R

isk
 In
de
x f
or 
ea
ch
 au

dit
ab
le 
are

a i
s, 
the

ref
ore

, th
e M

ate
ria
lity

 Fa
cto

r m
ult
ipl
ied

 by
 th
e R

isk
 Fa

cto
r.  

   
Re

su
lts
 of
 th
e A

ud
it R

isk
 As

se
ss
me

nt  
 

 
  

Th
e s

tru
ctu

red
 lis

t o
f a
ud
ita
ble

 ar
ea
s w

ith
 illu

str
ati
ve
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
sc
ore

s i
s r
ec
ord

ed
 an

d t
he
 su

mm
ari
se
d s

co
res

 us
ed
 to
 gi
ve
 th
e R

isk
 

Fa
cto

r a
nd
 M
ate

ria
lity

 Fa
cto

r a
nd
 th
e r

es
ult
an
t A

ud
it R

isk
 In
de
x. 

  
Th

e l
ist
 of
 au

dit
ab
le 
are

as
 is
 th
en
 ra

nk
ed
 by

 re
fer

en
ce
 to
 th
e A

ud
it R

isk
 In
de
x a

nd
 gr

ou
pe
d a

s h
igh

, m
ed
ium

 or
 lo
w 
pri
ori
ty.
 Th

e t
op
 th
ird
 

are
 co

ns
ide

red
 to
 be

 hi
gh
 pr

ior
ity
, th

e n
ex
t m

ed
ium

 pr
ior
ity
, a
nd
 th
e b

ott
om

 th
ird
 lo
w 
pri
ori
ty.
 

 

Page 105



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

25
 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 R
isk

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t M

atr
ice

s 
  

 
 

 
 

    Sc
or
e 

Ri
sk
 to

 D
ep
ar
tm

en
t, C

or
po

ra
te 
an

d/o
r 

Se
rv
ice

 O
bje

cti
ve
s 

 
Op

era
tio

na
l R

isk
 Ex

po
su
re 

 
Fin

an
cia

l R
isk

 Ex
po

su
re 

10
 

Ne
gli

gib
le 
im

pa
ct 
on
 ac

hie
ve
me

nt 
of 

ser
vic

e 
ob
jec

tiv
es.

 Th
is w

ou
ld 
sti
ll b

e a
chi

eve
d w

ith
 

mi
nim

um
 ex

tra
 co

st o
r in

con
ven

ien
ce.

 
or 

Mi
no
r in

co
nv
en
ien

ce 
or 

Un
de
r 2

% 
of 

tot
al 
op
era

tin
g 

inc
om

e o
r n

et 
ass

ets
. 

20
 

Se
rvi

ce 
ob
jec

tiv
es 

on
ly 
par

tia
lly

 ac
hie

vab
le 

wi
tho

ut 
co
mp

en
sat

ing
 ac

tio
n b

ein
g t
ake

n o
r 

rea
llo

cat
ion

 of
 re
sou

rce
s. 

or 
Di
ffi
cul

t to
 re
co
ver

 
or 

Be
tw
een

 2%
 an

d 1
0%

 of
 

op
era

tin
g i
nc
om

e o
r n

et 
ass

ets
. 

30
 

Un
ab
le 
to 

ach
iev

e s
erv

ice
 ob

jec
tiv

es 
wi
tho

ut 
sub

sta
nti

al 
add

itio
na
l c
ost

s o
r ti

me
 de

lay
s o

r 
ad
ver

se 
eff

ect
 on

 ac
hie

vem
en
t o
f n

ati
on
al 

tar
get

s / 
per

for
ma

nc
e i
nd
ica

tor
s. 

or 
Pe
rm

an
en
t lo

ss 
of 

dat
a 

or 
Be

tw
een

 10
% 

an
d 3

0%
 of

 
op
era

tin
g i
nc
om

e o
r n

et 
ass

ets
. 

40
 

Un
ab
le 
to 

ach
iev

e s
erv

ice
 ob

jec
tiv

es 
res

ult
ing

 
in 

sig
nif

ica
nt 
vis

ibl
e i
mp

act
 on

 se
rvi

ce 
pro

vis
ion

 su
ch
 as

 cl
osu

re 
of 

fac
ilit

ies
. 

or 
Un

ab
le 
to 
res

tor
e s

yst
em

 
or 

Be
tw
een

 30
% 

an
d 5

0%
 of

 
op
era

tin
g i
nc
om

e o
r n

et 
ass

ets
. 

50
 

Un
ab
le 
to 

ach
iev

e s
erv

ice
 ob

jec
tiv

es,
 re
sul

tin
g 

in 
ina

bil
ity

 to
 fu

lfil
 co

rpo
rat

e o
bli

gat
ion

s. 
or 

Or
gan

isa
tio

n u
na
ble

 to
 fu

nct
ion

 
or 

Ov
er 

50
% 

of 
tot

al 
op
era

tin
g 

inc
om

e o
r n

et 
ass

ets
 

 

A 
CO

RP
OR

AT
E I

MP
OR

TA
NC

E 
Th

is a
spe

ct 
co
nsi

de
rs 
the

 ef
fec

t o
n a

n o
rga

nis
ati
on
 of

 an
y i
na
bil

ity
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 m
an
ag
em

en
t d
efi

ne
d 

ser
vic

e o
bje

cti
ve
s s

ho
uld

 th
e s

yst
em

 or
 pr

oc
ess

 fa
il. 

Th
is a

spe
ct 
als

o t
ak
es 

int
o a

cco
un
t th

e f
ina

nc
ial
 ex

po
sur

e o
r m

ate
ria

lity
 of

 th
e a

rea
. T

he
 co

nse
qu
en
tia
l 

im
pa
ct,
 ei
the

r d
ire

ctl
y o

r in
dir

ect
ly,
 on

 ot
he
r s
yst

em
s a

nd
 pr

oc
ess

es 
is a

lso
 re
lev

an
t to

 th
e a

sse
ssm

en
t. O

ve
ral

l it
 is 

a m
eas

ure
 of

 th
e e

xte
nt 
to 

wh
ich

 th
e 

org
an
isa

tio
n d

ep
en
ds 

on
 th
e c

orr
ect

 ru
nn
ing

 of
 th
e s

yst
em

 to
 ac

hie
ve
 its

 str
ate

gic
 ob

jec
tiv

es.
 

Page 106



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

26
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 R
isk

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t M

atr
ice

s 
  

 
 

 
 

   Sc
ore

 
Ri
sk 

to 
Pu

bli
c I
ma

ge 
 

Ri
sk 

of 
Ad

ver
se 

Pu
bli

cit
y 

 
Ri
sk 

to 
Ac

co
un
tab

ilit
y 

 
Ri
sk 

of 
no
n-l

ega
l 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e 

10
 

Ne
gli

gib
le 
con

seq
ue
nce

s 
 

 
 

 
or 

No
 re

gu
lat
ory

 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

20
 

So
me

 pu
bli

c e
mb

arr
ass

me
nt 

bu
t n

o d
am

age
 to

 re
pu
tat
ion

 
or 

sta
nd
ing

 in
 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity

 

or 
Inf

orm
ati
on
 w
ou
ld 

be 
of 

int
ere

st t
o l
oc
al 
pre

ss 
 

 
or 

Mi
nim

al 
reg

ula
tor

y 
req

uir
em

en
ts a

nd
 

lim
ite
d s

en
sit
ivi

ty 
to 

no
n-c

om
pli

an
ce 

30
 

So
me

 pu
bli

c e
mb

arr
ass

me
nt 

lea
din

g t
o l
im

ite
d d

am
age

 
or 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 w
ou
ld 

be 
of 

int
ere

st t
o l
oc
al 
MP

s 
 

 
or 

Mo
de
st l

ega
l a
nd
 

reg
ula

tor
y 

req
uir

em
en
ts 

40
 

Lo
ss 

of 
cre

dib
ilit

y a
nd
 

pu
bli

c c
on
fid

enc
e i
n t

he 
ser

vic
e c

on
cer

ned
 

or 
Inc

ide
nt 

of 
int

ere
st t

o 
Na

tio
nal

 Pr
ess

 
Or

 
Inc

ide
nt 

po
ten

tia
lly

 le
adi

ng
 to

 
the

 di
sm

iss
al 
or 

res
ign

ati
on
 of

 
the

 re
spo

nsi
ble

 fu
nct

ion
al 

ma
na
ger

 

or 
Ex

ten
siv

e l
ega

l a
nd
 

reg
ula

tor
y 

req
uir

em
en
ts w

ith
 

san
cti
on
s f
or 

no
n-

co
mp

lia
nc
e 

50
 

Hi
gh
ly 
da
ma

gin
g w

ith
 

im
me

dia
te 
im

pa
ct 
on
 pu

bli
c 

co
nfi

de
nce

 
or 

Inc
ide

nt 
of 

int
ere

st t
o t
he 

Au
dit

 Co
mm

iss
ion

, 
go
ver

nm
en
t a
gen

cie
s 

Or
 
Inc

ide
nt 

po
ten

tia
lly

 le
adi

ng
 to

 
the

 re
sig

na
tio

n o
r d

ism
iss

al 
of 

a C
hie

f O
ffi
cer

 
or 

Po
ssi

ble
 co

urt
 

en
for

cem
en
t o
rde

r fo
r 

no
n-c

om
pli

an
ce 

 
 

B 
Co

rpo
rat

e S
en
sit
ivi

ty 
Th

is a
spe

ct 
tak

es 
int

o a
cco

un
t th

e s
en
sit
ivi

ty 
/ c
on
fid

en
tia
lity

 of
 th
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 pr

oc
ess

ed
, o
r s
erv

ice
 de

liv
ere

d b
y t
he
 

sys
tem

, o
r d

eci
sio

ns 
inf

lue
nc
ed
 by

 th
e o

utp
ut.
 It 

als
o a

sse
sse

s a
ny
 le
ga
l a
nd
 re
gu
lat
ory

 co
mp

lia
nc
e r
eq
uir

em
en
ts. 

Th
e m

eas
ure

 sh
ou
ld 
als

o r
efl

ect
 an

y 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
co
nc
ern

s a
nd
 se

nsi
tiv

itie
s. 

Page 107



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

27
 

 
Int

ern
al 
Au

dit
 R
isk

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t M

atr
ice

s 
 

 
 

 
 

    Sc
ore

 
Inh

ere
nt 

Ri
sk 

– 
Vu

lne
rab

ilit
y 

 
Ri
sk 

of 
Err

or 
du
e t
o 

Sy
ste

m 
Co

mp
lex

ity
 

 
Ri
sk 

res
ult

ing
 fro

m 
Pa
ce 

of 
Ch

an
ge 

 
Ri
sk 

to 
As

set
 Se

cu
rity

 

5 
Lo

w 
vu
lne

rab
ilit

y 
 

Sim
ple

 sy
ste

m 
wi
th 

low
 

ris
k o

f e
rro

r 
or 

No
 ch

an
ges

 pl
an
ned

 
or 

Un
de
sir
abl

e l
ow

 va
lue

 
ass

ets
 no

t a
t ri

sk 
of 

fra
ud
 or

 lo
ss 

6 
Me

diu
m 
or 

low
 in
he
ren

t 
ris
k 

or 
 

or 
Lim

ite
d c

han
ges

 pl
an
ne
d w

ith
 

rea
son

abl
e t
im

esc
ale

 
 

 

7 
Me

diu
m 
vu
lne

rab
ilit

y 
or 

Mo
der

ate
ly 
co
mp

lex
 

sys
tem

 w
ith

 m
ed
ium

 ris
k 

of 
err

or 
or 

Mo
der

ate
 le
vel

 of
 ch

an
ge 

ov
er 

me
diu

m 
ter

m 
 

 

8 
Me

diu
m 
to 

hig
h i

nh
ere

nt 
ris
k 

or 
 

or 
Sig

nif
ica

nt 
lev

el 
of 

ch
an
ge 

wi
th 
res

tric
ted

 tim
esc

ale
 

 
 

10
 

Hi
gh
ly 
vu
lne

rab
le 

or 
Co

mp
lex

 sy
ste

m 
wi
th 

hig
h 

ris
k o

f e
rro

r 
or 

Ex
ten

siv
e c

han
ges

 pl
ann

ed
 

wi
th 

sho
rt t

im
esc

ale
 

or 
Hi
gh
ly 
de
sir
ab
le 
ass

ets
 

ex
po
sed

 to
 hi
gh
 ris

k o
f 

fra
ud
 or

 lo
ss 

 

C 
Inh

ere
nt 
Ri
sk 

 
Th

is a
spe

ct 
co
nsi

de
rs 
the

 in
he
ren

t ri
sk 

of 
the

 sy
ste

m,
 se

rvi
ce,

 pr
oc
ess

 or
 re
lat
ed
 as

set
s to

 er
ror

, lo
ss,
 irr

eg
ula

rity
, in

eff
ici
en
cy
, 

ille
ga
lity

 or
 fa
ilu

re.
 Th

e p
art

icu
lar

 se
rvi

ce 
sec

tor
, n
atu

re 
of 

op
era

tio
ns 

an
d t
he
 pa

ce 
of 

ch
an
ge
 w
ill 

als
o a

ffe
ct 
the

 le
ve
l o
f in

he
ren

t ri
sk.

 Si
mi

lar
ly 
the

 
rel

ati
ve
 co

mp
lex

ity
 of

 th
e s

yst
em

 w
ill 

inf
lue

nc
e t
he
 in
he
ren

t ri
sk 

or 
err

or.
 Th

e i
nh
ere

nt 
vu
lne

rab
ilit

y o
f a
 sy

ste
m,
 se

rvi
ce 

or 
pro

ces
s c

an
no
t b
e a

lte
red

, o
nly

 
mi

tig
ate

d b
y t
he
 qu

ali
ty 
of 

co
ntr

ols
 co

nsi
de
red

 in
 se

cti
on
 D
. 

 

Page 108



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

28
 

 
Int

ern
al 
Au

dit
 R
isk

 A
ss
es
sm

en
t M

atr
ice

s 
 

 
 

 
 

   Sc
ore

 
Hi
sto

ry 
of 

Ri
sk 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Su

cce
ss 

 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Ri
sk 

an
d C

on
tro

l 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
 

Co
nd
itio

n o
f R

isk
  M

an
ag
em

en
t 

Co
ntr

ols
 

2 
No

 hi
sto

ry 
of 

co
ntr

ol 
we

ak
ne
ss 

or 
Th

ere
 is 

eff
ect

ive
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t in

 
pla

ce 
an
d a

de
qu
ate

 co
ntr

ols
 op

era
ted

 by
 

ris
k-a

wa
re 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
or 

Ef
fec

tiv
e c

on
tro

ls a
nd
 ro

bu
st a

ttit
ud
e t
o 

the
 m
an
ag
em

en
t o

f a
ll m

ate
ria

l ri
sks

. 
Em

be
dd
ed
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t c
ult

ure
 

4 
No

 hi
sto

ry 
of 

sig
nif

ica
nt 
we

ak
ne
ss 

or 
Go

od
 m
an
ag
em

en
t ri

sk 
an
d c

on
tro

l 
en
vir

on
me

nt 
or 

Sta
ble

 sy
ste

m 
wi
th 
his

tor
y o

f re
lia
bil

ity
 

an
d c

on
tro

ls. 
Ri
sk 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
iss

ue
d 

co
nsi

de
red

 re
gu
lar

ly.
 

6 
No

 hi
gh
 ris

k i
ssu

es 
ou
tst
an
din

g f
rom

 th
e 

pre
vio

us 
au
dit

/in
ve
sti
ga
tio

n/b
est

 
va
lue

/ex
ter

na
l re

vie
w 

or 
No

 kn
ow

led
ge
 of

 m
an
ag
em

en
t ri

sk 
an
d 

co
ntr

ol 
en
vir

on
me

nt 
or 

Ri
sk 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d s

yst
em

 co
ntr

ols
 

no
t v
ali
da
ted

. 

8 
So

me
 sig

nif
ica

nt 
pro

ble
ms

 w
ere

 id
en
tifi

ed
 an

d 
are

 kn
ow

n t
o b

e o
uts

tan
din

g f
rom

 th
e p

rev
iou

s 
au
dit

/re
vie

w 
or 

So
me

 sig
nif

ica
nt 
co
nc
ern

s h
av
e b

een
 

ex
pre

sse
d b

y m
an
ag
em

en
t (t

hro
ug
h 

Co
ntr

ols
 Ri

sk 
W
ork

sho
ps)

 
or 

Te
ch
nic

al 
he
alt
h o

f s
yst

em
 of

 ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d c

on
tro

ls i
n d

ou
bt.
 

10
 

Ma
jor

 w
eak

ne
sse

s in
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 

co
ntr

ols
 w
ere

 id
en
tifi

ed
 an

d a
re 
kn
ow

n t
o b

e 
ou
tst
an
din

g 
or 

Ma
jor

 co
nc
ern

s h
av
e b

een
 ex

pre
sse

d b
y 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
(th

rou
gh
 Co

ntr
ols

 Ri
sk 

wo
rks

ho
ps)

 
or 

Ob
sol

ete
 sy

ste
m 
wi
th 
his

tor
y o

f 
pro

ble
ms

 an
d i
ne
ffe

cti
ve
 co

ntr
ol.
 Li

ttle
 

or 
no
 w
ork

 un
de
rta

ke
n o

n r
isk

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt.
 

 

D 
Co

ntr
ol 
Ri
sk 

 
 

Th
is a

spe
ct 
ass

ess
es 

the
 le
ve
l o
f c
on
tro

l ri
sk 

ba
sed

 up
on
 th
e r

esu
lts
 of

 pa
st a

ud
its
 of

 th
e c

on
tro

l e
nv
iro

nm
en
t u

nd
er 

rev
iew

. T
his

 as
pe
ct 
als

o t
ak
es 

int
o a

cco
un
t o
f th

e o
pe
rat

ing
 hi

sto
ry 

an
d c

on
dit

ion
 of

 sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

ess
es 

an
d k

no
wl
ed
ge
 of

 m
an
ag
em

en
t c
on
tro

ls t
o 

mi
nim

ise
 ex

po
sur

e t
o r

isk
. C

RS
A 
an
d e

xte
nsi

ve
 Co

ntr
ol 
Ri
sk 

W
ork

sho
ps 

un
de
r th

e l
ead

ers
hip

 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 Ri
sk 

Ma
na
ge
r c
ou
ld 
sup

po
rt e

va
lua

tio
n. 

Page 109



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

29
 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 St

rat
eg

y 
 Int

ro
du

cti
on

 
 Wh

at 
is 
Int

ern
al 
Au

dit
? 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 is
 a 
rev

iew
 fu
nc
tio
n w

ith
in 
an
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
. E

ss
en
tia
lly 

it e
xis

ts 
to 
pe
rfo

rm
 th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 ro

les
: 

 � 
rev

iew
 sy

ste
ms

 of
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t, i
nte

rna
l c
on
tro

l a
nd
 go

ve
rna

nc
e t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
the

se
 ar

e s
ou
nd
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
. 

�
 

to 
pro

vid
e a

n a
ss
ura

nc
e o

pin
ion

 on
 th
e s

ou
nd
ne
ss
 of
 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
’s 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 in
ter

na
l c
on
tro

l fr
am

ew
ork

s. 
�
 

to 
ad
d v

alu
e t
o t
he
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
’s 
op
era

tio
na
l a
cti
vit
ies

 by
 re

co
mm

en
din

g e
nh
an
ce
me

nts
 to
 sy

ste
ms

 an
d i
de
nti
fyi
ng
 po

ten
tia
l e
ffic

ien
cie

s. 
  Pe

rha
ps
 th
e m

os
t s
uc
cin

ct 
de
fin
itio

n o
f In

ter
na
l A

ud
it i
s p

rov
ide

d b
y t
he
 In
sti
tut
e o

f In
ter

na
l A

ud
ito
rs 
– U

K a
nd
 Ire

lan
d (

IIA
-U
K)
, a
s f
oll
ow

s: 
 Int
ern

al 
au
dit
ing

 is
 an

 in
de
pe
nd
en
t, o

bje
cti
ve
 as

su
ran

ce
 an

d c
on
su
ltin

g a
cti
vit
y d

es
ign

ed
 to

 ad
d v

alu
e a

nd
 im

pro
ve
 an

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
's 
op
era

tio
ns
. It

 he
lps

 an
 

org
an
isa

tio
n a

cc
om

pli
sh
 its

 ob
jec

tiv
es
 by

 br
ing

ing
 a 

sy
ste

ma
tic
, d

isc
ipl
ine

d a
pp
roa

ch
 to

 ev
alu

ate
 an

d i
mp

rov
e t

he
 ef

fec
tiv
en
es
s o

f ri
sk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t, c

on
tro

l 
an
d g

ov
ern

an
ce
 pr

oc
es
se
s. 

 Th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
s I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it C

ha
rte

r d
efi
ne
s t
he
 fu
nc
tio
n o

f In
ter

na
l A

ud
it, 
wit

h s
pe
cif
ic 
ref

ere
nc
e t
o i
ts 
rol
e w

ith
in 
the

 Au
tho

rity
, in

 th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 w
ay
: 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 is
 an

 in
de
pe
nd
en
t re

vie
w 
fun

cti
on
 es

tab
lish

ed
 as

 a 
se
rvi
ce
 to

 M
em

be
rs,
 th

e A
ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e a

nd
 al
l le

ve
ls 
of 

ma
na
ge
me

nt.
 Th

e I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it 

Se
rvi
ce
 is
 re

sp
on
sib

le 
for

 th
e i
nd
ep
en
de
nt 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 

the
 ad

eq
ua
cy
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of

 th
e p

roc
ed
ure

s a
nd
 co

ntr
ols

 w
ith
in 
sy
ste

ms
 op

era
tin
g w

ith
in 
all
 

of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 ac
tiv
itie

s. 
It a

lso
 ha

s a
 re

sp
on
sib

ility
 to

 pr
ov
ide

 as
su
ran

ce
 to

 m
an
ag
em

en
t th

at 
the

 A
uth

ori
ty’
s r

isk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 co

rpo
rat

e g
ov
ern

an
ce
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar

e s
ati
sfa

cto
ry.
 

 Wh
y d

o w
e n

ee
d a

n I
nte

rn
al 
Au

dit
 St

rat
eg

y?
  

 An
 In

ter
na
l A

ud
it S

tra
teg

y o
utl
ine

s t
he
 m

ea
ns
 b
y w

hic
h 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 se

ek
s t

o 
ac
hie

ve
 its

 st
ate

d 
aim

s a
nd
 o
bje

cti
ve
s. 

Th
e 
str
ate

gy
 is

 th
e 
pla

n 
for

 th
e 

eff
ec
tiv
ely

 de
live

ry 
of 
the

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it s

erv
ice

.  
 Th

is 
do
cu
me

nt 
se
ts 
ou
t In

ter
na
l A

ud
it’s

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ap
pro

ac
h, 
wh

ich
 sh

ou
ld 
fac

ilita
te:
 

 � 
on
 an

 an
nu
al 
ba
sis

, th
e p

rov
isio

n t
o t
he
 S1

51
 of
fic
er 

of 
an
 ov

era
ll o

pin
ion

 on
 th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
s r

isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t, c

on
tro

l a
nd
 go

ve
rna

nc
e, 
to 
su
pp
ort

 th
e 

pre
pa
rat

ion
 of
 th
e S

tat
em

en
t o
f In

ter
na
l C

on
tro

l; 
�
 

au
dit
 of

 th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t, c

on
tro

l a
nd
 go

ve
rna

nc
e p

roc
es
se
s t
hro

ug
h p

eri
od

ic 
au
dit
 pl
an
s i
n a

 w
ay
 w
hic

h a
ffo
rds

 su
ita
ble

 pr
ior
ity
 to

 th
e 

Au
tho

rity
’s 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d r
isk

s; 

Page 110



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

30
 

�
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
of 

the
 A
uth

ori
ty’
s r

isk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t, c

on
tro

l a
nd
 go

ve
rna

nc
e b

y p
rov

idi
ng
 lin

e m
an
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 au

dit
 

wo
rk;
 

�
 

the
 id

en
tifi
ca
tio
n 
of 

au
dit
 re

so
urc

es
 re

qu
ire
d t

o 
de
live

r a
n a

ud
it s

erv
ice

 w
hic

h 
me

ets
 th

e C
IPF

A 
Co

de
 of

 P
rac

tic
e 2

00
6 
for

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it i
n L

oc
al 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t; 

�
 

eff
ec
tiv
e c

o-o
pe
rat

ion
 w
ith
 ex

ter
na
l a
ud
ito
rs 
an
d o

the
r re

vie
w 
bo
die

s f
un
cti
on
ing

 in
 th
e A

uth
ori
ty;
 an

d 
�
 

pro
vis

ion
 of
 as

su
ran

ce
 an

d c
on
su
lta
nc
y s

erv
ice

s b
y I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it. 

 Th
e R

ole
 an

d P
ur
po

se
 of

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it  

 Th
e r

ole
 of

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it i
s t

o u
nd
ers

tan
d t

he
 A
uth

ori
ty’
s k

ey
 ris

ks
, a

nd
 to

 re
vie

w 
an
d e

va
lua

te 
the

 ad
eq
ua
cy
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of

 th
e s

ys
tem

s o
f in

ter
na
l 

co
ntr

ol,
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 co

rpo
rat

e g
ov
ern

an
ce
 th
at 
are

 in
 op

era
tio
n a

t th
e C

ou
nc
il, 
to 

en
su
re 

tha
t th

ey
 ar

e s
uff
icie

nt 
for

 th
e p

urp
os
es
 of
 m
itig

ati
ng
 ris

k. 
 

 It i
s a

 st
atu

tor
y r
eq
uir
em

en
t fo

r L
oc
al 
Au

tho
riti
es
 to
 ha

ve
 an

 in
ter

na
l a
ud
it f
un
cti
on
, u
nd
er 

S1
51
 of
 th
e L

oc
al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t A

ct 
19
72
. T

he
 Ac

t a
lso

 st
ipu

lat
es
 th
at 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 sh

ou
ld 
ha
ve
 un

res
tric

ted
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 al
l in

for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 re

co
rds

 re
tai
ne
d b

y t
he
 Au

tho
rity

. T
his

 en
ab
les

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it t
o c

om
pre

he
ns
ive

ly 
rev

iew
, 

ap
pra

ise
 an

d r
ep
ort

 on
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty’
s f
un
cti
on
s a

s o
utl
ine

d i
n t
he
 Au

dit
 C
ha
rte

r. 
  St
rat

eg
ic 

Ai
ms

 
 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 ex

ist
s t
o s

up
po
rt t

he
 C
ou
nc
il in

 th
e a

ch
iev

em
en
t o
f it
s c

orp
ora

te 
ob
jec

tiv
es
. In

 pa
rtic

ula
r: 

 � 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill 
su
pp
ort

 th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
s a

im
 to

 pr
ov
ide

 qu
ali
ty 

pu
bli
c s

erv
ice

s, 
by
 ev

alu
ati
ng
 an

d r
ep
ort

ing
 on

 th
e s

tan
da
rd 

of 
sy
ste

ms
 of

 in
ter

na
l 

co
ntr

ol 
in 
Co

un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
 ar

ea
s; 

�
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill 
su
pp
ort

 th
e A

uth
ori
ty 
in 
wo

rki
ng
 to

 th
e v

alu
es
 se

t o
ut 

in 
its
 co

rpo
rat

e p
lan

 by
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 th

e H
ea
d o

f R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t, t

he
 D
ire
cto

r 
of 
Re

so
urc

es
 an

d t
he
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
tte
e w

ith
 re

po
rts
 on

 th
e e

xte
nt 
of 
co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
s C

od
e o

f C
orp

ora
te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e; 

�
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill 
co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
the

 de
live

ry 
of 

the
 A
uth

ori
ty’
s c

om
mu

nit
y a

im
s t
hro

ug
h p

rof
es
sio

na
l a
ud
it r

ev
iew

s a
nd
 ef

fec
tiv
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f

or 
im
pro

vin
g s

ys
tem

s t
ha
t s
up
po
rt t

he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
al 
aim

s; 
�
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w

ill 
as
sis

t t
he
 D

ire
cto

r o
f R

es
ou
rce

s i
n 
the

 d
isc

ha
rge

 o
f h

is 
sta

tut
ory

 re
sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 fo

r e
ns
uri
ng
 th

e 
pro

pe
r a

dm
ini
str
ati
on
 o
f t
he
 

Au
tho

rity
’s 
fin
an
cia

l a
ffa
irs
 an

d w
ill c

on
trib

ute
 to
 th
e A

uth
ori
ty’
s a

im
 of
 m
ax
im
isin

g a
nd
 m
ak
ing

 be
st 
us
e o

f it
s f
ina

nc
ial
 re

so
urc

es
 th
rou

gh
: 

o
 

Ris
k b

as
ed
 re

vie
ws

 of
 fin

an
cia

l s
ys
tem

s; 
o
 

Ad
vic

e o
n t
he
 ad

eq
ua
cy
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 co

ntr
ols

 in
 ne

w 
an
d d

ev
elo

pin
g s

ys
tem

s; 
o
 

Pr
om

oti
on
 of
 be

st 
pra

cti
ce
 ac

ros
s t
he
 Au

tho
rity

; 
o
 

Ad
vic

e o
n t
he
 pr

ev
en
tio
n a

nd
 de

tec
tio
n o

f fr
au
d a

ffe
cti
ng
 th
e A

uth
ori
ty 
an
d i
nv
es
tig
ati
on
 of
 w
as
te 
or 

ab
us
e w

ith
in 
the

 C
ou
nc
il s

ys
tem

s. 
 

Page 111



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

31
 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 &
 R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 Ris
ks
 ar

e p
ote

nti
al 

ev
en
ts 

or 
oc
cu
rre

nc
es
 th

at 
ma

y h
av
e a

n a
dv
ers

e e
ffe
ct 

on
 th

e o
rga

nis
ati
on
’s 
ab
ility

 to
 ac

hie
ve
 its

 ob
jec

tiv
es
. R

isk
 M

an
ag
em

en
t is

 th
e 

pro
ce
ss
 of

 id
en
tify

ing
, e

va
lua

tin
g a

nd
 re

sp
on
din

g t
o r

isk
s i
n o

rde
r t
o m

itig
ate

 th
em

. R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t is

 no
t th

e r
es
po
ns
ibi
lity

 of
 In

ter
na
l A

ud
it. 

Ho
we

ve
r, 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill 
us
e t

he
 au

tho
rity

’s 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t fr

am
ew

ork
 to

 fo
cu
s i
ts 

wo
rk 

by
 co

nc
en
tra

tin
g o

n t
ho
se
 ar

ea
s t

ha
t a

re 
mo

st 
cri
tic
al 

to 
the

 au
tho

rity
. 

Co
ns
eq
ue
ntl
y, 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill 
rev

iew
 th

e a
uth

ori
ty’
s r

isk
 re

gis
ter

s o
n a

 si
x m

on
thl
y b

as
is 
an
d w

he
re 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 am
en
d t

he
 in

ter
na
l a

ud
it p

lan
 to

 en
su
re 

au
dit
 re

so
urc

es
 ar

e c
on
tin
ua
lly 

foc
us
ed
 on

 ar
ea
s i
de
nti
fie
d b

y m
an
ag
em

en
t w

he
re 

the
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 m
ay
 no

t b
e a

ch
iev

ed
. 

 Dim
en
sio

n 4
 fro

m 
the

 C
IPF

A/S
OL

AC
E 
rep

ort
 on

 go
od
 go

ve
rna

nc
e h

igh
lig
hts

 R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t a

s b
ein

g a
n i
nte

gra
l p
art

 of
 go

od
 go

ve
rna

nc
e. 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 

wil
l th

ere
for

e a
lso

 ex
am

ine
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty’
s r
isk

 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
an
nu
all
y a

nd
 in
 so

 do
ing

, a
lso

 fu
lfil 

the
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 of
 th
e C

IPF
A C

od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e 

20
06
 fo
r In

ter
na
l A

ud
it i
n L

oc
al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t to

 re
po
rt f

orm
all
y o

n t
he
 au

tho
rity

’s 
arr

an
ge
me

nt 
for

 R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t. 

  Ide
nti

fyi
ng

 A
ud

it C
ov

era
ge

 
 In 

ord
er 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

the
 au

dit
ab
le 

sy
ste

ms
 an

d e
sta

bli
sh
 th

e a
rea

s o
f r
isk

 or
 sp

ec
ific

 im
po
rta

nc
e w

ith
in 

the
 au

tho
rity

, In
ter

na
l A

ud
it w

ill 
ad
op
t a

n a
pp
roa

ch
 

inv
olv

ing
 di
sc
us
sio

n a
nd
 re

vie
w 
of 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

po
sit
ion

. In
for

ma
tio
n w

ill 
be
 ga

the
red

 by
 m

ee
tin
g k

ey
 of

fic
ers

 w
ith
in 
the

 au
tho

rity
 in
clu

din
g C

orp
ora

te 
Dir

ec
tor

s 
an
d 
Fin

an
ce
 M

an
ag
ers

, t
he
 C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e 
an
d 
oth

er 
ke
y o

ffic
ers

 w
ith
in 

the
 a
uth

ori
ty.
 In

ter
na
l A

ud
it w

ill 
als

o 
dis

cu
ss
 th

e 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

of 
the

 E
xte

rna
l 

Au
dit
ors

 an
d t

he
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 of

 th
e “

ma
na
ge
d a

ud
it” 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o e
ns
ure

 th
os
e a

rea
s u

po
n w

hic
h o

ur 
ex
ter

na
l a
ud
ito
rs 

wo
uld

 se
ek
 to

 pl
ac
e r

eli
an
ce
 on

 th
e 

int
ern

al 
au
dit
 w
ork

 ar
e i

nc
lud

ed
 w
ith
in 

the
 in

ter
na
l a

ud
it p

rog
ram

me
. D

eta
ils 

of 
the

 “G
ov
ern

an
ce
” B

as
ed
 S
tra

teg
ic 
Pla

nn
ing

 ar
e a

tta
ch
ed
 to

 th
is 
pa
pe
r f
or 

inf
orm

ati
on
. 

 In 
co
mp

ilin
g i
ts 
wo

rk 
pro

gra
mm

e, 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill m

ak
e u

se
 of
 in
for

ma
tio
n a

va
ila
ble

 w
ith
in 
the

 au
tho

rity
 to
 id
en
tify

 au
dit
ab
le 
sy
ste

ms
, s
uc
h a

s 
 � 

the
 au

tho
rity

’s 
ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

, to
 en

su
re 

ris
ks
 ar

e b
ein

g m
an
ag
ed
 pr

op
erl
y; 
 

�
 

ba
ck
gro

un
d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 ob

tai
ne
d f
rom

 pr
ev
iou

s a
ud
its
 an

d o
ur 

dis
cu
ss
ion

s t
o d

ate
 w
ith
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty;
 

�
 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e o

f is
su
es
 ra

ise
d a

t o
the

r p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s a

fte
r c
are

ful
ly 
co
ns
ide

rin
g k

ey
 ris

ks
 to
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty;
 an

d 
�
 

cu
rre

nt 
an
d p

rev
iou

s a
ud
it p

lan
s a

nd
 st
rat

eg
ic 
iss

ue
s f
ac
ing

 th
e a

uth
ori
ty.
 

 Fo
r e

ac
h a

ud
ita
ble

 sy
ste

m,
 In

ter
na
l A

ud
it w

ill 
cla

ss
ify
 th

e s
ys
tem

s i
nto

 on
e o

f th
ree

 ris
k b

an
ds
 ac

co
rdi
ng
 th

e s
ys
tem

’s 
sig

nif
ica

nc
e t

o t
he
 au

tho
rity

: H
igh

 (H
), 

Me
diu

m 
(M

) o
r L

ow
 (L

). I
t is

 re
co
gn
ise

d a
nd
 ap

pre
cia

ted
 th
at 
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 ca

nn
ot 
rev

iew
 al
l a
ud
ita
ble

 sy
ste

ms
 w
ith
in 
the

 au
tho

rity
 ea

ch
 ye

ar 
as
 bo

th 
fin
an
cia

l 
an
d h

um
an
 re

so
urc

es
 ar

e l
im
ite
d. 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 w
ill 
the

ref
ore

 se
ek
 to

 us
e t

he
 re

so
urc

es
 av

ail
ab
le 
to 

rev
iew

 th
os
e a

ud
ita
ble

 sy
ste

ms
 th

at 
are

 m
os
t s
ign

ific
an
t 

to 
the

 a
uth

ori
ty.
 H

en
ce
, a

ll s
ys
tem

s h
igh

lig
hte

d 
as
 b
ein

g 
hig

hly
 si

gn
ific

an
t w

ill 
alw

ay
s b

e 
inc

lud
ed
 w

ith
in 

the
 a
nn
ua
l a

ud
it p

lan
. A

 p
rop

ort
ion

 o
f m

ed
ium

 
sig

nif
ica

nc
e a

ud
its
 w
ill 
als

o b
ee
n i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 th

e p
lan

. In
 de

cid
ing

 w
hic

h m
ed
ium

-si
gn
ific

an
ce
 au

dit
ab
le 
sy
ste

m 
to 

rev
iew

, w
e w

ill 
us
e o

ur 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 

the
 

sy
ste

m 
an
d d

isc
us
s w

ith
 m

an
ag
em

en
t th

os
e a

rea
s t
ha
t w

ill 
ad
d v

alu
e. 

It i
s h

igh
ly 
un
like

ly 
the

 re
so
urc

es
 w
ill 
pe
rm

it t
he
 in
clu

sio
n o

f a
ud
ita
ble

 un
its
 th

at 
are

 of
 

low
 si
gn
ific

an
ce
 to
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
an
d t
he
ref

ore
 th
es
e a

ud
ita
ble

 un
its
 w
ill f

ea
tur

e o
n t
he
 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it p

lan
 un

les
s s

pe
cif
ica

lly 
req

ue
ste

d b
y m

an
ag
em

en
t.  
 

  

Page 112



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

32
 

De
liv
eri

ng
 th

e S
tra

teg
y 

 Th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
int
ern

al 
au
dit
 pl
an
 w
ill 
be
 co

mp
ile
d a

nn
ua
lly 

for
 ea

ch
 fin

an
cia

l y
ea
r a

nd
 on

ly 
co
mp

ris
e t

ho
se
 sy

ste
ms

 du
e f

or 
rev

iew
 in
 th

at 
ye
ar.

 Th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
pla

n w
ill t

he
ref

ore
 re

lat
e t
o o

ne
 fin

an
cia

l y
ea
r a

nd
 be

 su
bje

ct 
to 
a f
orm

al 
six

 m
on
thl
y r
ev
iew

.  
 Int
ern

al 
au
dit
 w
ill 
pri
ma

ry 
pe
rfo

rm
 ris

k b
as
ed
 au

dit
s, 

all
 ex

ce
pti
on
s t

o t
his

 w
ill 
req

uir
e p

rio
r a

gre
em

en
t fr

om
 th

e H
ea
d o

f R
isk

 M
an
ag
em

en
t. T

he
 ris

k b
as
ed
 

ap
pro

ac
h e

nta
ils 

ex
am

ini
ng
 th

e o
bje

cti
ve
 of

 th
e a

ud
ita
ble

 sy
ste

m,
 th

e r
isk

s r
ela

tin
g t

o t
he
 de

live
ry 

of 
tho

se
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 an

d a
n a

ss
es
sm

en
t o

f th
e a

de
qu
ac
y 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 th
e c

on
tro

l fr
am

ew
ork

 to
 ac

hie
ve
 th
e d

es
ire
d o

bje
cti
ve
s. 

 Au
dit

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
 Th

e r
ep
ort

ing
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 fo
r In

ter
na
l A

ud
it a

re 
de
tai
led

 in
 th
e I
nte

rna
l A

ud
it C

ha
rte

r u
nd
er 

“R
ep
ort

ing
”.  

 Qu
ali
ty  

 All
 in
ter

na
l a
ud
it w

ork
 w
ill b

e s
ub
jec

t to
 rig

oro
us
 re

vie
w 
an
d q

ua
lity

 as
su
ran

ce
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s. 
Th

is 
wil

l e
nta

il:-
 

 � 
pla

nn
ing

 th
e s

co
pe
 of
 th
e a

ud
it t
o e

ns
ure

 fo
cu
s o

n a
rea

s o
f ri
sk
s a

nd
 co

nc
ern

s; 
�
 

su
pe
rvi
sio

n o
f a
ud
it w

ork
 by

 th
e A

ud
it M

an
ag
ers

; 
�
 

a f
orm

al 
rev

iew
 an

d s
ign

 of
f o
f th

e a
ud
it r
ep
ort

 an
d a

ud
it f
ile
 by

 th
e A

ud
it M

an
ag
ers

; 
�
 

fur
the

r fo
rm

al 
rev

iew
s o

f a
ll r
ep
ort

s a
nd
 si
gn
 of
f fo

r is
su
e t
o a

ud
ite
e b

y t
he
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 M
an
ag
er;

 
�
 

ob
tai
nin

g f
ee
db
ac
k a

nd
 co

mm
en
ts 
fro

m 
the

 au
dit
ee
s a

nd
 D
ire
cto

rs;
 

�
 

se
ek
ing

 fe
ed
ba
ck
 fro

m 
the

 ex
ter

na
l a
ud
ito
rs;
 an

d  
�
 

be
nc
h m

ark
ing

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it q

ua
lity

 co
ntr

ol 
pro

ce
du
res

 w
ith
 ot
he
r s
im
ila
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s. 

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  

REPORT TO: 
 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 

15 December 
2009 

CLASSIFICATION 
 
   

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 

 

REPORT OF: 
 
Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Head of Audit Services  
 

 
 
Progress on National Fraud Initiative 
2008-09 and Anti Fraud Update 
 
 
 
Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report updates Audit Committee of the current progress of 
the National Fraud Initiative 2008 -09 and provides an overview 
of anti fraud work undertaken during the past six months by 
Audit Services. 

 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of the report. 
 
 
 
3. INTRODUCTION 
 

3.1 This report updates the Audit Committee of the current progress 
of the National Fraud Initiative 2008 -09 and provides an 
overview of anti fraud work undertaken during the past six 
months by Audit Services. 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 

Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

   
Minesh Jani – 0207 364 0738 
 

 

Agenda Item 66

Page 115



 
4. NATIONAL FRAUD INITIATIVE 2008-09 
 

4.1 The National Fraud Initiative 2008-09 was launched by the Audit 
Commission in July 2008 and spans over a two year period from 
July 2008 to December 2009. The NFI data was supplied to the 
Audit Commission in October 2008 with the resultant output 
reports being issued to the Council in February 2009. The 
coverage of this year’s NFI was extended to include new 
mandatory data sets with the objectives of identifying fraud or 
error on the following key areas :- 

 
• Benefits fraud (housing and Council Tax) 
• Employee fraud (employees with Border Agency issues 

and rights to work and employees failing to declare other 
employment which may have a conflict) 

• Pension fraud/overpayments to deceased pensioners 
• In appropriate Right - to - Buy  
• Illegal tenancies and  temporary accommodation 
• Multiple insurance claims 
• Creditors address book 
• Potential duplicate payments 
• In-appropriate issue/abuse  of parking permits, blue 

badge or freedom passes  
 

4.2 For the current NFI, since the reports issued in February 2009 
there has a second NFI data match run, which generally 
concerned matches where data had either been submitted late 
or had to be resubmitted (LBTH data was submitted on time). 
Additionally in May 2009 LBTH participated in a pilot run of 
homelessness data. As a result of this the Authority has 
received over 18,000 matches from the Audit Commission for 
examination/investigation. 

 
4.3 In acknowledgement by the Audit Commission that all outputs 

may not be actually frauds or error, the Commission has 
developed its own risk assessment for each output report and 
formulated a recommended filter to be applied to the output 
identifying the cases mostly likely to be of concern. The 
application of the recommended filter has reduced the circa 
18,000 output to 2,242 (2,176 plus 66 from second run).   

 
4.4 To manage the NFI the Internal Audit Service has set its own  

targets in order to achieve the objectives set out by the Audit 
Commission, these are :- 

 
• 30th June 2009 - All recommended filter matches to be 

open and reviewed 

Page 116



• 30th September 2009 - All recommended filter matches to 
be examined and close all cases that are not required for 
further investigation  

• 31st December 2009 – All cases not being pursued for 
fraud/recovery to be closed 

 
4.5 From the attached Appendix A it is confirmed that the targets for 

June and September have been met. It should also be noted 
that the Authority has not only looked at the recommended filter 
matches, it is also reviewing all other reports and applying its 
own filter or local knowledge for the additional test and following 
up individual cases. In appendix A shows that over 4,000 
matches have already been examined and closed, open for 
investigation or designated as fraud or error. 

 
4.6 So far, the NFI 2008-10 exercise has identified 28 cases of error 

and 6 cases of fraud which account for overpayments totalling 
some £98K.  

 
4.7 In early 2008 a second NFI run had been also carried out 

matching single person’s discounts to the electoral role, the work 
on this to date has resulted in 1,618 single persons discounts 
being ended with a total annual saving of circa £370K. 

 
4.8 In October 2009 the Audit Commission was asked to support the 

RH John Healey MP action on identifying illegal and 
unauthorised tenants to stamp out tenancy fraud. All local 
authorities and the larger RSL’s nationwide have been 
approached and participated in the release of tenancy data to 
support this action. The results of this is due within the next two 
months. 

 
 

5. AUDIT COMMISSION EXAMINATION 
 

5.1 The Audit Commission are able to view the progress of each 
authority in managing the NFI as the Commission have remote 
access to all sites via a web link. In September 2009 a site visit 
was undertaken on a number of Local Authorities to evaluate 
progress and resolve any queries and Tower Hamlets was 
inspected. The inspection confirmed that the Council was on 
target to meet the prescribed deadlines for managing the data 
and that there were no concerns resulting from the inspection 
that required follow up.  

 
5.2 The deadlines for completing the exercise are being met and the 

remaining key dates for making the returns to the Audit 
Commission are 31 December 2009 with all outstanding 
investigations to be resolved or evidence of being investigated 
met by 31 March 2010. 

Page 117



6. ANTI FRAUD AND RISK AWARENESS TRAINING  
 
6.1 Audit Services have undertaken two training initiatives during 

2009-10, with further training exercises planned for the second 
half of the financial year.  

 
6.2 These were in regard to Anti Money Laundering training for key 

Finance staff across the authority and formed part of our e- 
learning package which was developed in partnership with Legal 
Services, Organisational Development and an outside Solicitor’s 
covering Anti Money Laundering and Anti Fraud and Corruption 
arrangements, Governance Standards and Risk Management 
including Code of Conduct for Employees and Members. 

 
6.3 The training was delivered to the Resources Directorate and 

presented as a joint presentation between Legal and Audit 
Services and covered Ethical Standards to prevent Fraud and 
Corruption. 

 
 
7. OTHER KEY ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN DURING THE 

YEAR TO DATE 
 

7.1 Audit Services has also worked closely with the Police on two 
specific matters which have been recently finalised. One 
involved the prosecution of a former temporary employee for 
defrauding the Council of £22,000 coming from a range of 
deceptions. The matter has been successfully prosecuted with 
the culprit pleading guilty and being handed down a fifty two 
week sentence suspended for two years, a curfew for four 
months between the hours of  9 .00 pm and 7.00 am each day 
for four months, 200 hours unpaid work and electronic tagging. 

  
7.2 The deterrent value of this case is considered considerable with 

press coverage   being reported in the local press as well as the 
Councils own free newspaper, East End Life. 

 
7.3 The system of control within the service area has been improved 

following this inquiry and revised operational arrangements have 
been introduced to manage risks more effectively. 

 
7.4 The other matter involved a former School Governor who had 

stolen a sum of money from a Governor’s group facilitated by 
the School. The School Governor has admitted to the theft and 
the Police have issued her with a formal Caution. 

 
7.5 The Audit Service has also provided support to Directorates 

upon request.  
 

Page 118



7.6 The Audit Service has also worked jointly with the Procurement 
Team to minimise fraud and loss on the use of the corporate 
purchase cards.  

 
7.7 We have also continued to develop closer working arrangements 

with the Parking Service and Legal Services with regard to Blue 
Badge irregularity and worked corporately where instances of 
Blue Badge irregularity has involved members of staff.  

 
7.8 We have challenged ourselves against the requirements of the 

CIPFA  Red Book 2 publication ‘ Managing the Risk of Fraud’ 
which was evaluated by an independent legal advisor and a 
detailed action plan is in place to ensure the Council achieves 
full compliance of the enhanced standards by the end of this 
financial year. 

 
7.9 To this end the Head of Audit Services is leading on this to 

ensure that other parts of the Council make the necessary 
enhancements to processes and procedures and to ensure 
joined up working is developed further. 

 
7.10 We have also developed a protocol for joint working between the 

PCT and Audit Services and Housing Benefits and are utilising 
Government funding to establish the extent of Housing Fraud 
within the authority by developing pro active drives to identify 
savings. This is being developed in conjunction with four other 
Local Authorities within the North East London area.  

 
7.11 We are also undertaking an “in house” exercise looking at debts 

from a corporate perspective. It is proposed to examine a range 
of the authority’s debtors, with a view to profiling debts to 
provide information to support whether a corporate approach to 
recovery would be more effective and economical. 

 
 

8. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

8.1 These are contained within the body of this report. 
 
9. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive 

(Legal Services) 
 

9.1 There are no immediate legal implications arising from this 
report.   

Page 119



 
10. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 

10.1 There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising 
from this report. 

 
11. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 

11.1  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this 
report. 

 
12. Risk Management Implications  
 

12.1 The revised control environment should pick up the areas 
identified as of concern and reduce the residual risk. 

 
13. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 

13.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 
 
 

Page 120



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 A
 

 

Page 121



 

Page 122



 

Page 123



 

Page 124



 

Page 125



 

Page 126



 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMITTEE: 
 

Audit 
Committee 
 

DATE: 
 

15th December 2009 
CLASSIFICATION: 
 

Unrestricted 
REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 
 

Corporate Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Alan Finch 

TITLE: 
Treasury Activity for Period 
Ending 30th November 2009 
 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
                         N/A 

 

 
1. SUMMARY 
1.1 This report advises the Committee of Treasury Management activity for the 

year up to 30th November 2009.  
1.2 The report details the current credit criteria adopted by the Corporate 

Director of Resources, the investment strategy for the current financial year. 
 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
2.1 Members are recommended to note the contents of this report. 
 

Agenda Item 67

Page 129



 
3. BACKGROUND 
3.1 This report details the current credit criteria adopted by the Corporate 

Director of Resources, the investment strategy for the current financial year. 
 
4.  TREASURY ACTIVITY FOR PERIOD 1ST APRIL to 30th  

November 2009. 
 4.1 The following sections of the report set out: 

• The current credit criteria being operated by the Council. 
• The treasury strategy for the current financial year and the progress 

in implementing this. 
• The transactions undertaken in the period and the investment 

portfolio outstanding as at 30th November 2009. 
 
5 CREDIT CRITERIA 
5.1 The following credit criteria for investment counterparties were established 

by the Council in February 2009 as part of the budget setting exercise. 
 
Table 1 – Credit Rating Requirements 
 
 UK Institutions up to 

£25m 
UK Institutions up to 
£10m 

Overseas Institutions up 
to £10m 

Short 
Term 

F1+ F1+ F1+ 
Long 
Term 

AA- AA- AA- 
Individual B BC AB 
Support 2  3 2 
 
The Council uses Fitch ratings to derive its counterparty criteria. Where a 
counterparty does not have a Fitch rating, the equivalent Moody’s (or other 
rating agency if applicable) rating will be used. All credit ratings are monitored 
on a monthly basis and the Council is alerted to changes in Fitch ratings 
through its use of the Sector creditworthiness service. 
 
5.2 In response to the recent instability in capital markets and the banking 

sector the Corporate Director of Resources has restricted the 
investment list to institutions which have guaranteed support from 
national governments who are assessed by the rating agencies as 
having the financial capacity to provide such support.  
 

Page 130



Table 2 – Lending List 
 
Institution County of 

Incorporation 
Active in 
Market 

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group 
Ltd 

Australia N 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia Australia N 
National Australia Bank Ltd Australia Y 
Westpac Banking Corporation Australia N 
Dexia Bank Belgium Belgium Y 
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Ltd China N 
United Overseas Bank Ltd China N 
DBS Bank Ltd Singapore N 
Abbey National Plc (Santander) UK Y 
Bank of Scotland Plc UK Y 
Barclays Bank Plc UK Y 
HSBC Bank Plc UK N 
Lloyds TSB Bank Plc UK Y 
National Westminster Bank UK Y 
Nationwide Building Society UK Y 
Royal Bank of Scotland UK Y 
 
 
6. INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 
6.4 The Council’s treasury management advisor, Sector’s interest rate 

projections are that base rate will remain static at 0.5% for the current 
financial year with no movement in rates until an increase of 0.5% in 
September 2010. Against this macro-economic perspective Sector has 
developed a strategy which delivers enhanced performance through 
maximising the investment term of the portfolio. This will enable the 
portfolio to obtain exposure to the higher rates associated with 
investment in the longer terms. Restricting the maximum term to one 
year will also enable investments to mature before the anticipated 
increase in rates in 2010. 

6.5 Sector has calculated that the Council will have an effective investment 
balance of £100million for 2009/10. The investment strategy within the 
constraints of the Councils credit criteria and liquidity requirement is as 
set out below. 

 
Table 3 -Investment Strategy 
 

Projection Actual Deal 
Term Amount 

£M 
Rate 
% 

Counterparty Maturity Amount 
£M 

Rate 
Overnight 15 0.75% Abbey National plc Call 5.045  
   Clydesdale Bank 

plc 
Call 0.488  

   Alliance & 
Leicester 

Call 5.109  
   Bank of Scotland 

plc 
Call 6.463  

Page 131



   SUB TOTAL  17.105  
       
1 Month 5 0.70%     
       
2 Months 10 1.30%     
       
3 Months 30 1.30%     
       
6 Months 5 1.60% Nationwide 1st Dec 

2009 
5.0 1.45% 

   The Royal Bank of 
Scotland 

15th Dec 
2009 

5.0 1.26% 
   Cater Allen 

(Santander) 
29th Dec 

2009 
5.0 2.30% 

   Nationwide 15th Jan 
2010 

5.0 1.21% 
   Lloyds TSB 17th Feb 

2010 
5.0 1.25% 

   Nationwide 15th Apr 
2010 

5.0 0.80% 
       
9 Months 10 1.70% Cater Allen 

(Santander) 
1st Mar 
2010 

5.0 2.60% 
   Barclays Bank plc 11th Feb 

2010 
5.0 1.80% 

   Nationwide 30th July 
2010 

5.0 0.99% 
       
12 
Months 

25 2.00% Cater Allen 
(Santander) 

14th May 
2010 

5.0 3.00% 
   Barclays Bank plc 27th Apr  

2010 
10.0 2.15% 

   SUB TOTAL  60.0  
       
 £ 100  TOTAL  £ 77.105  

 
6.6 The deals effected in the period and those brought forward from 2008-9 

are as set out in appendix 1.  These deals comply with the counterparty 
credit criteria as set out in table 2. 

6.7 The Council’s bankers, the Co-operative Bank plc, are used as 
depositors of the last resort for investment of additional funds received 
after the treasury transactions have been completed and the money 
markets closed.  

 
7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1. The comments of the Corporate Director Resources have been 

incorporated into the report. 
 

8    CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 

8.1 The Committee is asked to note the information in the report concerning 
the Councils treasury transactions undertaken by the Corporate Director of 
resources under delegated powers. 

Page 132



 
9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 Interest on the Council’s cash flow has historically contributed 

significantly towards the budget.  
 
 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER 

ENVIRONMENT  
 
10.1 There are no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implications. 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
11.1 Any form of investment inevitably involves a degree of risk. 
11.2  To minimise risk the Investment Panel attempts to achieve a diversified 

portfolio. This diversification relates to both asset classes and management 
styles. 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Brief description of "background papers" 

  
Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

   

Directorate Submissions  Ian Talbot   Ext.  4733 
Mulberry Place, 4th Floor. 

 
 
 
 

Page 133



Appendix 1 
 
 
Investment Transactions 2009-10 
 
 Investments 

made before 1 
April 2009 

£m 
Raised 
£m 

Realised 
£m 

Investments 
Outstanding 30th 
November 2009 £m 

     
Australia and New 
Zealand Banking 
Group Ltd 

    

Commonwealth Bank 
of Australia 

    
National Australia 
Bank Ltd 12 65 (77)  
National Australia 
Bank Ltd     
Westpac Banking 
Corporation     
Alliance & Leicester 5  (5)  
Abbey National plc 25  (25)  
Bank of Scotland plc 17  (17)  
Barclays Bank plc    25 (10) 15 
HSBC Bank plc     
Lloyds TSB Bank plc  5  5 
National Westminster 
Bank     
Royal Bank of 
Scotland  20 (15) 5 
Nationwide 5 60 (45) 20 
DBS Bank Ltd     
Oversea-Chinese 
Banking Corporation 
Ltd 

    
United Overseas 
Bank Ltd     
Dexia Bank Belgium - 
London Branch 10 75 (85)  
Co-Operative Bank  5 (5)  
Cater Allen 
(Santander)  15  (15) 
Total 74 270 (284) 60 
 
 

Page 134


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	61 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report  September 2009 - November 2009 (AC/001/09)
	62 Annual Internal Audit Report for Schools â•ﬁ 2008/09 (AC/002/09)
	AC_151209_End of Year School Report 0809_back end

	63 Annual Governance Statement for the 2008/09 Accounts Update (AC/003/09)
	64 Update on Risk Management (AC/004/09)
	65 Revised Internal Audit Plan 2009/10 (AC/005/09)
	66 Progress on National Fraud Initiative 2008/09 and Anti Fraud Update (AC/006/09)
	67 Treasury Activity for Period Ending 30th November 2009 (AC/007/09)

